Commission d’enquéte
sur les actions des
responsables canadiens
relativement a Maher Arar

Audience publique

Commission of Inquiry into
the Actions of Canadian
Officials in Relation to
Maher Arar

Public Hearing

L'Honorable juge /
Commissaire The Honourable Justice Commissioner
Dennis R. O'Connor

Tenue a:

Salon Algonquin
Ancien hotel de ville
111, Promenade Sussex
Ottawa (Ontario)

le mercredi 29 juin 2005

Held at;

Algonguin Room
Old City Hall

111 Sussex Drive
Ottawa, Ontario

Wednesday, June 29, 2005




APPEARANCES / COMPARUTIONS

Mr. Paul Cavalluzzo
M® Marc David

Mr. Brian Gover

Ms Veena Verma
Ms Adela Mall

Mr. Ronald G. Atkey

Mr. Lorne Waldman
Ms Marlys Edwardh
Ms Breese Davies
Ms Brena Parnes

Ms Barbara A. Mclsaac, Q.C.

Mr. Colin Baxter

Mr. Simon Fothergill

Mr. Gregory S. Tzemenakis
Ms Helen J. Gray

Ms Lori Sterling

Mr. Darrell Kloeze

Ms Leslie Mcintosh

Mr. Faisal Joseph

Ms Marie Henein
Mr. Hussein Amery
Mr. Steven Shrybman

Mr. Emelio Binavince

Mr. Joe Arvay

Commission Counsel

Amicus Curiae

Counsel for Maher Arar

Attorney General of Canada

Ministry of the Attorney General/
Ontario Provincial Police

Canadian Islamic Congress

National Council on Canada-Arab
Relations

Canadian Labour Congress/Council of
Canadians and the Polaris Institute

Minority Advocacy and Rights
Council

The British Columbia Civil
Liberties Association



APPEARANCES / COMPARUTIONS

Mr. Kevin Woodall The International Commission for
Jurists, The Redress Trust, The
Associatfion for the Prevention of
Torture, World Organization Against
Torture

Colonel M® Michel W. Drapeau The Muslim Community Council of
Ottawa-Gatineau

Mr. David Matas International Campaign Against
Torture

Ms Barbara Olshansky Centre for Constitutional Rights

Mr. Riad Saloojee Canadian Council on

Mr. Khalid Baksh American-Islamic Relations

Mr. Mel Green Canadian Arab Federation

Ms Amina Sherazee Muslim Canadian Congress

Ms Sylvie Roussel Counsel for Maureen Girvan

Ms Catherine Beagan Flood Counsel for the Parliamentary Clerk

Mr. Norman Boxall Counsel for Inspector Michael Cabana

Mr. Richard Bell
Mr. Vince Westwick Counsel for Oftawa Police Service
Mr. Paul Copeland Counsel for Abdullah Almalki

Ms Barbara Jackman Counsel for Ahmed El Maati



-V -
TABLE OF CONTENTS / TABLE DES MATIERES
Page

PREVIOUSLY SWORN: Michel Cabana 7756

Examination by Mr. Cavalluzzo 7757




No.

P-166

P-167

P-168

P-169

P-170

P-171

P-172

P-173

- v -
LIST OF EXHIBITS / PIECES JUSTICATIVES
Description

Personal notes of Michel Cabana

Affidavit of Randy Walsh (New Version of
Exhibit P-85, Vol. 2, Tab 43)

Curriculum vitae of Superintendent Michel Cabana

E-mail dated 7 November 2001

E-mail dated 7 November 2001

Fax dated 2 January 2002

Fax dated 10 October 2002 to HQ NOC from OIC
Project A-OCANADA

Newly redacted Exhibit P-85, Volume 4, tab 117

Page
7756

7756

7758
7843
7843
7857

7944

8001



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B PR R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »dM W N - O

7730

Otawa, Ontario / Ottawa (Ontari o)
--- Upon comenci ng on Wednesday, June 29, 2005

at 10:00 a.m / L'audience débute |l e mercredi
29 juin 2005 a 10 h 0O

THE REGI STRAR: Pl ease be seat ed.
Veui |l | ez vous asseoir.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Good nor ni ng,
M. Cavalluzzo.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Good nor ni ng,
Comm ssi oner.

Comm ssi oner, at the outset |
woul d |i ke to make an opening statenent,
particularly in light of the ruling which you made
on May 12th in respect of the RCMP testinmny, and
in particular M. Cabana's testinmony.

| understand that subsequent to
t hat opening statement Ms Edwardh has some
prelimnary matters which she would |like to raise.
| think it would be appropriate at that tinme. W
can di spose of those prelimnary matters and get
on to M. Cabana's testinony.

I n your ruling of May 12th you
deci ded that M. Cabana should testify in respect
of the publicly avail able evidence of which he has

knowl edge. As you know, we have already heard al
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of M. Cabana's testinmony in camera.

However, because of certain
nati onal security confidentiality claim made by
t he Governnment of Canada, certain parts of
M. Cabana's evidence cannot be disclosed at this
time.

However, whether or not such
evidence will be ultimately disclosed to the
public, of course, will be decided at the tine of
the i ssuance of your interimreport. 1In short,
sonme of the informati on not disclosed today may
eventually be disclosed to the public in your
interimreport.

There is one other matter which
will further restrict the evidence of M. Cabana
apart fromthe national security confidentiality
claims, and that is the inportant matter of
fairness to M. Cabana.

Al t hough an incident or an issue
may be publicly available, in order to provide a
full and conplete answer M. Cabana woul d have to
refer and rely upon evidence subject to a national
security confidentiality claimof the governnment.
There could be unfair prejudice to M. Cabana to

conpel himto testify publicly on a matter to
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whi ch he cannot give a full and conpl ete answer
because of these NSC cl ai nms.

As a result, Comm ssion counsel
has met with Government counsel and M. Cabana's
counsel over a period of days to ensure that not
only national security will be protected by our
procedure but at the same time we hope that the
procedure we have adopted will be fair to
M. Cabana because we are very sensitive to his
si tuation.

This has led to a procedure in
whi ch we have agreed that certain areas are off
[imts because of NSC clains or because of
fairness to M. Cabana. However, once again I
reiterate two very inmportant things.

First of all, as the Comm ssioner,
you have, and will have, all of M. Cabana's
evi dence in respect of the making and i ssuance of
your interimreport. Second, sone of the
informati on not disclosed today, as | said
earlier, will eventually be disclosed to the
public in your interimreport, after you have made
rulings on these NSC cl ai nms.

However, as Comm ssi on counsel,

| ead Comm ssion counsel, | amthoroughly satisfied
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that it is very beneficial to hear fromthe
officer in charge of Project A-OCANADA for several
reasons.

First, there is a great deal of
publicly available information which will give the
public an interesting and informative description
of the relevant events, starting with the
aftermath of 9/11. We will review the creation of
Proj ect A- OCANADA, its mandate, its conposition,
who its members were, its reporting structure, the
training of its menmbers, any information-sharing
arrangenments and rel ationships which it had with
ot her agencies, including both foreign and
domesti c agenci es.

We will be reviewing with
M . Cabana rel evant RCMP policies, as well as
relationships within the RCWP itself.

As to the circunstances of
M. Arar, we will focus on Project A-OCANADA's
interest in M. Arar, particularly after January
of 2000. This will entail for the nmost part a
detail ed account of what the RCMP did in relation
to M. Arar particularly, after his detention in
the United States on Septenmber 26th of 2002.

For the period of his detention in

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »dM W N - O

7734

the United States, we will have a daily account of
what happened. After his removal to Syria, we
will also have, | believe, a good description of
what the RCMP did in relation to M. Arar while he
was detained in Syria.

The procedure is not perfect, but
| am satisfied that this story can be told in a
coherent manner which will be of interest both to
M. Arar, his counsel and the public. At the sane
time | believe it is fair to M. Cabana, who
shoul d not be placed in a circunmstance in which he
cannot comment publicly without giving a full and
conmpl ete answer to the question.

Wth those openi ng coments,

M. Comm ssioner, | perhaps --

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Let me just
endorse those comments. |In particular, the need
for fairness to M. Cabana has been thoroughly
canvassed by Comm ssion counsel with both
Gover nment counsel and M. Cabana's counsel. As I
said in my ruling, it is paramount, it is critical
to today's hearing that it not proceed in a way
that is unfair to M. Cabana.

As M. Cavalluzzo pointed out, we

have heard M. Cabana's evidence thoroughly in
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camera and it has been tested thoroughly, so |

think it is fair to say that I, and those who were

in camera, are satisfied that we have the full
pi cture.

It is inportant that people not
draw unfair conclusions at this point given the
nature of the way the evidence will be | ed, as
descri bed by M. Cavalluzzo.

Finally, | should say that the
evi dence was canvassed so as it won't be
m sl eading to the public, M. Cavalluzzo. That
was al so one of the factors that was taken into
consideration in deciding what could be |ed.

Ms Edwar dh?

MS EDWARDH: There are a number

of

matters | would like to raise before we start with

the officer, M. Comm ssioner.
The first relates to a position

just articulated by Comm ssion counsel, and one

t hat was brought to my attention in a letter sent

to Comm ssion counsel by M. Fothergill.

|, on behalf of M. Arar, in

accordance with your rules, sent two documents to

all counsel and all intervenors. | shoul d add

both of those docunents were produced to us

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »dM W N - O

7736

t hrough Access to Information.

These docunments indicate that as
early as Novenber 29th, 2001, M. Arar had been
pl aced on a terrorist watch list, and also --
because the word "terrorist"” is printed there --
and al so, that when his | aptop conputer and his
Pal m Pi|l ot was eval uated on Decenmber 20th, there
is a note made that this will be held for
eval uati on and al so for exam nation -- | am
par aphrasing the note now -- by NCIS.

When M. Cavalluzzo said in his
subm ssions to you that certain areas were off
l[imts, | rise because | amvery concerned by such
an approach because it is inconsistent with your
ruling.

The materials | forwarded to
counsel produced this response from
M. Fothergill.

He acknowl edges the correspondence
and al so the docunments that have been forwarded to
himin a timely manner. He says:

"Due to considerations of
Nati onal Security
Confidentiality and

adm ni strative fairness, and
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in accordance with the

direction of the Comm ssioner

on June 22nd, 2005, we

under st and t hat

Superi ntendent Cabana wil

not be questioned in public

about Project A-OCANADA's

initial interest in

M. Arar."”

| take it that that area, given ny
friend' s comments about really proceeding with the
chronol ogy commenci ng January, is one that has, on
some private basis without the hearing of
subm ssions from M. Arar, been determ ned. And
it is that I take objection to.
When the issue was fully argued

before you, and M. Arar was permtted to
partici pate, you made a ruling which my friend has
referred to, and you will find the portions of
your ruling that are of significance, starting
really with page 10 where you identify what may be
t he prospective problenms -- because, of course,
Comm ssi on counsel can deal with his
exam nation-in-chief -- and |, of course, don't

know what has been said in canmera. So that is a
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necessary problem for any cross-exam ner.

But in your ruling at page 10, you
make the observation, at the fourth |ine of the
first paragraph -- and this is what | understood
to be what was circunscri bed:

"The witnesses will not be
able to answer sonme questions
if.o.."

And here is the portion |
underli ne.

"... those questions are
directed towards the
propriety of certain actions
or the reasons why certain
deci si ons were taken."

Let's, for exanple, take the
period of time post-9/11 and take the surveillance
at Mango's Restaurant, the secondary inspection,
and issues like that. | amnot interested in
asking the officer why. | want to establish the
investigative steps taken, to ask himon what
basis -- not the information but the | egal
authority he acted on. And | do not intend to go
beyond your ruling.

Now, because | don't know t he
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information, | cannot avoid things that are dealt
with by national security confidentiality in fact,
and | have every confidence an experienced
officer, who has probably testified hundreds of
times in a crimnal court, can say, "lI'msorry,
object to answer that on the basis of national
security confidentiality".

The ot her issue of inportance is
t hat we canvassed in the subm ssions we made to
you t he whol e question of whether areas shoul d be
taken off the table, and you will recall it was
t he position of the government that whol e areas
shoul d be taken off the table and it was a
position that counsel for M. Arar hotly
contested.

| see in your decision at pages 10
and 11 that you in effect deal with this issue.

Let me take you to page 11, the
second full paragraph, beginning with the | anguage
"That said", where you state the foll ow ng:

"That said, | amreluctant to
bl ock out in advance areas of
Cross-exam nation that are

off limts. | think that the

general directions | have
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given in this ruling wil
suffice for the present tine.
During the course of the
hearing, if problematic
guestions are asked, | wil
direct that they need not be
answer ed and explain why. It
seens to me at this stage at
| east that objections can be
dealt with on a
guestion-by-questi on basis
rather than in the abstract.”
So | come today prepared to ask
guestions knowi ng the caution that you presented,
that the officer's reasons for his decision my
fall outside the proper scope of cross-exam nation
and there may well be an objection taken. |
under st and t hat.
But to hear this morning that
t here has been sone agreenent reached with
M. Bayne that this officer is protected from
answering questions in a whole area of evidence in
my subm ssion runs directly counter to your
ruling.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Let me j ust
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explain a bit about the process.

It is more than just an agreement
reached with M. Bayne. There was a hearing at
which | was present in which specifics of evidence
were di scussed, and with a view to determ ning
what areas would require reference to national
security concerns if they were to be fairly
canvassed in evidence.

So it is more than just an
agreement. There was a di scussion.

That hearing necessarily had to
take place in camera because there was reference
to in-camera evidence, so that we sinply couldn't
have done that in public.

As | say, as M. Cavalluzzo said,
and | agree, this process is by no nmeans perfect.
| mean, this is a public inquiry that is nost
difficult to run, | can assure you. But it is
necessary -- and | amrepeating -- that when this
wi t ness and ot her witnesses give evidence in
public, that it not prove to be unfair to them and
to their interests.

It was for that reason, in the
matters that you are referring to, Ms Edwar dh,

t hat when we | ooked at it in detail and consi dered
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what evi dence could be given in public and, nore

i mportantly, what could not be given in public,
that it was decided that to | ead some of the
evidence in those areas woul d, potentially because
it was only partial evidence, potentially be

m sl eadi ng about those areas, which is sonmething

t hat needs to be avoi ded, and al so could
potentially be unfair to Inspector Cabana.

So there was a nunber of
investigative steps that took place in the fall of
2001 that, when we canvassed it, in my judgment
woul d have run afoul of both the m sl eadi ng and
t he unfairness part if they were canvassed at all.

MS EDWARDH: May | address you,
M. Conmm ssioner?

THE COMM SSI ONER: Pl ease do.

MS EDWARDH: |, of course,
under stand your duty of fairness to the officer
and fully expect that the procedural fairness that
is required will be extended to him but ny
interest here today is fairness to M. Arar.

We have received numerous, | engthy
public documents that touch upon these
investigative steps. Sonmetinmes we have received

information to obtain that has been fil ed and
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sworn to by officers in aid of crimnal
investigations. And nmy problem quite frankly,
not having been privy to this hearing and not
havi ng been permtted to make subm ssions on this
issue, | don't know what is off limts. | can, |
suppose, divine it by what M. Cavalluzzo doesn't
see fit to touch. But with the greatest of
respect, M. Arar has an interest, a very strong
interest, in |looking at some of these
investigative steps that we have been given
documents about.

| understand and will accept any
direction you provide to me should I trespass on
i ssues that affect the ability of the officer to
answer candidly, but my focus and ny
cross-exam nation is nmore based upon those steps
rat her than the reasons for them | wll make
subm ssi ons about the propriety of those steps,
even though | have not heard all the evidence when
| come to making final subm ssions to you

THE COMM SSI ONER: That is one of
the difficulties with this inquiry: that
M. Arar's participation necessarily is not
conplete. There is with this witness, and there

has been with other witnesses, areas of evidence

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »dM W N - O

71744

t hat we have heard in canera, and so M. Arar has
not had the opportunity, through you, to test that
evi dence by cross-exam nati on.

As | have indicated on several
occasions, with that in m nd, Comm ssion counsel,
| can assure you, has done their best to test the
evi dence thoroughly in camera so that it doesn't
simply go in unchall enged, and | think they have
done an exceptionally good job.

But that is just sinply one of the
t hings that results fromthe nature of this
process: that M. Arar, unfortunately, does not
have access to all of the evidence and does not
have the opportunity through you to test all of
t he evidence, only sonme of it.

MS EDWARDH: Can you,

M. Comm ssioner, for my benefit at |east, and

M. Arar's benefit, identify for me what are the
areas that | cannot ask questions about? | would
i ke on the public record what are the specific
factual areas that are known in the documents that
| can't question about.

THE COVM SSI ONER: I think, as
said in nmy ruling, we are going to have to play

this in the cross-exam nation to some extent as we
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go.
The purpose of preparing the

exam nation-in-chief by M. Cavalluzzo and
di stributing that was to identify areas which do
not transgress the directives that | have given
with respect to what can and cannot be canvassed.
| think you can start with the
assunption that Comm ssion counsel, and indeed
nmysel f, have done our best to maxim ze public
di scl osure through this witness and to maxi m ze
t he ampunt of evidence that can be called through
t he witness.
As M. Cavalluzzo indicated, he
has spent an enormous ampunt of tinme, | can tell

you, trying to work it out in order to do just

that. | would hope by now that it is clear that
t he Comm ssion -- M. Cavalluzzo, nyself, and the
ot hers involved -- have over the | ast several

mont hs done everything we possibly can to maxim ze
di scl osure. | amrepeating now. W are not going
to, though, have public disclosure if it can prove
to be unfair to an individual or to an
institution.

The solution, the best solution, I

am satisfied, is that in nmy report, which wil
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come, | will report fully to the government and at
that time | will prepare a report, again, that
will maxim ze the disclosure of information that I

have heard in camera and ny concl usi ons.
| amoptim stic that at the end of

t he day the conclusions that | reach, based on al

of the evidence, will be made public. | suppose
time will tell. But | can assure you -- and
have said it before -- that my comm tnment is that

t hat occur.

MS EDWARDH: | appreciate,
M. Comm ssioner, the invitation to accept
M. Cavalluzzo's |lead in the areas that are open.
| have the highest regard for his forensic skills.
But | don't entirely disregard our own. So it may
be, because | amnot privy to what can't be tal ked
about in any detail, it is not through wanting to
be non-compliant but | do sometimes think we have
a slightly different approach than M. Caval luzzo.

THE COVM SSI ONER: Ri ght .

MS EDWARDH: So do | take then
fromyour instruction that we will deal with this
on a question-by-question basis, as your ruling
i ndi cated?

THE COWM SSI ONER: | woul d hope
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t hat when it becomes obvious that certain matters,
in my view, ought not be canvassed in public
because of concerns about either m sl eadi ng or
unfairness to the witness, that the signal would
become clear and there wouldn't need to then be
repeated questions after it has become cl ear that
t hose matters ought not to be canvassed.

So when | say
guestion-by-question, | would hope that -- and |
amsure it would with you, Ms Edwardh -- that you
woul d pick up the signal of where | am headed,
whet her you agree with me or not.

MS EDWARDH: Of course.

Sometimes it has been ny
under st andi ng, M. Conm ssioner, that it may be
t hat we have a question that |earned counsel for
t he Comm ssion has not thought of, that we just
want on the record for you to think about.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Absol utely.

MS EDWARDH: And it may be that we
just place it there, waiting for the witness to
make an objection, knowi ng that one is likely, but
it is one we are inviting you to consider.

So we will try and bal ance those

two concerns, and | of course will take ny
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direction fromyou, absolutely.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Okay.

MS EDWARDH: The ot her question |
have very sinmply relates to the order of
cross-exam nation, and we can deal with that at an
appropriate time.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Thank you, Ms
Edwar dh

| am just going to make a coment,
M . Copel and.

Let me just repeat what | said at
t he beginning. | think it is inportant that the
public and the medi a understand the nature of this
process. Like M. Cavalluzzo, as | have said, |
am satisfied that it can be done in a way that is
not unfair to the witness and that will not
m sl ead the public. But, necessarily, that means
t hat the public in this hearing will not be
hearing the entire story.

For that reason, | caution the
publ i c agai nst drawi ng any premature concl usions
about the witness and what may have happened
because, as | say, there is evidence that has been
heard in camera. It may be that this is, in a

sense, a plea for patience, patience on the part
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of many of those involved and the public as well,
to be patient and to wait until the report is
i ssued.

We have adopted a process where in

that report | will consider all of the evidence
and will base my conclusions on all of the
evi dence.

M . Copel and?

MR. COPELAND: Thank you
M. Conmm ssi oner.

As | am sure you are aware,
al t hough some in the room may not be aware, | am
counsel for Abdull ah Al mal ki .

As, again you are aware, he was
initially refused standi ng when an application was
brought by M. Edelson. So far as | am awar e,

M. Al mal ki was not notified of the evidence that
was being heard at this inquiry that affected his
reputation. He became aware of that evidence and,
as you are aware, in my absence | ast week,

Ms Jackman brought an application for standi ng on
my part on behalf of M. Al malki.

And so far as | understand your
ruling -- and | apol ogize, but | only returned to

Toronto | ate Saturday night -- we have been
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granted standing so far for the testi nony of
M . Cabana.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Ri ght .

MR. COPELAND: MW client is very
concerned about what the RCMP and CSIS have done
to his reputation. He is very concerned about how
t he actions of the RCMP and CSIS led to his
detention and severe interrogation in Syria. He
is very concerned about how the evidence at this
inquiry will impact on his reputation.

| am greatly hanpered in
representing himby the non-participation to date
and by the lack of detailed know edge that | have
about evidence that has gone in at this inquiry.
| also will have, | think, some great problens
knowi ng what areas | can exam ne on -- much |ike
Ms Edwardh -- as to what is perm ssible and what
is going to get barred by national security, and I
have the additional difficulty that at this point
| am not quite sure what areas | amallowed to ask
guesti ons about generally, what issues will be
rai sed.

So | just wanted to alert you to
that. | may have questions of this officer that

get into the national security issues, and |
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expect that I will be shut down when that happens.
But | just wanted to make you aware of the
concerns that | have.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Just to
clarify, M. Copeland, | was aware of the
application that Ms Jackman brought on behal f of
her client and on your behalf for M. Al malki.

What | indicated through M. Cavalluzzo is | would
rule, and I nowrule, is that you do have standing
for purposes of dealing with evidence that rel ates
to your client and for purposes of addressing
evidence that may adversely affect your client's
reputation.

As | understand it, the evidence

that will be I ed through this witness will mention
your client fromtime to time. | amnot sure of
t he exact details. But in any event, it wll.

So your standing and your
participation will be with respect to that issue.

As a general guideline | would say
to you that your cross-exam nation of the w tness
should be limted to the interest which gives rise
to your standing.

So it is not a grant of standing,

if you will, generally for all of the issues in

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B PR R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

7752

the inquiry; it is a focused grant of standing. |
wi || acconpany the grant of standing with a
recommendation of funding with respect to the
grant.

MR. COPELAND: Thank you.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Thank you.

MS JACKMAN: | echo what
M . Copel and sai d.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Thanks,

Ms Jackman, and | make then the same order that I
did with respect to you and to your client in
exactly the sanme terns.

Just to indicate for the record,
your client's name.

MS JACKMAN: | am appearing for
Ahmed EI Maati .

MS Mcl SAAC: M. Comm ssioner, we
were conmpl etely unaware of either of these
applications and had no foreknow edge that this
application was going to be made this morning, or
any opportunity to make representations.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Actually, it is
consistent with the ruling that I made back in ny
initial ruling denying standing to these two when

t hey applied at the outset.
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| apol ogi ze for that, Ms Ml saac.
Woul d you |i ke an opportunity to oppose these
applications?

MS Mcl SAAC: | would |ike an
opportunity to think about them sir, because | am
not sure what the inplications are.

THE COMM SSI ONER: | have made a
tentative ruling.

Ms Mcl saac, do you oppose these
two counsel asking questions of this witness with
respect to evidence that affects their clients and
their clients' reputation?

MS Mcl SAAC: May | reserve ny
comments on that until | have had an opportunity
to think about it, sir?

THE COWMM SSIONER: It is just that
that will be comng up fairly soon.

MS Mcl SAAC:  Yes. | wil
certainly advise you prior to that happening. |
have to seek instructions as well.

THE COMM SSI ONER: | might just
indicate for the record that | had, at the
begi nni ng when I made rulings on standing earlier,
made what | considered to be a rather normal

direction in a public inquiry of this sort: that
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t he type of standing that | have now granted to
t hese two counsel would be avail abl e.

Ms Edwar dh?

MS EDWARDH: Could | take a
position with respect to the application?

| want to make two observati ons,
M. Conmm ssi oner.

When all the applications for
standi ng came forward, no one was given an
opportunity to comment on other applicants. It
was a matter for your discretion, as a matter of
fairness to the persons. | certainly rem nd you
of that process, because | think that no one other
t han you should determ ne the propriety of the
grant of standing.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Thank you.

We will sinmply wait until we hear
from M Ml saac

In that sense, | guess the ruling
that | made this nmorning will be provisional or

held i n abeyance until we hear fromyou,
Ms Mcl saac.
MS Mcl SAAC: Thank you, sir.
THE COWMM SSI ONER: Are we ready to

begi n?
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: Just on that
poi nt, Conmm ssioner, | want to rem nd counsel that
t here have been several grants of standing with
counsel here today wi thout notice to other
parties. These matters are within your
di scretion.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Absol utely.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | reiterate
Ms Edwar dh's poi nt.

THE COMM SSI ONER: | agree. | am
| ooki ng at at | east three counsel in the back row
who we didn't go through the formality of giving
notice, and | don't recall M. Arar being given
noti ce and an opportunity to object. That
certainly has not been the process.

That said, Ms Mclsaac makes the
request, and | think if she wishes to consider it,
she may do so.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Thank you,
Comm ssi oner.

| wonder if we m ght start now
with the evidence of M. M chael Cabana, and
woul d ask that he be sworn.

THE COMM SSI ONER: He has been

sworn in, in the in-camera proceedings, and I
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think the oath that was adm ni stered previously is
sufficient, so we can just carry on.
PREVI OUSLY SWORN: M CHEL CABANA
MR. CAVALLUZZO: At the outset of
M. Cabana's testimony | would |like to introduce a
number of exhibits at this point in time.
First of all, we have M. Cabana's
personal notes.
THE COWMM SSI ONER: And the exhibit
number for that?
THE REGI STRAR: 166.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Yes, 166 woul d be
hi s personal notes.
EXHI BI' T NO. P-166: Per sonal
Not es of M chel Cabana
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Second is the
affidavit of Randy Wal sh, which is the ITO for the
search warrants in January of 2002, which we wil
be dealing with.
THE COMM SSI ONER: 167.
EXH BIT NO. P-167: Affidavit
of Randy Wal sh (New Ver sion
of Exhibit P-85, Vol. 2,
Tab 43)
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Finally for
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counsel, in Exhibit P-131 we have a tabl e of
concordance for redacted exhibits. W have
updat ed that, and that should be now pl aced as
part of P-131.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: So this
repl aces the previous 1317

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That's correct.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Thank you.
EXAM NATI ON

MR. CAVALLUzZzZO: M. Cabana, |
would like to initially deal with your education
and professional background, but | just want to
state at the outset that you were the officer in
charge of Project A-OCANADA between its creation
in October of 2001 and February of 2003.

s that correct?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: 1In terms of your
educati on, you received a diplom or degree in
busi ness adm nistration at CJEP in Quebec?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And you joined
t he RCMP when?

MR. CABANA: | joined the RCMP in
June 1981.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: Perhaps at this
time we may identify M. Cabana's curriculum
vitae, which was an exhibit in the in-canmera
proceedi ngs but can be made an exhibit in these
public proceedi ngs.

THE COVM SSI ONER: 168.

EXHI BI' T NO. P-168:
CurriculumVitae
Superintendent M ke Cabana

MR. CAVALLUZZO: You told us you
joined the RCMP in June of 1981, and if | can just
hi ghl i ght your career with the RCMP, for five and
a half years you were in Moncton, New Brunswi ck,
with the drug police.

s that correct?

MR. CABANA: | held different
postings around the Moncton area. At one point in
time | was with the drug section, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And you were a
maj or crime investigator in that area?

MR. CABANA: Yes, | was.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: From Moncton you
moved on to Fredericton Hi ghway Patrol, then a
maj or crime unit within Fredericton itself?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: Between 1992 and
1993 you were with the Anti Drug Profiteering
Unit?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And where was
t hat | ocated?

MR. CABANA: That was in
Fredericton as well, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: In 1997 you were
transferred to Ottawa headquarters with the
| nt egrated Proceeds of Crinme Unit?

MR. CABANA: At the branch, at
headquarters with the Proceeds of Crime Branch.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: In 1999 you were
seconded to | POC maj or project investigating a
multi-mllion dollar fraud case invol ving
organi zed crime?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And during your
time with the 1 POC, you gai ned experience in
integrated teams through the | POC?

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Obviously we wil
come back to this, but you obviously operated with

a number of agencies outside the RCMP?
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MR. CABANA: Yes, | did.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:
in crimnal operations and not

security investigations?

Your

in nat

expertise is

i onal

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:

As |

earlier, before your appointnment as t

sai d

he Ol C at

Proj ect A- OCANADA, you were made the O C of the

| POC in 20017

MR. CABANA: In the fall of 2001,

yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:

On Oct ober 5,

2001, Project A-OCANADA was created in the "A"

Division in Ottawa and at that

became the Officer in Charge?

poi nt

in time you

MR. CABANA: Yes, | did.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:

You

mai nt ai ned

t hat position until February 4th of 2003?

MR. CABANA: Yes,

MR. CAVALLUZZO:

And

that's correct.

when you | eft

the O C position of Project A-OCANADA, where did

you go?

MR. CABANA: \While |

was the O C

of Project A-OCANADA, | continued with ny

functions as the O C of the | POC unit
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Division, and | sinply continued with those
duties.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Sorry, | didn't
hear the | ast part of that answer.

MR. CABANA: |I'msorry. Wile I
was the O C of Project A-OCANADA, | continued with
my duties as the O C of the IPOC unit in Ottawa,
and upon concluding my responsibilities with
Proj ect A-OCANADA, | simply continued with the
duties of O C of the I POC unit.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So you mai ntained
t he position of O C of |IPOC while you were the O C
of Project A- OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: Yes, | did.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Finally, on Apri
26t h of 2004, you were noved to your present
position. |Is that correct?

MR. CABANA: That's correct, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And that is in

Mont r eal ?

MR. CABANA: Yes, it is.

MR. CAVALLUZZO. And what is that
position?

MR. CABANA: | amthe assi stant

Crim nal Operations Officer for the Province of
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Quebec, responsible for national security and
border integrity.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: At the outset of
your evidence, M. Cabana, | would |like to give
some context to the investigations that we are
going to be referring to, and in particular, at
t he outset | would |like to deal with the context
of the aftermath of 9/11 and ask you initially,
after the impact of 9/11, September 11th of 2001,
what i nmpact that had on the investigators of the
RCMP in the Ottawa area in which you were | ocated?

MR. CABANA: Well, as you can
i mgi ne, the impact was quite severe, froma
menmber's perspective, if that is what we are
focusing on now. | guess the best way to termit
is life as we knew it for the investigators
st opped on 9/11.

The priorities that everybody had
been assigned to, or working on, prior to 9/11
were basically put on the shelf and everybody was
redirected to try to address the threat and the
crisis that was ongoing with respect to terrori st
attacks.

There was a significant amount of

pressure that was being put on the investigators,
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not necessarily fromU.S. agencies. There was
some pressure that was being put, of course, from
management on investigators, on the teams, but |
woul d say the greatest pressure actually came from
within the group itself, fromthe investigators.

Everybody was horrified with the
attacks that had taken place on 9/11. The
informati on, which unfortunately |I'm prevented
fromreferring to, that reached us clearly
identified a continuation of an i mm nent threat,
including a threat to Canada, and everybody was
concerned to do everything in their power to make
sure that no further attacks occurred.

It wasn't a situation where we
were focusing necessarily on preventing attacks in
Canada. | guess the best way | can describe it is
t he borders, as we knew it, had come down. All
agenci es, donestic, provincial, municipal and
foreign, were working together to prevent any
further attacks from occurring anywhere around the
wor | d.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: We heard fromthe
public contextual evidence of Deputy Comm ssioner
Loeppky that resources were diverted to these

ki nds of investigations and duties and
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responsibilities which flowed fromthe events of

9/ 11.

| s that correct?

MR. CABANA: That is absolutely
true. | guess it was unprecedented. | have been
in |law enforcement for 25 -- 24 years now, and

have never experienced anything |like this, where
the partnership and the coll aborati on between | aw
enforcement and government agencies, again both
domestic and foreign, was -- | had never seen
anything |like that.

Everybody was focused on ensuring
t hat appropriate resources were being assigned to
address this new threat, if you want.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: We have heard in
t he evidence something called Project Shock. |1
wonder if you m ght descri be what Project Shock
was, which | understand was created around that
time?

MR. CABANA: Project Shock was the
initial response, if you want, of the RCMP to the
attacks on 9/11. Project Shock was put in place
at the headquarters level, at CID, in an effort to
coordinate, if you want, the flow of information

that was com ng in and coordinate all the efforts
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to make sure that no further attacks occurred.

Simlar projects were created
across the country, in all the different
provinces, including in "A" Division.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: We have heard in
t he evidence, the contextual evidence, that there
was something in each division called NSIS, which
is responsi ble for national security matters.

Did the NSI'S have any particul ar
responsibility in respect of Project Shock?

MR. CABANA: Very much so. In
each of the provinces -- well, | would say in the
maj ority of the provinces, the parallel projects
t hat were put in place under Shock fell under the
responsibility of the NSIS units. The NSIS units
wer e not equi pped at the time to handle the volume
of information that was comng in, so menmbers were
seconded to suppl enment these teans.

| believe across the country there
is upwards of over 2,000 resources, menbers and
support staff, that were redirected fromcri m nal
operations to try to address this.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Right. And prior
to 9/11, were the NSIS units involved in

investigations or were they nmore involved in
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intelligence-gathering and anal ysis?

MR. CABANA: | woul d say that
prior to 9/11, the NSIS units were nore focused on
intelligence type of national security work. The
in-depth type of crimnal investigations, even
t hough it related to terrorism was not conmon.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | understand as a
result of -- and obviously we are focusing on the
"A" Division in Ottawa.

| understand that as a result of
t he massi ve anount of tips and calls and so on
t hat came in resulting from9/11 and part of
Proj ect Shock that you were called upon to create
some kind of informati on or case management system
for the NSISin the "A" Division?

MR. CABANA: Yes. | believe it
was around September 12th that the cri m nal
operations officer, referred to as CROPS officer,
requested that | attend the NSIS unit to structure
the unit and put in place a case managenent system
to be able to better coordinate the flow of the
i nformati on, because prior to 9/11 these units had
never been faced with the amount of information
t hat was reaching themon a daily basis.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Okay.
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Comm ssioner, at this point in
time, we are going to deal with the CSIS
notification in Septenber-October 2001 of
suspects, and we do have public information in
t hat regard.

M. Cabana may not have -- and
does not have -- direct know edge of this, and as
aresult of this, in order to maintain a flowin
his direct exam nation, | intend nowto read into
the record portions of the draft summary of the
CSI S evidence that you prepared, as well as the
public version of the Wal sh I TO, which has just
been i ntroduced as an exhibit.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: These will be
matt ers about which Inspector Cabana does not have
direct know edge hinself so he cannot testify.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That's right.

THE COMM SSIONER: This is just to
gi ve some continuity and coherence to the evidence
you are | eading?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That's right.

THE COMM SSI ONER: And you are now
going to read in matters that are in the public
record.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That's correct.
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| f counsel want to cross-exam ne
me on it afterwards, |'m prepared to be
Cross-exam ned.
THE COWM SSI ONER: That | woul d
l'i ke to see.
--- Laughter / Rires
MR. CAVALLUZZO: If we can
commence, | amreading fromthe draft summary of
the CSI'S evidence that the Conm ssion prepared,
M. Cabana. | will just read it into the record.
MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: At paragraph 4,
it states:
"W thin one nmont h of
September 11th, 2001, CSIS
transferred to the RCWP
primary responsibility for
nati onal security
i nvestigati ons on a nunmber of
targets that were believed to
warrant crim nal
i nvestigati on and possi ble
charges.”
And then there's a redaction.

"An RCMP-coor di nat ed
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investigation project was
created. The project was
call ed Project OCanada, and
its operation in Ottawa was
call ed Project A-OCANADA."
Just stopping there, M. Cabana,
of course Project OCANADA was in the Toronto area?
MR. CABANA: Yes, it was.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Moving on now to
paragraph 5, it states:
"This transfer of
i nvestigations allowed CSIS
to focus its resources on
security threats that were
| ess clear and to search for
new threats. It was the nost
extensive transfer of
i nvestigati ons ever made by
CSISto the RCMP. The
transfer of investigations
was not made sinply because
of resource limts. CSIS
bel i eved that there was a
good possibility that the
RCMP woul d be able to | ay
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crimnal charges against the
i ndi vi dual s whose files had
been transferred. Even with
its resource allocation
before the budget cutbacks in
t he 1990s, CSIS would have
made the same decision to
transfer the investigations.
As yet there have been no
prosecuti ons of any of the

i ndi vidual s in question.
However, cri m nal

i nvestigati ons conti nue, as
does the prospect of crim nal
charges under the new
anti-terrorismlegislation

t hat was i ntroduced in Bil

C-36."

And that is the portion | read in

the CSI S evidence.

woul d refer now to paragraph 13

of the public version of the Walsh I TO, and it

"A police investigation

targeting a suspected
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terrorist cell operating in
the ... and ... started in

| ate September 2001 as a
result of information

provi ded by CSIS. CSIS had
provi ded t he named of
suspected terrorists in ..
and | ater, the name of a
suspected ... for the
terrorist network who |ived
in ... AJoint Force

| nvesti gati ve Team was
established in ... to
investigate the ... group of
suspects and this team was
assigned the project nane

' OCANADA' . Shortly
thereafter, a simlar Joint
Force I nvestigative Team was
established in ... and
assigned the name ' A- OCANADA
to investigate the

al |l egati ons about the ...

terrorist suspect.”

Comm ssioner, now we will flesh
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out that information through the evidence of
M . Cabana.

| amgoing to | ead you a bit,
M. Cabana, in order to expedite the matter so
t hat we can get quickly to the creation of Project
A- OCANADA. So | would like to first deal with the
creation of Project OCanada, which you told us was
| ocated in the Toronto area.

| understand that in |ate
September of 2001, a joint force investigative
t eam was established to i nvesti gate and was
assigned the project name OCanada in Toronto?

MR. CABANA: That's correct, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And by a j oint
force investigative team can you give us sonme
i dea of what that means in |layman's | anguage?

MR. CABANA: It means there is
i nput and representation fromdifferent |aw
enforcement and government bodi es on the
investigative team So it's not strictly an RCMP
made-up team if you want.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And | understand
t hat on Septenmber 24th of 2001, a joint management
team was formed with senior officers of the RCMP

and two other police agencies. The JMI, as it's
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referred to, was formed specifically to provide

gui dance for Project A-OCANADA and a case

management team was also formalized at that time.
| s that correct?

MR. CABANA: In relation to
Proj ect OCanada?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That's correct.

MR. CABANA: That's correct, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: On Septenber 27th
of 2001, we understand that there was a briefing
for Project OCanada, including profile sheets and
informati on on named targets. Personnel were
advi sed that they were now part of a CFSEU, and
under stand that stands for a Conbi ned Forces
Speci al Enforcement Unit?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO. And this
initiative was governed by a particular MOU
bet ween the different agencies.

When we cone to Ottawa, |
understand that in early October 2001, shortly
after OCanada was created, that a simlar joint
force investigative team was established and
assigned the project name A- OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: That's correct, sir.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: | understand that
there were a number of targets that A- OCANADA was
to investigate, and one of the Ottawa targets I
under st and was Abdul | ah Al mal ki .

| s that correct?

MR. CABANA:. Yes sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now | would l|ike

to --

MR. COPELAND: Excuse ne.

M. Comm ssioner, again, partly
because of the | ateness of ny arrival, |'m not

quite sure how I'mgoing to deal with i ssues of ny
client's name com ng up, and | gather it comes up
fairly regularly.

Everything that comes up in
relation to my client obviously is going to affect
his reputation, so perhaps | will just say at the
outset that I'mvery concerned about how easily
his name is thrown around in relation to this.

There is no question it is now a
matter of public record, partly because of what
has come out at this inquiry and very much because
of what appear to be | eaks, | would assunme by
either CSIS or the RCMP earlier on, that |inked

himto these parts of the investigation; also
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partly as a result of the applications before the
various judges in the Ontario Court of Justice,

t he Superior Court of Justice, the Ontario Court
of Appeal and the Federal Court.

So it has come out in a number of
ways, but |I'mvery concerned that when it conmes
out just as bluntly as that, that he is a main
focus of the investigation. He is obviously very
aware that that is now the position, but every
time that his name is mentioned and everything
t hat the RCMP have CSI'S have done have greatly
affected his reputation.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Il think it's a
fair point you raise, M. Copel and, and as you
i ndi cate, other than through this inquiry, there
has been extensive disclosure through a variety of
sources. So to the extent that there is an
unf airness, | guess that has occurred.

What | can do here, and let nme do
it at this point -- and you may want to think how
| m ght better do this.

| would sinmply say to people the
fact that your client's name -- and indeed this
woul d apply to M. El Maati, who is Ms Jackman's

client -- is mentioned in the course of the
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evidence, as it now has been and will again, does
not mean that these individuals are guilty of
anyt hi ng.

| ndeed, as you woul d quickly point
out, they have never been charged --

MR. COPELAND: That was one of the
things | intended to point out.

THE COMM SSI ONER: -- with any
of fence.

We tal k about fairness here
insofar as the witness is concerned. That is
i mportant. But the process should be fair to
everyone.

And there would be, | can tell
you, information in camera that would relate to
your client and to M. El Maati which they,
unfortunately, don't know about, because the
government claims national security
confidentiality.

The point I'm making is that
peopl e, the public and the media, should not draw
concl usi ons that because names are nmenti oned that
t hat necessarily means they have done anyt hing
wrong at all. Indeed, the public and the nedia

shoul d be aware that they don't have an
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opportunity to address informati on that they don't
know about, and so there is a danger that peopl e,
in hearing names mentioned in evidence in this
inquiry, could junmp to wrong concl usi ons.

| sinmply make that request, that
t he public not draw concl usi ons.

If there is something else that
you and Ms Jackman think of that | can do to
promote that idea of fairness to your clients, |
woul d certainly be open to hearing subm ssions
fromyou and from Ms Ml saac and ot her counsel.

MR. COPELAND: Let me say t hat
won't rise every time my client's name is
menti oned, but that is the concern that | have
t hroughout these proceedings.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: As | say, |I'm
pl eased to hear from counsel again with respect to
how we do it.

MR. COPELAND: Thank you.

THE COMM SSI ONER: | have made - -
and I will go on about this because it is
i mportant.

| have made the same conment with
respect to Inspector Cabana: that people should

not draw concl usi ons adverse to himfromthe
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evi dence because, as | said in nmy ruling, there
may be things in camera which could explain a
certain course of conduct that he is not able to
refer to.

So that this process, both from
| nspect or Cabana's standpoint and from ot hers
whose names may be nmenti oned, as we keep sayi ng,
is not perfect. Nonetheless, we are satisfied
there is value to hearing the evidence.

| f people heed the caution not to
draw concl usions that are adverse to anyone's
interest, nmy report will be com ng at some point,
and | ' mgoing to repeat that caution, as
necessary, throughout the proceedi ng.

Thank you, M. Copel and.

MR. COPELAND: Could I just make
one ot her coment, M. Comm ssioner?

THE COWMM SSI ONER:  Sur e.

MR. COPELAND: It is certainly a
concern of my client that there are patterns of
behaviour in relation to what happened to vari ous
peopl e who were incarcerated in Syria that should

i mpact on your work, and I just want to enphasi ze

that my client's treatment in Syria, while not the

same as M. Arar's, was not a pleasant experience,
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and I will be hoping that |I can explore some of
t hat .

| may have some difficulties with
you on that subject, but | just want to nake you
awar e of that.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Thank you.

M. Fothergill?

MR. FOTHERGI LL: Thank you,

Comm ssioner. | wonder if |I mght say something
froma national security confidentiality
perspecti ve.

From our perspective, we would
have preferred that none of the targets of either
Proj ect OCanada or Project A-OCANADA ever be made
public, in part for reasons of protecting the
integrity of the investigation, but also
respecting the privacy rights of those invol ved.

| just want to say that the only
reason why M. Almal ki and M. El Maati have been
identified is because | think our hand was forced
by disclosure in other fora.

| think it's probably worth noting
t hat they are not the only targets. | think it
may be one way to proceed that we refrain from

nam ng t hem whenever possible, because | think
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fromthe perspective of your mandate, the
i mportance of the individual identities of the
ot her targets is not terribly inportant.

So | think, in fairness to all, if
we can just acknow edge that these are not the
only targets, that we should not pay undue
attention to them and as we nove forward in the
evi dence, if we can generally refrain fromnam ng
them but sinmply refer to another target, we may be
able to alleviate some of the concerns expressed
by M. Copel and.

THE COVM SSI ONER: I think that's
a good idea, and to the extent the evidence can
still be coherent in doing it that way, | agree.

Let nme repeat the point that both
of you have now made: that the disclosure of
t hese names was through other fora | ong before we
got to it here, and in that sense, the horse was a
| ong way out of the barn.

MS JACKMAN: The only concern
have with M. Fothergill's suggestion,

M. Comm ssioner, is that we need to know which
target is our client. So if they just say an
unnamed target, | won't know if they are tal king

about M. Almal ki or M. ElI Mati. It creates
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difficulties.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: M. Cavalluzzo?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: I will deal with
it. | will ensure the name is not used. | wil
al so ensure that counsel for the particul ar
unnanmed target at a particular point intinmeis
aware that that is who we are tal king about.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Hopeful ly if
you have been given a statenment of anticipated
evi dence, or whatever it's called, you can do
t hat .

Certainly, M. Cavalluzzo, if you
cooperate with both counsel, we can address that
concern. Thank you.

Go ahead.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | guess the only
other matter for the record is you have st ated,
M. Comm ssioner, with M. Copel and, that
M. Al mal ki has not been charged. | think the
same thing should be said about M. El Maati.

THE COMM SSI ONER: " msorry,
meant to say it about both. Neither of those two
i ndi vidual s have been charged.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: M. Cabana, if we

can conme back to your evidence, | want to deal now
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with -- once again we are in the aftermath of
9/11, and I want to | ook nowto
informati on-sharing with other agencies,
relationships with other agencies.

If we could start now in the
context of Project Shock, can you give us sone
i dea of what was the understanding with respect to
cooperation with other agencies, and particularly
focusing on the sharing of information?

MR. CABANA: | guess to understand
the information-sharing process that was put in
pl ace, you have to | ook at the actual mandate that
flowed fromthe creation of Project Shock.

There is actually three mandates

t hat investigators were provided with or directed

with.

The first mandate, of course, was
prevention. In other words, we were directed to
adopt a zero tolerance and -- | guess the best way
totermit -- |eave no stones unturned. We were

to do everything in our power to prevent anything
el se from happeni ng.

The second part of the mandate, of
course, dealt with intelligence. W had to ensure

t hat we coul d gather and exchange, share
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intelligence, as quickly as possible, and the

expl anation/justification behind it, | guess, goes
to the actual attacks on 9/11 and the fact that
one of the first steps that we took upon creating
Proj ect Shock is communicating with our
counterparts in the U S. and ask what should we be
| ooking for. Were there any indicators, anything
we shoul d be aware of in trying to identify or
focus on the threat to Canada?

And the reality was that at the
time there was nothing. 1In other words, there
were pieces of the puzzle that were there that
nobody knew were there.

Soit's alittle different than a
normal crim nal investigation, where normally you
know what you are |l ooking for. |In this case here
we knew t here was somet hi ng, but we didn't know
what we were | ooking for.

So in order for us to be able to
assess and make sure that we didn't m ss this
pi ece of the puzzle, we had to ensure tinely
sharing of all intelligence.

And of course the third part of
t he mandate dealt with prosecution.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: In respect of
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t hose three mandates -- you have tal ked about
prevention, intelligence and prosecution -- was
there a priority in respect of any of these one of
t hree mandates?

MR. CABANA: First and forenost
mandat e was prevention. In other words, you do
everything you can to make sure nothing happens
anywhere. |[If at the end of the day we are
successful in prosecuting individuals or groups,
that's fine. But right nowthe priority is not to
accumul ate the information in an adm ssi bl e
format; the priority is to make sure that nothing
bl ows up.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Was there at this
point in time devel opment or establishment of a
partnership arrangement with a nunmber of |aw
enforcement and perhaps security intelligence
agenci es?

MR. CABANA: |'m not sure
under stood the questi on.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: As a result of
9/11 and as a result of the information-sharing
that we are going to be getting into, did the RCMP
have a number of partners that they were going to

have -- or stakehol ders that they were going to
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deal with in respect of carrying out this mandate?

MR. CABANA: Yes, there was a
| ar ge nunmber of stakehol ders. Some agencies were
more prom nent in the partnership that was
established, and there were discussions and
agreements that were put in place with respect to
informati on-sharing and directives.

| guess the description that
received to the situation, which was very unusual,
was that the investigation that we were conducting
was to be an open-book investigation. W were
working in close partnerships with domestic and
foreign agencies, and the marching orders that we
received is to make sure that all avail able
information is shared with these agencies, and
again it goes to the preventi on mandat e.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: You have told us
t hat you were working with foreign agencies, and
t hi nk you can nanme those foreign agencies that you
woul d be working with.

MR. FOTHERGI LL: Excuse ne,
Comm ssioner, with respect. There is a cl aim of
nati onal security confidentiality with respect to
the identity of the U. S. agencies with the

excepti on of the FBI
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MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. One of
your partners was the FBI, and there were a nunber
of other --

MR. CABANA: FBI and friends.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And friends.
American friends, though?

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Anmerican friends.
Okay.

You have tal ked about this
open-book investigation in ternms of
informati on-sharing, and | assume what you are
tal ki ng about is the feeling was that you coul dn't
tolerate delays in terms of sharing of information
if you were going to try and prevent the kind of
incident we saw in 9/11?

MR. CABANA: Very much so. In the
di scussi ons post-9/11, sone of the discussions
focused on the inportance of ensuring that nobody
was hol ding any information that m ght be -- or
appear innocuous to them but, taken into the
context of other information that other agencies
had in their possession, m ght be that piece of
t he puzzle that we are tal king about.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: W have heard
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reference in terms of the understandi ngs that

m ght have been reached at this time, something
call ed caveats are down. We know what caveats
are. | won't take you to the RCMP caveat.

But have you heard the expression
"caveats are down"?

MR. CABANA: Yes, | did very early
in the project, actually when the project here in
Ottawa was created. Again it goes to directives
t hat we received to the effect that we had to
share all information with these agenci es wit hout
any del ays.

I n other words, the way it was
described to us is you are working hand in hand
with these people now, and when you are working in
partnership with agencies, caveats don't apply.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Perhaps you could
gi ve us an understandi ng of what that means,
"caveats don't apply". Does that mean that if the
RCMP gave information to another agency, that that
agency could use that information to whichever end
it believed possible?

MR. CABANA: No. The way I
under stood the agreenment that was put in place

post-9/11 is there was an agreenment anmongst these
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agencies that the informati on was going to be
free-fl owi ng anongst the agencies. Everybody
under st ood what the purpose of the sharing was and
t he procedure that had to be followed if this
informati on was to be used for anything.

I n other words, it was
intelligence that was being shared for
intelligence purposes. |If it was to be used in
t he context of crim nal proceedings, there were
cl ear procedures that had to be foll owed.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght. And they
woul d be procedures with the RCMP so that the RCMP
woul d have the ultimate say as to whether that
informati on could be used in the crim nal
prosecution.

s that correct?

MR. CABANA: W th respect to the
RCMP, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: |'mgoing to
refer to a couple of documents, but before doing
this I just want to ensure that this free flow of
informati on, caveats are down, open-book
investigation, is an understandi ng which you
obt ai ned from your superiors.

MR. CABANA: Oh, very much so. It

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B P R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »dM W N - O

7789

was the direction that was di scussed at numerous
meeti ngs, video conferences, and it's also the
directives that | received frommy i mmedi ate
superiors fromthe crim nal operations office.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: When we conme to
t he composition of A- OCANADA, we are going to have
you name those officers.

But let's | ook at a coupl e of
documents relating to informati on-sharing.

| amreferring initially to
Exhi bit P-85, Volunme 1.

M. Cabana and Conm ssioner, if
you woul d ook to the material, or the briefing
note, behind tab 21, this was a briefing note
which is dated February 4th of 2004. It was
created by the Head of CID for Comm ssioner
Zaccardelli, and it described the
informati on-sharing arrangement in the follow ng
wor ds.

It states:

"Fol l owi ng the events of
9/11, a new era of openness
and an environment of sharing
was necessitated by the need

to prevent further terrorist
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acts from happening. In
particul ar, the RCWP [ and
ot hers] agreed that all
informati on woul d be shared
bet ween agencies as a matter
of course. Further, it was
agreed at Senior |evels that
it would be the exception
rat her than the rule to seek
perm ssion prior to utilizing
or sharing the information
bet ween the parties to the
agreement . "
And then it says:
"[Certain parties] met
periodically and shared
informati on of relevance to
ongoi ng investigations."
Does that description that was
given to the Comm ssi oner accord with your

under st andi ng of what was going on in 2001, 2002

and 20037

MR. CABANA: Very much so. This
makes reference to the agreenment, inter-agency
agreement .
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: You had no direct
knowl edge of the inter-agency agreenment, but you
knew t hat at senior levels this agreement was
reached?

MR. CABANA: | wasn't party to
these initial discussions. It was just related to
me in the directions that | received.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: I would Iike to
now just finally |ook at Exhibit P-85, Volume 5.

| f you go behind tab 22 of Vol ume
5, this is an e-mail fromRi chard Proul x. As we
know, Richard Proul x was the head of CID at the
material time, so would be responsible for
nati onal security investigations, and it's to
ot hers.

It is dated Septenber 26th of
2001, and it captures a tel ephone conference
bet ween t he Comm ssioner of the RCMP and a nunber
of Chiefs of Police across the country.

There are certain points that |
woul d reference.

For example, in the second bull et
poi nt down, it says:

"- They all agree with sone

formof integration of
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security and | aw enforcement

agencies (i.e., JFO that

i ncludes RCMP, CSIS, CCRA...

- All mentioned that sharing

of intelligence is a nmust and

they need to be in the know. "

It goes on, in the next bullet

"The Conmm ssioner reassure
them that all necessary

intelligence will be shared
and that a protocol/process
will be put in place within

the RCMP to acconplish that.”

To your know edge, was there ever

a protocol or process put in place within the RCWP

to deal

initial

ot her things,

with this sharing of information?

MR. CABANA: Ot her than the

agreement,

i nter-agency agreenment?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Right.

MR. CABANA: No.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Then it refers to

such as all daily situation reports

will be delivered to Chiefs of Police, Deputy

Chi ef s,

and so on.
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The only other reference | would
make is on the second page of that e-mail.

The postscript states:

"Since nost of the
correspondence exchanged wil
be classified material, they
shoul d be rem nded not to

di ssem nate further w thout
proper authorization fromthe
originator."

We will be com ng back to that
desi gnati on of classified materi al.

There are a number of policies,
| nspect or Cabana, that | would like to briefly
deal with you. These are, in ny view, the
rel evant policies dealing with the issues and
items that we are going to be dealing with in your
testi nony.

| woul d now refer you to Exhibit
12, which is the Loeppky Book of Documents.

If we could first | ook at what we
have just referred to, the designation or
classification of information, if you | ook
initially, Inspector Cabana, to tab 26, we have an

adm ni strative guideline or policy of the RCMP
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entitled "Organi zati onal and Adm nistrative
Security".
MR. CABANA: Yes.
MR. CAVALLUZZO. And the first
reference to you would be to section J.
Section J, for the purposes of the
RCMP -- this can be found, if you |l ook at the top
right corner, at page 3 of 11 -- is really the
classification or designation of information.
In the first paragraph of J, we
see what classified information is, that is:
"Materiel assets deemed to be
sensitive in the national
i nterest nust be CLASSI FI ED. "
And then it goes on and it says in
J.2 on the next page:
"Materiel assets with val ue
or importance that warrant
saf eguardi ng nmust be
DESI GNATED. "
So information that is publicly
available is not to be classified or designated.
This is really for counsel and the
Comm ssioner just to take them through this

qui ckly, because we will be com ng back to these

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N RBP B PR R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

rul es.

7795

J.6 is inportant because it deals

with when classified information i s recei ved.

par agr aph:

It says:

Then

"When CLASSI FI ED i nformation
is received from anot her
federal institution or
agency, a provincial,
muni ci pal or regiona
government, foreign
government, or from an

i nternational organization of
nati ons or one of its
institutions, it nust be
protected at the

CONFI DENTI AL, SECRET or TOP
SECRET | evels, or if
applicable, in accordance

wi th an agreenment between the
RCMP and t he government or
institution concerned.”

it says in the next

"The written perm ssion of

the originator is required to
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rel ease or downgrade
CLASSI FI ED i nformati on. ™
"' mnot going to take you through
t hat, but for counsel's interest, in section K we
have what is called the "Injury Testing"; that is
how something is classified as -- or is
classified, as well as designated.
For example, in respect of
desi gnated protected information on the next page,
you shoul d be aware of paragraph K. 5 because we
are dealing with protected information, and we
will be comng to this in respect of Project
A- OCANADA: that there are three categories there,
PROTECTED- A, PROTECTED- B and PROTECTED- C.
PROTECTED- A is information of |ow
sensitivity; B being particularly sensitive
informati on; and PROTECTED-C bei ng extremely
sensitive information.
I n respect of the general rule
relating to the release of classified or
desi gnated information, if we could go nowto
section N at page 7, we see the general rule in
N. 1, which states:
" CLASSI FI ED/ DESI GNATED

informati on may be rel eased
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only to an individual who has
a need to know and possesses
a security clearance or
reliability status
commensurate with the
sensitivity of the
informati on being rel eased. "

So we see that there are two
conditions there. One is the need to know, and
secondly is the appropriate security cl earance or
reliability status.

And |'m going to come now to
caveats, which we referred to earlier, and it
states in N. 2:

"When sensitive information
CLASSI FI ED i n the nati onal
interest is shared with or
rel eased to other
governnents, departnments or
organi zati ons not covered by
the Security Policy and

St andards of the Gover nment
of Canada, the RCMP nust
ensure, through written

agreements, e.g. MOU, that
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appropri ate safeguards are
established for the

saf ekeepi ng of the
informati on. For appropriate
statements, see App. Xl-1-5."

Thi s provision, you woul d agree
with me, Inspector Cabana, would relate to,
obvi ously, the FBI and American friends as a
result of the fact that they are obviously not
covered by the Canadi an security policy?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: |If we see the
precedent, or statement which is to be included,
if we go to Appendix Xl-1-5 at the back, it's two
pages fromthe back, we see the caveats that are
to be inserted in respect of classified
information -- I'msorry, you don't have that?

Do you have it now?

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: We see the
caveats which are to be inserted in respect of
classified information, and in particular, if we
are dealing with the FBI and American friends in
paragraph (b) it states:

"The follow ng statement nust
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be i ncluded on all outgoing
correspondence, nessages and
docunments being passed to

ot her domestic and foreign

| aw enf or cement
agenci es/ departments.”

And then it is stated in quotes:

"' This docunent is the
property of the RCMP. It is
| oaned to your

agency/ departnment in
confidence and it is not to
be reclassified or further
di ssem nated wi t hout the
consent of the originator.""

And then there are other caveats
as wel | .

And then in the second paragraph
we see which caveats are to be inserted in
desi gnated i nformati on.

In regard to privacy concerns, if
we move now, |nspector Cabana, to tab 27, this is
anot her operational guideline entitled "I.3
Assi stance".

If we go to section L, there are a
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number of relevant areas here but there is only a
couple that I would like to deal with.

Unfortunately, this portion is not

pagi nated, but if you goto L -- it's at the
top -- the title in section L is "Rel ease of
| nformation”". | will just read to you the

i mportant aspects here.
The general rule is set out in
L.2.a and it states that:
"1. The disclosure of
personal information nmust be
made in accordance with the
Privacy Act.
2. Subsection 8(1), Privacy
Act, forbids disclosure of
personal information wi thout
t he consent of the person to
whom t he i nformati on
relates.”
And then it states that subsection
8(2) lists exceptions to subsection 8(1).
It would seemto me that the
rel evant exception to our situationis L.2.b.,
"Consi stent use Disclosure".

| that correct?
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"As | aw enforcenment is

consi dered one broad

consi stent use, the RCMP may
coll ect personal information
for one | aw enforcement
purpose and rel ease it for
anot her | aw enforcenment

pur pose.

1. A menmber nmust not seek or
coll ect personal information
solely for the purpose of
facilitating inquiries or

i nvestigati ons undertaken by
anot her | aw enforcenment or
gover nment agency.

2. In such a case, a |law
enf orcement or gover nment
agency should be advised to
seek direct access to the

desired informati on."

And t hen anot her i nportant

provision is in subparagraph 2.
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provi des:

"Under the provisions of
L.2.b.1, the RCMP may

di scl ose personal information
to the foll owing agencies for
legitimate investigative

pur poses in connection with
their official duties and
responsibilities relating to
enforcement or adm nistration
of | aw:

1. Canadi an | aw enf or cenment
agenci es and correctional
services, and investigative,
enforcement and support
bodi es of federal, provincial
or territorial governnments;
and

2. foreign | aw enforcement
agenci es, correctional
services and investigative or
enforcement bodi es of

gover nment departnments.”

am going to ask a question at

and giving my friend an
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opportunity to respond -- | don't know if this is
permitted.

s it your understanding that our
American -- that one of the American agencies,
such as the Central Intelligence Agency, that is
the CIA, would that be a foreign | aw enforcement
agency within the meaning of this RCWP policy?

And just wait to answer the
guesti on.

MR. FOTHERGI LL: | have no
obj ecti on.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Thank you.

Coul d you answer that question?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, | believe
it would be.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: We normally
consider the CIAto be an intelligence agency, and
t he wording here is "a foreign | aw enforcenment
agency".

Coul d you tell us why you believe
t hat the CI A would be a foreign | aw enforcement
agency within the meaning of this policy?

MR. CABANA: Because by the
definition, the CIAis an investigative body.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: In respect of
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t hat, that understanding that the CIA is an
investigative body, is that understandi ng which
you have, is that comon within the RCMP, to your
knowl edge?

MR. CABANA: Yes, it is, and even
nmore so follow ng 9/11.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Then finally in
paragraph 3 there are other references that we
need not make at this point in tine.

In regard to the caveat that we
saw, | have a question.

You said at senior |levels we had
this caveats are down or open-book investigation
arrangement. So it would appear that the policy
that we reviewed relating to caveats was in some
sense suspended as a result of this understanding
or agreement reached at senior |evels.

MR. CABANA: |'mnot sure | would
termit as suspended. |If you | ook at the policy,
t he policy makes reference to the fact that under
certain circunstances the information can flow
wi t hout caveat if there are proper MOUs in place
and things of that nature.

Policy, RCMP policy, is devised as

a guideline, and it's a guideline that we base
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some of our investigative steps, how we go about
devel oping the different investigations.

The policy, RCWMP policy, was
clearly not developed with the prospect of dealing
with an event |like 9/11. MOUs devel oped, like is
being referred to in a policy for sharing of
information, is a process that takes a | ot of
time. | have been involved in some of these
processes, and they take actually several months
and sonmeti mes even nore than a year.

Clearly under the circumstances of
9/ 11, that was not feasible, and | think that goes
to the actual agreenment, inter-agency agreenent,

t hat was put in place.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The policy or the
reference you are making is to paragraph N.2 that
we referred to earlier in the previous tab. And
t hat provides that if you are going to share
informati on, for exanple, with a foreign agency --
this is at page 7 of 11 of the previous tab.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Of tab 267

MR. CAVALLUzzZO: Of tab 26, yes.

THE COVM SSI ONER: Ri ght .

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | just want to

make sure | understand your evidence here.
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Once again, if you |look at the top
of the page -- it's 7 of 11 -- it says at N.2 at
t he bottom
"When sensitive information
CLASSI FIED i n the nati onal
interest is shared with or
rel eased to other
governnents, departnments or

organi zati ons not covered

by. ..

The governnment policy, and that is
what we have been tal king about with the federal
agenci es.

"... the RCMP nmust ensure,

t hrough written agreenments,
e.g. MOU, that appropriate
saf eguards are established
for the safekeepi ng of the
information."

That is what you are referring to?

MR. CABANA: That is what |'m
referring to when | suggest that the inter-agency
agreement dealt with this.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: It says it must

be a written MOU. WAs there a written MOU bet ween

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

7807

t he agencies, to your know edge?

MR. CABANA: Not to my know edge,
no.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So you have never
seen a written --

MR. CABANA: | have never seen a
written agreenment, no.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Just before we
move on fromthe sharing of information, while you
were on Project A-OCANADA, which would bring us
once again to February of 2003, was there any
notice that that open-book arrangenent, the
caveats-are-down policy, was no | onger apt and
t hat you were going to revert back to caveats?

MR. CABANA: Not when | was
attached to that project, no, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

Let us nove on then, staying in
the same tab 27. | want to deal briefly to the
arrangenments that RCMP has with CSIS respecting
t he rel ease of information.

That can be found in section E of
this particular policy, and that is the fourth
page in.

In E.15.a, we see how requests for
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and that is that the RCWMP

provi des general police assistance to CSIS.

Par agraph (b) tal ks about the use

of CSIS information in judicial proceedings.

VWhat

| would Ilike to focus on i s

(c), which deals with when information is rel eased

by the RCMP.

It says, first of all, in

paragraph 1:

"Rel ease of cri m nal
information/intelligence from
operational case files wil
be made on a case-by-case,
need-to- know basi s,
consistent with the terns
outlined in Part II11 of the
MOU bet ween t he RCMP and
Csls. "

We have reviewed that with Deputy

Comm ssi oner Loeppky and which is part of this

Book of Docunents.

Then it goes on to say:

"All informati on rel eased
must contain caveats as

outlined in App. 1-3-8."
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If we go to Appendix I-3-8, let's
take a | ook at that. It is at the back.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Is that the

| ast page?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: No, it's the --
unfortunately this isn't paginated. 1t's about
seven or eight pages fromthe back. It is

entitled "Conditions for the Di ssem nati on of
Nati onal Security Information".

Do you have that, Inspector?

MR. CABANA: No, sir, | don't.

MS EDWARDH: M. Conmm ssioner, in
our book, it is the very | ast page of this tab.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Is that right?

THE COMM SSI ONER: Do you have it
at the | ast page?

MR. CABANA: Yes, | do.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: 1In any event, the
second paragraph | would focus in for relevance.

This once again is entitled
"Conditions for the Dissem nation of National
Security Information", and in the second paragraph
it states:

"The follow ng conditions

must al so be included in al
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out goi ng correspondence,
messages and documents being
passed to ot her domestic and
foreign | aw enforcement
agenci es/ departments.”

And then we have the two caveats,
whi ch were the second and third caveats of the
| ast policy.

| would |ike to move on to the
i ssue of foreign travel

Before doing that, it may be an
appropriate time to break as it's 11:35.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Just before we
break.

M. Bayne, | didn't mean to | eave
you out of the earlier discussion with respect to
any things |I should say with respect to fairness
to your client. In my ruling, you will recal
that | indicated that I would give adnmonitions
fromtime to ti me about people not draw ng
premat ure concl usions and so on.

| f you have any subm ssions al ong
t hose lines, particularly having regard to ny
ruling, please feel free to make them as you see

fit.
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MR. BAYNE: Thank you. | have
not hing so far to add.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Then we wil |
take a 15-m nute break.

THE REG STRAR: Pl ease stand.

--- Upon recessing at 11:34 a.m /
Suspension a 11 h 34

--- Upon resum ng at 11:52 a.m /
Reprise a 11 h 52

THE REGH STRAR: Pl ease be seat ed.
Veui l | ez vous asseoir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: WM. Cabana, we
were just about to go on to the question of
foreign travel, and | wonder if you m ght now go
to tab 29.

This is the policy entitled
"l nvestigation Guidelines", and the reference here
woul d be to section |, at page 4 of 14.

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And just reading
some paragraphs for counsel that don't have access
to this book at this time, paragraph 1.a states:

"A menmber will not undertake
any investigational activity

in a foreign country without
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t he knowl edge of the Liaison
Officer and the explicit
consent of the foreign
country."

it goes on:

"1. A menber has no | egal
authority to conduct
enquiries in the country
bei ng visited unl ess

aut hori zed by the country.

2. A menber nmust be
acconpani ed by a
representative of the foreign
country during the course of
t he investigation.

3. In many countries it is
an offence for an agent of a
foreign government to conduct

enquiries.”

If we go on to the next page and

"Travel to a foreign country
for investigational purposes
is restricted to:

1. Canadi an investigations
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requiring evidence or
information to be gathered in
a foreign country, or

2. foreign cases of
enforcement interest to
Canada requiring evidence or
information to be gathered in
t he foreign country by RCMP
personnel or technical

equi pment . "

St oppi ng there, | have a question

It says in the first paragraph.

"Travel to a foreign country
for investigational purposes
is restricted to:

1. Canadi an investigations
requiring evidence or
information to be gathered in

a foreign country.™

Woul d t hat apply, M. Cabana, to a
situation in which the RCMP wanted to interview a
Canadi an who was detained in a foreign country?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, it would.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. And then
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if we could, there are a couple of other
par agraphs on this page.

Paragraph 1.1.d:

"Wth the exception of an LG,
a menber must not use a
forei gn agency to contact
anot her foreign agency."

And finally at I.2.b, in ternms of
approval :

"If the travel request

requi res National
Headquarters approval, submt
your request to division

i mmedi ately upon knowi ng the
need to travel to a foreign
country. "

If an RCMP officer wanted to
travel to a foreign country, once again to
interview a Canadi an detained in that foreign
country, would he or she need the approval of
nati onal headquarters?

MR. CABANA: Yes, he woul d.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Then if we go to
page 7 of 14, which deals with the interviews

t hemsel ves, paragraph |.2.g states:
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"Do not contact or interview
Canadi ans in custody in a
foreign country unl ess:

1. the interview was
requested through a Canadi an
governnent representative, or
consent to the interviewis
given in writing, and

2. the interview has been
approved by the head of the
foreign post."”

The question that | would have for
you is: Does the Charter of Rights and Freedons
apply to you as an RCMP officer when you are
interviewi ng a Canadi an det ai ned abroad or in a
foreign nation?

CABANA: Very much so, sir
CAVALLUZZO: It does.

> 3 3

CABANA:  Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The second
guestion | would have is: Does the Charter of
Ri ghts and Freedons apply when you submt
guestions to a foreign agency to ask that Canadi an
who i s detained abroad?

MR. CABANA: It would be in
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relation to a suspect or in relation to a
potential w tness?

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Starting first
with a suspect.

MR. CABANA: | think that would be
a legal issue. It would be an issue to be debated
in court over the adm ssibility of any statement
t hat was to be obtained.

If the interviewis a direct
request from Canada, | would submt that, yes, it
probably does. If it is an interviewthat is
bei ng conducted i ndependently by the foreign
state, no, | would say it doesn't.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But what about a
situation where you know that a foreign agency is
goi ng to be questioning the Canadi an det ai ned
abroad and they call upon you for any questions
you may want to ask the Canadi an. Wbuld that
i nvoke the application of the Charter or would it
not, dealing once again, first, with a suspect,
then dealing with a witness?

MR. CABANA: If the interviewis
bei ng conducted in the context of their
investigation for their own process, then | would

submt that their | egal requirements would apply.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: So the foreign
| egal requirements would apply, not the Charter of
Ri ght s?

MR. CABANA: Not the Charter of
Ri ght s.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. And what
if the foreign nation abroad has the person
det ai ned and says to the Canadi an agency, "We have
this guy or woman det ai ned, Canadi an, woul d you
i ke us to ask any questions for you?" Wuld the
Charter apply in that circunstance?

MR. CABANA: Again, like | say,
this is something that would be open to debate and
in a situation like that consultation would take
pl ace with our | egal advisors to see the best
course of action and whet her or not we need to
concern ourselves with the Charter.

Ri ght now | would say it's not a
clear -- | couldn't give you a clear answer on
that. M inclination would be that, yes, it would
apply.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Let us nove now
to when the RCMP is dealing with countries with
poor human rights records and go to tab 31, which

is the policy entitled "Information Sources”, and
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go to section M, which can be found at page 17 of
t he tab.

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: This section
deals with foreign liaison, and | would like to
just focus on two or three paragraphs.

If you go to the next page under
paragraph M 1l.c, it states:

"The Department of Foreign
Affairs and I nternational
Trade formalizes agreements
bet ween t he RCMP and foreign
police, security or
intelligence agencies.”

And M 3. a provides:

"The RCMP will not become

i nvol ved or appear to be
invol ved in any activity that
m ght be considered a

viol ation of the rights of an
i ndi vi dual, unless there is a
need to conmply with the
follow ng international
conventions:"

And then five conventions are
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t herein set out.
MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Finally, in M3.b
it states:
"The di scl osure of
informati on to an agency of a
foreign government that does
not share Canada's respect
for democratic or human
ri ghts may be considered if
it:
1. is justified because of
Canadi an security or
| aw- enf orcement interests,
2. can be controlled by
specific terns and
condi ti ons, and
3. does not have a negative
human ri ghts connotation.”
And that particular policy we wil
come back to in the course of your evidence.
Finally, Inspector Cabana, if we
could just go then to tab 34, this is the policy
respecting national security investigations which

was in existence at the point in time that we are
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going to be dealing with today.

The first question | would have
for you, M. Cabana, is whether this particular
policy, that is, the policy relating to national
security investigations, applied to the
investigati on of Project A- OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: No, sir, it did not.
We were involved in a crimnal investigation.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. And we
will come back to that.

There are just certain points in
t he policy, the national security policy, that |
woul d refer to.

First of all in B.2 on the first
page is deals with the MOU between CSIS and the
RCMP, once again which is part of this Book of
Document s and which we revi ewed with Deputy
Comm ssi oner Loeppky.

C.1 provides that:

"Menmbers will not gather
informati on on or investigate
organi zati ons engaged in

[ awful activity."

"Menmbers will restrict
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i nvestigations to persons
wi t hi n organi zations

all egedly comm tting crim nal
acts and will not
unnecessarily expand

i nvestigations to the

organi zations thensel ves."

And then it goes in paragraph D.1

and provides that:

That

"For an effective National
Security Investigations
Program all information
concerning real and potenti al
nati onal security threats
must be entered promptly on

t he Secure Crim nal

| nf ormati on System .."

is something called SCI'S, and

we will come back to that when we are dealing with

the informati on or data systems that Project

A- OCANADA had.

| n paragraph E, we have the

mandate in respect of national security

investigations, which | |eave for counsel to read.

In E.2 we have the reporting

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N RBP BRP R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

7822

structure, and we see that there is a reporting
structure to national headquarters, and we'l|
conmpare that to the reporting relationship with
Proj ect A- OCANADA.

| am not going to read these but
poi nt out to counsel that they are rel evant.

E.2.b deals with the foreign
l'iai son officer.

E.2.c deals with the RCMP/ CSI S
l'iai son officer, as do the remaining paragraphs of
t he policy.

As | say, this is the policy that
was in effect at the material time.

The next two or three tabs show
t he evolution of that policy to its current state
t oday, which can be found behind tabs 37 and 38.

| would |ike to nmove on,

M. Cabana, now to the mandate of Project
A- OCANADA.

You told us before, in respect of
Proj ect Shock, that the three-part mandate was
prevention, intelligence, and prosecution. |Is it
fair to say that that would be the same mandate
whi ch existed in respect of Project A-OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: In terms of the
conposition -- let's just deal a little nore with
t he mandate before we go on to the conposition of
A- OCANADA.

We understand that originally
A- OCANADA was created to assist Project OCanada,
which is the Toronto unit. |Is that correct?

MR. CABANA: That's correct, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: And very shortly
after the creation of Project OCanada, it becane
known that there were certain targets in the
Ottawa area. |s that correct?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And | understand
that that is what gave rise to the creation of
Proj ect A- OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: Well, the actual
creation of Project A-OCANADA stemmed fromthe
request for assistance that was received fromthe
Toronto group. Over a very short period of tine,
as you pointed out, there was targets fromthe
Ottawa area that were identified, and the team
became aut ononmous.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: It becane

aut ononous over tinme?
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MR. CABANA: Over a period of
time, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And in respect of
t he focus of A-OCANADA, | understand that there
was a financial transaction focus.

| s that correct?

MR. CABANA: The focus, the main
focus of our investigation dealt with a very
strong international financial conponent.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght. And al so,
obviously, with terrorist activity as well?

MR. CABANA: Very nuch so, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The question that
| would have is that here in the "A" Division we
al ready have sonmething called the NSIS that is
mandated to deal with national security concerns,
and I'mjust wondering why the "A" Division
deci ded not to give this particular project to the
NSI'S rather than as it did, create a separate
project?

MR. CABANA: Well, that decision
was made at the Crim nal Operations Officer |evel.
The decision, fromny understandi ng, was based
mostly on the fact that, as | stated, NSIS were

responsi ble, still by the beginning of October,
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for the influx of the tips in relation to Project
Shock. NSIS, still at that point in time, had a

| arge contingent of members that had been seconded
to assist with these tips, and they were not in a
position to take over managenent of a major
crimnal investigation.

That, coupled with the fact that,
as | pointed out, the NSIS unit pre-9/11 were not
focused on conducting major crim nal
investigati ons and did not have some of the
expertise, especially inrelation to financi al
types of investigations that was required.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. And this, we will
call it a task force, was created, as we heard
earlier, sometime in early October.

Who put the teamtogether? Who
put Project A-OCANADA together?

MR. CABANA: | guess it was a
combi nati on of efforts. The crim nal operations
office made arrangements to bring the majority of
the partners to the table and | ooked after
secondment of necessary resources fromthose
agencies. | myself | ooked at gathering specific
i ndividuals fromwi thin the division based on

their expertise or expertise that | felt was
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required.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And what was t hat
expertise that was required, did you feel?

MR. CABANA: Well, it was actually
a wi de range of expertise. Of course, the
financial aspect of the investigation dictated
t hat we needed individuals with a strong financi al
background, so there were menbers from our
commercial crime unit that were seconded. There
was a strong contingent fromthe I POC unit, and
that's sinmply because of the fact that those are
t he individuals | was working with and |I knew
their capabilities.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: There was i ndividuals
fromour inmmgration section that were seconded to
t he group, crimnal intelligence, drug unit. Of
course we had individuals also, because of the
nati onal security aspect of the investigation,
fromNSIS that were seconded to the team

We had | egal advisors from Justice
t hat were al so seconded to the team In fact,

t hey were the same | egal advisors fromthe | POC
uni t .

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Did they continue
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on, as you did, as being |l egal advisors to the
| POC unit?

MR. CABANA: Yes, on the I POC
unit, | had a significant number of |egal advisors
fromJustice Departnment that were part of the
unit, so they were able to carry or | ook after
both teans.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: As far as the
NSI' S person is concerned, | understand that there
was one person from NSIS that was dedicated to
Proj ect A- OCANADA and remained there fromits
outset until after you left in February 2002.

MR. CABANA: That's correct. From
t he inception of the team there was one menber
fromNSIS whom | felt probably had the best |evel
of expertise that was required for our team He
was seconded fulltime to the team and over the
progression of the file, other people fromNSIS
j oi ned.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But he woul d
agree with me, at |east fromwhat you are saying,
t hat the main focus was the expertise in financi al
transactions, and that's why the bul k of the
people came fromthe | POC?

MR. CABANA: Yes, that's correct.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now, in respect
of other agencies -- we know that there were other
agencies; this is an integrated police unit. |
understand that there were participants fromthe
Ontario Provincial Police?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And | understand
t here was somebody fromthe Ottawa Police Service?

MR. CABANA: More than one
i ndi vidual fromeach of the agencies.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. We know t hat two
i ndi viduals, one fromthe O tawa Police Service
and one fromthe Ontario Provincial Police, were
t he co-managers of the project who directly
reported to you?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And then there
wer e ot her people from Customs, from --

MR. CABANA: Revenue Canada.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Revenue Canada,
right.

MR. CABANA: That joined the team
as wel | .

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. And at its

hei ght, could you help us, how many investigators
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woul d there have been in Project A- OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: Actual investigators,
| woul d say between approximtely 20. We had
upwar ds of 40 people on the team That is
i ncludi ng, of course, support staff and case
managers.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: And Project
A- OCANADA was | ocated somewhere in Ottawa,
obvi ousl y?

MR. CABANA: Yes, it was |ocated
at the "A" Division Headquarters.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: A question that |
woul d have: Were there any Musliminvestigators
on Project A- OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: Yes, there was.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | understand
there was one fromthe Ottawa Police Service who
stayed for a period of time and | eft.

MR. CABANA: That's correct, there
was one individual fromthe Ottawa Police Service
t hat was seconded to the teamfor a period of
time. There was al so individuals from Slreté du
Québec that were seconded.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And | understand

t hat those persons fromthe Slireté acted as
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transl ators, analyzers of information that
required -- it was information that had to be
transl ated from Arabi c.

| s that correct?

MR. CABANA: Well, they were -- in
their day job, | guess, they were investigators.
When t hey joined our team because of the need for
anal ysing and putting the information in proper
context, documents in Arabic, they were assigned
that task. But they were part of the
investigative team

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: A final question
in this regard. The person fromthe Ottawa Police
Service, | understand that he only stayed for a
short period of time?

MR. CABANA: Well, yes, a short
period of time. Several nmonths, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: I would like to
move on to the training of the menmbers of
A- OCANADA.

First of all, we reviewed -- and
maybe we can do it quickly now -- with Deputy
Comm ssi oner Loeppky the national security
trai ning program which can be found in his Book

of Documents, Exhibit P-12, at tab 45.
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We heard evidence in respect of
this, Inspector Cabana; that this is a two-week
course, a 10-day course, that has been put
t oget her by the RCMP in respect of national
security investigations.

|f you have it there, its purpose
is descri bed at page 4, for exanple.

It says:

"The purpose of the Nati onal
Security Enforcenment Course
is to provide course

candi dates with an
under st andi ng of
intelligence-led policing in
t he context of the national
priorities of terrorism
This course is designed so

t hat persons working on
investigations relating to
terrorismacquire

i ntroductory, current

knowl edge and skills to
standardi ze and increase the
| evel of expertise of field

personnel required to perform

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »dM W N - O

7832

t hese duties.”

You can see, as | say, on the next
page that it is a 10-day course, and the syll abus,
or the cases or the subject matters that are
studi ed can be found at page 9 and foll ow ng.

There's an overvi ew of the
nati onal security programthat is given. There's
somet hing on crimnal intelligence and threat
assessment, something on anti-gl obalization
crimnal protest nmovements, the psychol ogy of
terrorism cultures, Mddle East and Islamc
perspectives, the roots of terrorism terrorist
t hreats, the national counter-terrorist plan,
terrorist funding, and the financial investigation
branch, and so on and so forth.

As | say, we reviewed this program
with Deputy Comm ssioner Loeppky, and woul d ask
you, as the officer in charge of Project
A- OCANADA, had you taken this course?

MR. CABANA: Mysel f?

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Yes.

MR. CABANA: No.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Had any menbers
of Project A-OCANADA taken that course?

MR. CABANA: Yes, well, especially
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the menmbers fromthe NSIS unit that were seconded.
Of course, they had received the training.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And that woul d be
t he one person that was dedi cated and the ot her
persons that would rotate through?

MR. CABANA: Well, there was
actually three individuals, including the person
t hat came on the teaminitially.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: There were three
i ndi vidual s who were fulltime, but they didn't al
start at the beginning. And there was another
i ndi vidual that was in on and off, | guess,
because he still had NSIS responsibilities.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So that would
mean, if you had 20 investigators, that about

t hree or four may have taken the national security

course?
MR. CABANA: Approxi mately, yes.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: The next question
that | would have is -- and | want to just focus
on you, and then we will go to the other menmbers

of Project A-OCANADA -- whether you had any
experience dealing with foreign agencies before

the creation of A- OCANADA?
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MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, | did.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And which agency
was t hat?

MR. CABANA: Internationally?

MR. CAVALLUzzZO: Well, dealing
first with the United States.

MR. CABANA: The FBI, U. S.
Custons, nostly.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And in respect
of -- this is a question that | think is not
probl ematic, but just hold on until | ask the
guestion and give someone an opportunity to
interject.

What woul d your nor mal
relationship with the ClIA be before the creation
of A- OCANADA in your role as an RCMP i nvestigator?

MR. FOTHERGI LL: There is no
obj ection, and perhaps | can provi de sonme
clarification.

M. Cavalluzzo is certainly at
liberty to tal k about the policy of dealing with
any agency, much as Deputy Comm ssioner Loeppky
did in the public forum

Where the objection lies is the

particul ar involvement of particular agencies in
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t he A- OCANADA i nvestigation.

MR. CAVALLUzZO: Okay. $So you can
respond to that, M. Cabana.

MR. CABANA: And we are talking
about prior to 9/11?

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Prior to 9/11,
yes.

MR. CABANA: | had no rel ationship
with the CIA.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And would that be
true as well, to your know edge, with respect to
t he ot her menbers of A- OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: Not all of them
Some of them had had prior working relationship
with the CIA.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: 1In regard to you,
bef ore we nove on to the other menbers, did you
have any training in respect of human rights
issues that may flow froma national security
i nvestigation?

MR. CABANA: There is no human
rights training per se available within the RCWP.
There is al ways conponents within, | would submt,
practically every investigative or operational

type of courses within the RCVMP dealing with
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Charter issues.

But with respect to human rights
type of training, |I'mnot aware of any.

MR. CAVALLUzZO: Wuld you have
had any training in respect of the human rights
records of countries that you may deal with now
that, as you say, the borders cane down, and it
was a gl obal war against terror, so that you woul d
be dealing with different foreign countries? Were
you trained in respect of the human rights records
of these countries you may be dealing with?

MR. CABANA: Again, |'mnot aware
of any training available in the RCMP dealing
specifically with human rights records of foreign
countries.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: We will come to
this, but in respect of that you would rely upon
t he expertise of other agencies in that regard?

MR. CABANA: Any time that we deal
with foreign agencies, there's always consultation
process that takes place with our headquarters and
with other governnment agencies. And | would rely
on these experts, yes.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. Did you

have any training in respect of Muslimculture,
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val ues, practices, and so on?

MR. CABANA: Again, to ny

knowl edge, there is no training available in the

RCMP with respect to Muslimcustoms. There are

cross-cul tural
di fferent ethni

rel ationships.

types of courses that deal with
c groups and beliefs and

But | think I should probably

poi nt out at this time that, first of all, this

investigation was not focusing on the Muslim

community -- far fromit. The individuals that

wer e subj ect of

t he investigation were identified

to us, and those were the individuals we were

i nvestigating.

courses, these

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Right. These

cross-cultural courses that you

refer to, did you take any of then?

did.

take any traini

MR. CABANA: No, | don't believe |

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Finally, did you
ng in respect of Bill C-367

| understand there is a three-day

course given to the RCVMP nenmbers.

MR. CABANA: No. Bill C-36

training flowed again from9/11. It becane

avail able, | would say, probably around April of
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2002, if I remember correctly, April-May. And as
with any new type of training initiative, seating
was limted, and | ensured that if we were going
to be assigned seats to participate in the
training, it would be provided to investigators.

Of course, when C-36 was enacted,
| reviewed C-36 and we had numerous di scussi ons
with Justice, with our advisors, over the inpact
of C-36.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: I would Iike to
move on to your menbers, and that is whether -- we
have tal ked about your members and whet her they
had taken the national security investigation
course, and we have dealt with that.

Now what about in respect of
training on Muslimval ues, practices, and so on?
Your answer woul d be the same; that is, that there
are no such courses, there are just these
cross-cultural courses that may be offered?

MR. CABANA: Exactly. There are
cross-cul tural courses offered. Some of the
menmbers on the team had been on those courses. W
had NSI'S menbers on our teamthat had -- and you
have to go back to the structure, the conposition,

of the team
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Like | said initially, when the
t eam was put together, individuals were selected
specifically based on the expertise that they
could bring to the team That was also true with
respect to investigative capabilities as well as
knowl edge of national security issues and with the
participation of Musliminvestigators. The
concern, of course, was to make sure that we
interpreted everything properly and we didn't take
any action that would be offensive to the
communi ty.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Did you try to
ensure that your menbers or the menbers of Project
A- OCANADA t ook whatever courses were avail able
relating to Muslimvalues, culture, and practices,
or did you feel that that wasn't relevant because
this was, in your view, a financial investigation?

MR. CABANA: Not at all. Not at
all. First of all, formal Muslimtraining, it's
just not there.

There were informal sessions that
were put in place. And |I'mgoing by recollection
here, but | believe that some of these workshops,
if we can termthemthat, were initiated by CID.

Some of themwere initiated by "A" Division, just
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totry to gain a better understandi ng, where we
had | ecturers conme in for an hour, two hours,
t hree hours.

In these circunmstances, | would

rel ease nenmbers to attend. But | was not in the

position to be able to release all investigators
because we were still operating in a situation of
crisis.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: These courses,
did you ever suggest that there should be sone
kind of formalized training in respect of --

MR. CABANA: | was involved in
managi ng a crim nal investigation. Again, the
focus of our investigation was the conmm ssion of a
crimnal offence. Whether a crimnal offence was
commtted by sonebody fromthe Muslimcommunity,
Chi nese community, or a Canadian comunity, it
really didn't make any difference. W were
| ooki ng at the comm ssion of an offence.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. In terns
of training on Bill C-36, the three-day course,
was it the same kind of thing? Those that coul d
be rel eased took the course; those that
couldn't --

MR. CABANA: Well, that training,
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like | said, had limted seating, so it wasn't a
situation where | could rel ease everybody to go
attend the training. |If we were provided with
three positions to attend the training, that's how
many people | sent.

Headquarters, when C-36 was
enacted -- and | believe it was done through
Justice -- prepared a training and an i nformation
package, if you want, with a CD and a manual .

That was distributed to the menbers.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That just
rem nded nme that Deputy Comm ssioner Loeppky
stated in his contextual evidence that there was a
bookl et that was produced by another police force
called "Islam & Muslims: \What Police Officers
Need to Know'. That's at tab 47 of the Book of
Docunent s.

| woul d ask you whet her you had
t he opportunity to read that particul ar bookl et.

MR. CABANA: | don't remember
seeing this book, but | see here its copyright is
dated 2002, so maybe it wasn't avail able at the
time. |t probably became avail able during the
course of 2002, but | don't remember seeing it.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Just before we
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move off training, there are two e-mails | would
ask you to identify, which we reviewed with you.
--- Pause

THE COMM SSI ONER: Shoul d these be
mar ked toget her or separately, M. Cavalluzzo?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: I believe
separately.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Okay.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Could you tell
us, Comm ssioner -- they are both dated the sane
day, November 7th. [If we deal with the first
one - -

MR. CABANA: Sir, if I may, this
one here -- and | don't have any numbers on it.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Let's get some
nunmbers on them before we go any further.

MR. CABANA: Well, this is a
duplicate of this.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Oh, they are
duplicates?

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: ©Oh, | see.
That's correct.

MR. CABANA: The bottom part of
this one, and the top part --

THE COWMM SSI ONER: So we only need
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t he | onger one.

MR. CABANA: | believe you do.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Good one. That
will be P-169.

EXH BI' T NO. P-169: E- mai |
dated 7 November 2001

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Just to be clear,
the recipient list in the Iong one has been
redacted, so you should crib the names from
t hat --

THE COWM SSI ONER: Okay. We will
make the shorter one P-170 so it's on the record.
Go ahead.

EXH BI' T NO. P-170: E- mai |
dated 7 November 2001

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Inspector Cabana,
let's deal first with 169. Exhibit 169 we
referred to as the |l onger one?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: It is in French.
| wonder if you m ght read that for us in English,
if you could translate that?

MR. CABANA: In English?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Yes. | would do

it, but we mght be here all day.
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MR. CABANA: | will start with the

bottom part --

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Yes, start with

t he bottompart. That's the |ogical --
THE COWM SSI ONER: 1t's dated
November 7th, 2001, first of all.
s that right?
MR. CABANA: Novenber 7, 2001,
12: 02, sir.
THE COWMM SSI ONER: Thank you.
ahead.
MR. CABANA: It says:
"As you know, the
investigati on we are
presently conducting with
respect to terrorism in

particul ar M ddl e East

at

Go

groups, led to a realignment

of investigators who aren't

necessarily famliar with the

Muslimculture, the Islamc

religion, for exanple, the

names and surnanmes which can

|l ead to confusion for certain

North American investigators.

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B P R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

7845

| have requested -- and it's
bl anked out -- of CSIS to
identify an individual,
resource individual, who
coul d conduct a two-hour
presentation for

i nvestigators and our
partners of the investigative

group..."

And that would be in relation to
the NSI'S investigative group.
Then this is bl anked.

" ... identified a person
empl oyed by CSIS who is a
specialist in Mddle Eastern
affairs. | would like to
know i f you are interested in
participating in this
presentation. | tentatively
schedul ed or reserved the
audi torium at the Canadi an
Police Coll ege for next
Tuesday, November 13t h,

bet ween 8 and noon."

And the bottom basically says:
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"Pl ease confirmthe number of
partici pants so that | can
make the necessary

arrangenmnents.”

The top part, which is again

at 1313, is a response.

It says:

"Tuesday is not good for us
because we have ei ght drug

i nvestigators who will be

t aki ng part in searches in
relation to Project Angle.
It's also the only day where
we can focus on Project
Shock. 14th will be
debriefings and equi pment
will be distributed and the
15th the G20 is slated to
start. In addition, at the
request of M. Couture, we
have identified a Concordia
Uni versity professor who
coul d be an i ndependent
consultant for A" Division

who coul d al so conduct
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presentations to our menmbers.
We intended on doing this
after G20. | contacted
somebody from procurement
unit to obtain exanples or
precedents of contracts for
such negoti ated agreenment.
l'"mwaiting for a response.

| will consult with

M. Lant hier and advise."

That's basically in a nutshel
what it says.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: M. Lanthier is
t he head of NSIS at that time, of the "A"

Di vi si on?

MR. CABANA: Yes, he would be as
of Novenber, 2001.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Did you have your
members participate in this in terms of the offer
t hat was made?

MR. CABANA: | believe we did,
yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: How many nmenbers
woul d have - -

MR. CABANA: | have no i dea. Thi s
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of fer woul d have been transmtted or relayed to
t he team | eaders who woul d have sel ect ed
i ndi vidual s based on their availability.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: What about this
reference to this person from Concordia University
who coul d act as an i ndependent consultant for "A"
Di vision. Was that ever done?

MR. CABANA: | have no idea.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Certainly not to
your know edge?

MR. CABANA: Not to my know edge,
no.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The only other
guestion would be: Do you know how many -- you
said this would have been done by the team
| eaders, but do you know how many officers in
Proj ect A- OCANADA woul d have attended this
particul ar --

MR. CABANA: No, sir, | don't.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: 1In regard to the
reporting structure of Project A-OCANADA, we
revi ewed the reporting structure of the NSIS,
whi ch subsequently became an | NSET, | believe,
| nspector, in April of 20027

MR. CABANA: | believe it was
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April of 2002.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: We have deal't
with that. Now | would like to tal k about the
reporting structure in respect of A-OCANADA and
per haps | ook at an organi zational chart, which can
be found at Exhibit P-85, Volunme 1, tab 14.

This is an organi zational chart.
And in terms of the actors at the material time,
the CO, the Commandi ng Officer, of "A" Division
was Dawson Hovey?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO. The CROPS Officer
was Ant oi ne Couture?

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The Assi stant
CROPS Of ficers were Gary Cl ement and Wayne WAt son?

MR. CABANA: It was Gary Cl ement,
and upon his transfer Wayne Watson assumed his
responsibilities.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Do you recal
when Gary Clement left? | understand it was
around April of 2002.

s that fair?

MR. CABANA: Yes, | believe
Mar ch- April of 2002.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: And then, as you
say, it became Wayne WAt son

At the next |evel, that would
be -- is that right -- the Officer in Charge,
yoursel f?

MR. CABANA: | believe it would
be, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And then we
understand that there were what | have been
referring to as two co-nmanagers, one fromthe OPP
and one fromthe OPS, the Ottawa Police Service?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: as you said, we
see that you have | egal counsel there, senior
| egal counsel, from Justice.

We have a | ead investigator,
affiant. We had that exhibit, the ITO, which was
filed this norning.

I n respect of the reporting
rel ati onship which Project A-OCANADA had -- and
Proj ect A- OCANADA of course would, in ternms of
this hierarchy or structure, would start fromyou
and down. | want to know what the reporting
relationship was.

Who did you report to as the
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Officer in Charge of Project A-OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: Project A-OCANADA was
a crimnal investigation and, as such, was
reporting directly to Crim nal Operations Officer.
My direct report was M. Cl ement.

MR. CAVALLUzZO: Did you have a
reporting relationship at all to CID, which had
responsibility or jurisdiction over national
security investigations?

MR. CABANA: | did not have a
direct reporting relationship with CID. Because
of the national security connotation of the
investigation, CID was briefed on a daily basis
with all devel opments.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And that was done
by giving them copies of daily situation reports
and so on and nore inmportant reports?

MR. CABANA: Yes, very much so.

It was al so done in their attendance at
investigators meeting, periodic attendance,
whenever they were available, their participation
at multi-agency meetings. And there was al so
direct reporting relationship, if you want,

bet ween the crim nal operations officer and CID

MR. CAVALLUZZO: In terms of your
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relationship with Project OCanada, you have told
us that Project A-OCANADA began really as an

assi stance project to OCanada, and then that
subsequently evol ved into autononmy or independence
from Project A- OCANADA.

| s that correct?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And | understand
t hat there were some conpatibility problems in
terms of your information systems that A- OCANADA
had and that Project OCanada had.

What | would like to do is dea
with first the informati on systens or data
informati on systens that you operated within
Proj ect A- OCANADA and briefly describe each
system

MR. CABANA: Proj ect A- OCANADA,

t he case management systemthat we inplemented for
that file involved a number of different software.
The main software, the one that we were using as a
case managenent tool, basically to manage tasks
assigned to investigators and diary dates and
investigative action, is called E&R I11.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

MR. CABANA: It's an in-house or
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RCMP- devel oped software which was devel oped
initially as a result of the Swiss Air disaster to
manage exhi bits and over a period of time was
modi fi ed and became an actual case management
system It's a relational database.

We were al so using software call ed
SUPERText from a conpany | believe in Markham
SuperGravity, which is again basically the same
thing. It's a document management software which,
in some areas of the country, evolved to becone a
case managenent tool. It was not a relational
dat abase.

What we were using was SUPERText
to manage the docunments that were comng into the
possessi on of the project, and we were using E&R
to manage the tasks assigned to investigators.

The two software are conpati ble; they work
t oget her.

Then there is other software that
are linked to this for analytical purposes. |-2,
| -Bridge is linked to this, and al so Adobe for
di scl osure.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The other system
t hough, that | would like to refer to -- you have

told us about E&R, SUPERText, but | understand as
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wel |l you were uploading i nformation to what we
referred to before as SCI'S, the secure
informati on - -

MR. CABANA: Again, that was to
address the need to ensure that CID headquarters
was fully briefed with investigative devel opnments.
Every day we were submtting what we call daily
SI TREPs, which basically are situational reports,
over what has happened on that specific day. That
was faxed to CID. 1t was also uploaded to SCIS.

SCIS is a national repository for
national security information.

As well, the E&R portion of our
dat abase was being upl oaded on a daily basis to
SCIS to permt headquarters CID to be able to
guestion and review all the investigative steps
t hat were being taken.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | understand that
SCISis a systemto which NSI'S, subsequently
| NSETs, had access to?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Proj ect A- OCANADA
di d not have access to SCIS ot her than through the
intervention of the dedicated person who was from

t he NSI S?
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MR. CABANA: That is correct. W
di d not have direct access to one of those
termnals, but with the NSI'S personnel that we
had, acting as liaison or coordinators between
NSI'S and us, we ensured through the NSI'S personnel
t hat the data was upl oaded.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: 1In respect of the
"O'" Division, did they use the sane three systens
t hat you have just descri bed?

MR. CABANA: No. "O' Division
used SUPERText as a case managenent tool to manage
t he docunments as well as the tasks that were being
assigned.

MR. CAVALLUzZO: Did this cause
any problems for Project A-OCANADA in
communi cating with "O" Division?

MR. CABANA: Yes and no. The
probl em wasn't created because of the different
case managenent tools being used. The problem was
created because of the security classification of
the i nvestigations. Treasury Board guidelines
prevented the creation of a network, if you want,
bet ween the Toronto team and our team

In the context of crim nal

investigations that are operating, and we | ooked
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at the different classification |levels that are
classified or designated as Protected B, for
exanmpl e, Protected A, Protected C, we have the
capability of creating a closed system where
investigative teanms anywhere in the country can
wor k together on the same file. When you are
dealing with Secret/ Top Secret information, that
capability sinmply doesn't exist, or at |east
didn't at the tinme.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And did OCanada
operate on the classified systemof Top Secret,
Secret and Confidential ?

MR. CABANA: Initially, we didn't.
Initially we operated at the Protected B | evel for
a number of reasons, including the fact that we
wer e, again, conducting a crimnal investigation.
Crim nal investigations are classified or
desi gnated as Protected B | evel, sinply because of
the adm ssibility of the evidence in court |ater,
as well as the fact that the case management tools
t hat we had in place did not allowit to operate
at any higher classification |evel.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: What about "O'

Di vision. At the beginning were they operating on

the classified system of Top Secret, Secret and
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Confidential, or on the Protected B --

MR. CABANA: | wouldn't be able to
tell you. | have no idea.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: You don't know.

MR. CABANA: | don't know.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: I would like to
move on then to relationships with other agencies,
and in particular I want to focus in on the Syrian
Mlitary Intelligence.

| am going to take you through the
hi story of that, and I'mgoing to start by filing
an exhibit.

--- Pause

MR. CAVALLUZZO: This is, |
understand, the first occasion that you are aware
of where there was sonme suggestion that there
m ght be a sharing arrangement with the Syrian
Mlitary Intelligence?

The clerk will give you a copy of

It's dated January 1, 2002.

THE COMM SSI ONER: P-171.
EXH BI T NO. P-171: Fax dat ed
2 January 2002

MR. CAVALLUZZO: We have heard

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B P R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »dM W N - O

7858

some public evidence of this fromM. Pillarell a.
It relates to an individual, whose name we need
not refer to, but it's fromthe liaison officer in
Ronme.

The Rome |iaison officer, just to
rem nd us, Inspector, had jurisdiction over Syria.
s that correct?

MR. CABANA: That's correct, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. And at
this particular point in time the LO was Steve
Covey, in 20027

MR. CABANA: At that time, yes, it
woul d have been.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. What this
document states -- the document itself fromthe LO
is dated January 2, 2002, and it's fromhimto the
Ol C of OCanada.

It says:

"As per message dated
Decenmber 28, 2001, regarding
t he above-noted subject, on
January 2, 2002, | received a
call from Ambassador
Pillarella of our enbassy in

Damascus. He advi ses t hat
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has received i nformati on
t hat on Decenber 31 ... is
bei ng detained. Was advi sed
t hat we should not concern
ourselves with the case
because he is Syrian. The
Ambassador thanked his
counterpart for the
informati on. Our embassy in
Syria has been treating this
case as a consular matter and
as such will be sending a
di plomatic note to the Syrian
government requesting that a
consul ar agent from our
embassy be allowed to see
this person on humanitarian
grounds and because we know
he is a Canadian citizen."

in essence, our embassy wil

pursue this case as a standard consul ar case.

And then, finally:

"Ambassador Pillarella
advi ses he has or wil

shortly brief both his
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consul ar and intelligence
people in Ottawa, DFAIT
headquarters, given that they
are pursuing this as a
consular matter. |If you wi sh
to discuss this matter
further, please do not
hesitate to contact the
writer."

s this the first occasion, to
your know edge, that there was some kind of
buddi ng rel ati onship or prospective relationship
or contact with the Syrian Mlitary Intelligence?

MR. CABANA: That contact did not
originate fromour team It originated between
t he enbassy in Damascus and Syrian authorities.
It's a report that was sent to "O' Division and
believe ultimtely was transferred to "A"

Di vi si on.

MR. CAVALLUZZO. After it was
transferred to "A" Division, was there anything
done as a result of this particular fax message?

MR. CABANA: Yes, there was. |
believe it was on the 9th of January where there

was a fax that was prepared by the Assistant
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Crim nal Operations Officer and was forwarded back
to the liaison officer in Rome.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Do you know t he
content? What was the point of the fax?

MR. FOTHERGI LL: Comm ssi oner,
before the wi tness answers, | wonder if | could
just state some paraneters froma nati onal
security confidentiality point of view

We don't object to certain
investigative avenues being disclosed as
possi bilities, but whether the investigative
avenues were in fact pursued and whet her they
proved to be productive is subject to national
security confidentiality.

Let me clarify that further.

What | antici pate we may be about
to embark upon is a discussion of whether it was
going to be possible for nmembers of "A" Division
to interview certain people in Syria -- and |I'm
excluding fromthis M. Arar -- and,
alternatively, to send questions that the Syrian
authorities m ght ask on behalf of the police.

So di scussions internal to the
RCMP about whet her this was a good i dea and the

process that should be followed in order to pursue
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this, we can talk about in this forum \hether,
ultimately, these investigative steps were taken
or whether, ultimately, these investigative steps
produced anything, is subject to national security
confidentiality.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

| nspect or Cabana, do you
understand that? We will proceed slowy --

MR. CABANA: Yes, | believe | do.

MR. CAVALLUzzZO: Okay, good.

So a nessage was sent. What was
the thinking in respect of that nessage that was
sent back to the LOin Rome?

MR. CABANA: The purpose of the
message was likely to informthe |liaison officer
of "A" Division's interest in the person that was
presently detai ned.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. I
understand that in July of that year, July of
2002, there was a neeting at CID on July 4th?

MR. CABANA: On July 4th, yes,
there was a neeting at CID.

There was a -- if we are tal king
about the relationship with Syrian mlitary -- or

not the relationship but the potential prospect of
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a relationship, there was a series of meetings

t hat took place starting from | would submt,
this correspondence in January and right through
to late 2002.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. But the
meeting on July the 4th, | understand at
headquarters, related to an individual who you
wer e advi sed was now in detention in Egypt?

MR. CABANA: Yes, that's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And did the LOin
Rome al so have jurisdiction over Egypt?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, he did.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | understand as
wel |l that on July 8th there was a further neeting
bet ween DFAIT, CSIS, Justice and the CID to
di scuss certain matters regardi ng the person that
was referred to at the July 4th --

MR. CABANA: That's correct. That
goes to the consultation process that was
i mpl emented, like | said, starting with this,
where we were exploring -- and, again, it goes to
our mandate to make sure that we | ook at every
avail abl e option to us.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: And in order to do
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that, there had to be a consultation process with
ot her agenci es.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: |If we go to your
notes at page 44 --

THE COMM SSI ONER: I n the bottom
ri ght-hand corner?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Yes, at the
bottom ri ght-hand corner.

MR. COPELAND: Sorry, but where
are you in --

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Actually, we are
going to start at 37 of 68, in the | ower
ri ght-hand portion.

And we see at the top of the page
that there is reference to M. Covey, who we know
is the LOin Rome, and then at the bottom of the
page it says -- it is now July 10th, 2002, about
10: 30 in the norning:

"Contacted Insp. Covey, LO
Rome, and discussed fax
message received this
date..."

And |I' m wondering if you could
pi ck that up because | cannot read your writing.

MR. CABANA: You said this woul d
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be page 447

MR. CAVALLUZZO: No, |'m sorry,
37. It's the entry at the bottomthere at 10: 30,
if you could just read that for us.

MR. CABANA: "Contacted Insp.

Covey, LO Rome, and discussed
fax message received this
date and prospect of

gai ning..."

And the rest is redacted.

"M. Covey will be back in
Canada next week and wil
meet with the investigative
teamto further discuss.”

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

MR. CABANA: If | may, this makes
reference to discussions on potentially gaining
access to individuals.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So there are
really two things here: one is gaining access to
informati on; the other is gaining access to
i ndi vi dual s.

So you are considering both at
this point in time in respect of the --

MR. CABANA: Yes, we are.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: \When you received
this fax on July 10th and your contact with Covey,
did you brief or discuss the situation with
anybody i n DFAIT?

MR. CABANA: Yes, actually,

i medi ately following the call with M. Covey, |
contacted M. Gould at DFAIT and briefed himon
t he nature of the conversation | had with

M . Covey.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. And M. Gould is
in ISl of DFAIT?

MR. CABANA: Yes, he is.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Was he your
normal contact in respect of these kinds of
prospective foreign relationships or contacts with
DFAI T?

MR. CABANA: Yes. There was three
i ndi viduals that | dealt with nostly; but, yes,

M. Gould was definitely the one | probably spoke
wi th most often.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. And the
ot her two, just so that we know who they are?

MR. CABANA: It woul d be
M . Heat herington and M. Saunders.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: If we nove to
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July 16th at page --

MR. CABANA: If I may, sir?

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Yes.

MR. CABANA: Also, follow ng the
conversation with M. Gould, | consulted and
briefed the "A" Division Crim nal Operations
Officer.

MR. CAVALLUZZO. And that woul d be
M. Couture?

MR. CABANA: That woul d be
M. Couture.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Did he advise you
to do anything in respect of your contacts with
Covey?

MR. CABANA: Well, | advised him
of the nature of the conversation and the fact
t hat M. Covey would be visiting us next week, and
during our conversation M. Couture suggested that
we | ook at the prospect of sharing information
with Syrian authorities to further the
i nvesti gation.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Now, if we go to
page 40 for July 16th, which would be the day that
M. Covey attends -- do you see that, at the entry

for ten o' clock?
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MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Could you read

MR. CABANA: "Meeting with
| nsp. Stephen Covey, ex-LO
for Rome..."

At that point in time, M. Covey

had been reassigned to other duties.

"..along with ... and ... to
di scuss options in relation

to access to ... M. Covey

provi ded a brief overview of
situation..."

And there is nmore text redacted.
"... and his efforts to
broker a deal. M. Covey
advised that in his view ..
will never be returning to
Canada. We subsequently
di scussed protocol for
sharing of project info with
Syrians to reciprocate.

Notes of this neeting taken

by ...
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Do you recall who
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attended this particular nmeeting with M. Covey?
Was it just yourself?

MR. CABANA: No. | believe at
t hat meeting were the two team managers fromthe
project and | believe there were representatives
fromJustice who al so attended.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: |If we go to the
next page, page 41 of 68, it | ooks |like the sanme
date for July 16th. There's an entry at 11:05
that | would ask you to read in.

MR. CABANA: 11: 05:

"At CROPS to discuss neeting
of yesterday with Insp.

Covey. Both Supt. Watson and
C/ Supt. Couture were busy."

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. And then
at 1545.

MR. CABANA: At 1545:

"At CROPS briefed Supt.

Wat son on results of
interview with Insp. Covey
and decision to share project
info with Syrian authorities.
M. Watson advised writer

t hat he agreed it woul d be
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appropriate to share with the
Syrians as it m ght assi st

shoul d the exchange of
info continue."

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now, after this
meeting with M. Covey and after the meeting with
t he CROPS people, did you have an opportunity to
speak to anyone in DFAIT again?

MR. CABANA: Yes, | believe it was
|ater on in the month -- | think it was on the
29th of July where | discussed, again, the options
and our intentions with M. Gould at DFAIT.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Was there anybody
else fromISI at this meeting, in particular
Saunders and Heat herington?

MR. CABANA: | believe they were
there as well, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And | understand
at this meeting in later July -- we don't have the
note for it, but | understand that what was
di scussed was the sharing of information with
certain foreign nations, i.e., Syria and Egypt, in
respect of two individual s?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The next nmeeting
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that | would refer to would be on Septenber the
10t h of 2002. We are going to start at page 44.

THE COMM SSI ONER: | notice it's
one o' clock, M. Cavalluzzo.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | just want to
develop this. This is the |ast meeting.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Sure, go ahead.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: And this will be
the end of this prior to M. Arar's detention.
--- Pause

This shoul d be inserted,
Comm ssi oner, behind page 44.

THE COMM SSI ONER: I nserted behind
page 447?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That's correct.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Okay. We won't
mark it as an exhibit then.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: |If we go to page
44, just in closing, M. Cabana, if you could just
read to us the entry for eleven o'clock on
Tuesday, September 107?

MR. CABANA: Certainly, sir.

"At DFAIT with C/ Supt.
Couture and ... and ...

Meeting with M. Franco

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B P R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

Can't

Can't

7872

Pillarella, Canadi an
Ambassador to Syria, Scott
Heat heri ngton, Don Saunders,
RCMP DFAIT LO, and Jonat han
Sol omon. I nsp. MacDougal | of
CID joined us late. W
provided a briefing to the
Ambassador regarding..."

read this word.
“...the origin, regarding the
origin of the investigation
and the reason for our
interest in ...
M. Pillarella agreed to
facilitate any future request
to Syrian authorities.
M. Pillarella suggested that
t he Syrian authorities would
l'i kely be expecting us to
share with them W
expl ai ned our intentions to
share..."

read that word.
"...any or our project

informati on rel evant to
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what ever investigation Syria
is conducting with them W

expl ai ned that packages have

al ready been prepared to this
end. "

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Thank you,
| nspector.

That, Comm ssioner, would conplete
this portion of the evidence which we wanted to
conplete, and this relates to this prospective
relationship prior to M. Arar's detention in
Syria. Thank you.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: All right. How
are we doing time-wi se? When should we be com ng
back? 1s 2:15 all right?

MR. CAVALLUZZO. Yes, 2:15 is
fine. But | can advise counsel now that we may be
sitting a bit |late today because | would like to

finish I nspector Cabana today.

THE COVM SSI ONER: I think we can
sit as late as 6 o'clock. If it was going to be
| ater than that, | have to make advance

arrangenments. Should we aimfor --
MR. CAVALLUZZO: I will be in a

better position to know by 3: 30.
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THE COWM SSI ONER:  All right. W
will rise nowuntil 2:15.

THE REGI STRAR: Pl ease st and.

--- Upon recessing at 1:03 p.m /
Suspension a 13 h 03

--- Upon resumng at 2:15 p.m /
Reprise a 14 h 15

THE REGH STRAR: Pl ease be seat ed.
Veui |l ez vous asseoir.

THE COWM SSI ONER: M. Cavalluzzo.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Thank you,
Comm ssi oner.

M. Cabana, just before we were
dealing with the prospect of relationship with the
Syrian Mlitary Intelligence, we were dealing with
certain aspects of OCanada and A- OCANADA, and
just want to make sure it is clear before we go
on; and that is that A- OCANADA was not part of the
NSI'S or the I NSET which subsequently was formed in
April of 2002.

I sn't that correct?

MR. CABANA: That's correct, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And as far as
OCanada i s concerned, | understand that Project

OCanada was under the NSIS of "O' Division, which
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subsequently became the INSET in the "O" Division?
MR. CABANA: | believe so, sir.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: |If we could stay
with your notes for a bit, I"mgoing to come to a
final area before we come to the Arar chronol ogy,
and that is at pages 14 through 16 of your notes.
It deals with a conversation you
had with M. Pilgrimon or about November the 6th
of 2001, and could you could just read starting at
1420, four lines up fromthe bottont
MR. CABANA: Yes.
"Returned Supt. Pilgrims
message. He requested that |
| ocate I nsp. Lanthier and
call himback for a
conference call."”
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Then | will pick
this up.
And Lant hier, once again, was the
head of NSIS at the time?
MR. CABANA: At the tinme, he was.
Yes.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Then we can j ust
cut out the next part, but it's about using the

particul ar designation of Protected B which you
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If you go to the next page, page

readi ng at the first paragraph down,

MR. CABANA: Yes.

> 3 3

"M. Pilgrimadvised the
writer that he was sinply the
messenger and was asked to
convey to us the same nessage
t hat A/ Comm Proul x conveyed
to C/ Supt. Ben Suave and John
McLaughlin | ast Friday."

CAVALLUZZO: Go on.
CABANA: ['msorry?
CAVALLUZZO: "Project

CABANA: "Project OCanada is a

Nati onal Security Operation
and is to be classified
Secret, Top Secret, as the
case may be. Docunents are
not to be reclassified at the
Protected B | evel, especially
documents from. ..

counterparts.”
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MR. CAVALLUzZO: Okay. So what
appears to be the problemis that OCanada is
operating on the Secret, Top Secret basis.

Proj ect A- OCANADA is operating on a Protected B

| evel, and he is saying Project OCanada is a

nati onal security operation. As a result of that,
t hey are operating at that |evel.

MR. CABANA: \What it appears to me
here, sir, is based on the fact that the previous
Friday M. Proul x had the same conversation with
M. Suave, and M. MLaughlin seenms to indicate
that "O" Division was al so operating at Protected
B Il evel and were asked to reclassify and make sure
t hey were operating within the national security
classification.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: But he does say
here that the Project OCanada is a national
security operation. Did he say the same thing to
you, that Project A-OCANADA is also a national
security operation during the course of this
conversation?

MR. CABANA: | believe that --
well, he didn't say Project A-OCANADA, but I
believe that was the gi st of the nessage.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And what did you
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tell himin respect of whether A-OCANADA could
revert to the Secret, Top Secret classification
systenr

MR. CABANA: | raised the issue
t hat we di scussed earlier this morning over the
inability of our case managenent systemto operate
at that classification |level, and the fact that by
putting this kind of information on the systens we
woul d be in contravention to Treasury Board
gui del i nes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now when he said
this to you, or the inplication was that OCanada,
and presumably A- OCANADA assi sting OCanada, was a
nati onal security operation, did anyone from head
office say to you, "You guys have got to be
followi ng the national security investigation
gui deline or policy that we revi ewed?"

MR. CABANA: No, this conversation
was specific to the classification of the
mat eri al .

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | just want to be
sure that nobody in the RCMP hierarchy, whether it
be at head office or in "A" Division, ever said to
you, "Project A-OCANADA should be operating under

t he national security guidelines"?
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MR. CABANA: No, sir. Every
meeti ng we had at head office, headquarters, were
fully aware of the fact that we were operating
under the prem se that this was a cri m nal
i nvesti gation.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Comm ssioner,
this brings me to the Arar chronol ogy, and for the
record I would like to read in a coupl e of
paragraphs relating to sonme of the things that
were di scussed this norning. This is part of the
will-say statement, but | would like to read it
into the record.

The title is "Initial Interest and
| nvestigation in respect to M. Arar".

"During the fall of 2001

Proj ect A-OCANADA in Ottawa
commenced an investigation
followi ng receipt of atip
from Project OCanada in
Toronto and intelligence from
CSI'S. The investigation was
focused on a particul ar

i ndi vi dual and Proj ect

A- OCANADA became aware of

M. Arar as a result. The
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project carried out certain
i nvestigative steps relating

to M. Arar."”

Now t hat shoul d be:

"The i nvestigation was
focused on a particular
i ndi vi dual and ot her targets

in the Ottawa area."

And t hen:

"Some of these investigative
steps have been referred to
publicly in a fragmented and
pi ecemeal fashion. These
include surveillance of

M. Arar at a nmeeting on

Oct ober 12, 2001, at Mango's
Rest aurant and the obtaining
of M. Arar's tenancy
agreement fromthe Mnto
Devel opments. Because of the
government's NSC cl ai ns, many
of the details of the

A- OCANADA i nvestigation in
the fall of 2001 cannot be

made public at this time. It

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B P R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

7881

is important to note,

however, that all of the
evidence relating to these
matters has been heard and

t horoughly tested during the
in-camera hearings. 1In the
interimreport, the

Comm ssioner will reviewthis
evi dence and set out his
conclusions. In the
meanti me, we have determ ned
t hat because of the
Government's NSC cl ai ns, the
investigative steps taken in
the fall of 2001 cannot be
fairly canvassed in the
public hearings. There are
matters over which the
Government cl aims NSC which
woul d be of assistance in
putting the evidence in its
proper context and to avoid

t he possibility of unfairness
or m sleading the public. As

a result, my exam nation wil
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not include reference to the
fall of 2001 because of these
contextual and fairness
concerns. However, the
failure to elicit this
particul ar evi dence does not
mean that the Comm ssioner's
concl usi ons concerning these
investigations will not be
made public in the context of
the interimreport. And as a
result, my exam nation wil
commence in January of 2002."
M. Cabana, | would like to
initially deal with the execution of a number of
search warrants by the RCMP on or about January 22
of 2002.
MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: First of all, you
can confirmthat a number of search warrants,
i ndeed seven search warrants, were executed by the
RCMP?
MR. CABANA: That's correct, yes.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: And were all of

t hese warrants executed in the Ottawa area?
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MR. CABANA: No, there was other
| ocations as well.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: As a result of
t he execution of these search warrants, could you
give us an idea of the fruits of the search, so to
speak, in terms of the ampunt of documentati on and
so on that resulted fromthe execution of these
warrants?

MR. CABANA: Okay. Well, the
execution of these searches again goes back to the
mandat e t hat we were provided: |eave no stones
unturned and | ook at every avail able investigative
avenue.

In | ate Decenmber of 2001, we
revi ewed and anal yzed the evidence, the
informati on and the evidence that we had
accumul ated, and determ ned that there was
sufficient evidence to execute a number of search
warrants at different | ocations.

These searches were conducted in
January of 2002, and as a result of that there was
a significant amount of information, evidence,

t hat was | ocated. For exanmple, | believe there
was 26 hard drives, computer hard drives; there

was hundr eds of CD disks.
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Some of this information,

i ncluding hard drives, some of them were hidden in
rafters and in walls. There was tens of thousands
of pages of documents that were seized as well at
the different | ocations.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: 1In respect of the
amount of information, docunments, hard drives,

di sks and so on that were seized, could Project
A- OCANADA deal with that kind of volume?

MR. CABANA: No. We anticipated
to find some informati on but not the volume that
we were faced with. And clearly, especially when
you | ook at the analysis of conputer hard drives,
it's a very time-consum ng process, and we were
| ooking at 26 of them alone. It would take many,
many nonths to go through it.

So the investigative teamitself
was not equi pped to analyze that in a timely
fashi on, no.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And as a result
of this lack of resources, did you seek the
assi stance of anybody in respect of analysing the
results of the searches?

MR. CABANA: Yes. Actually, |

believe it was January 30th or 31st --
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: January 31st,
yes.

MR. CABANA: On January 31st we
had a neeting, and of course prior to the meeting
t here was discussions with the Crim nal Operations
Officer to coordinate this meeting. We met with
all stakehol der agencies, both domestic and
foreign, where we provided everybody -- and
Justice, CID were at the table -- with a detailed
briefing of the investigation up to that point.

There had been previous neetings,
but the devel opnments were fairly significant.

We al so exposed the problemthat
had been created with the seizure of all this
informati on and the i nmportance of ensuring timely
analysis of the information; but even beyond that,
t he i nportance of ensuring that the anal ysis would
be conducted in conparison with information that
was avail abl e el sewhere in other jurisdictions.

So we conducted this presentation.
We offered to share the information, again, in the
context of the agreement that was in place and the
open-book concept, and we invited the agencies to
obtain copies of the informati on and also to

assign resources to our teamto help us analyze
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t his.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So in effect, in
['ight of the context, that is the open-book
investigation, what was done is that there was an
offer to share all of the information fromthe
fruits of the search and, at the same time, there
was a request that these other partner agencies,
or stakehol der agencies, participate in the
anal ysis to give you assistance?

MR. CABANA: That's correct, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO. At this
particular point in time, at this multi-agency
meeting on January 31st of 2002, was there any
suggestion from anybody at RCMP headquarters that
what you were doing was inappropriate, that is,
sharing all of this information with the
st akehol der agencies, or seeking their assistance
in respect of analysing it?

MR. CABANA: No, sir. Li ke
sai d, headquarters, CID, were participants at the
January 31st neeting and were also involved in
di scussions followi ng the searches thensel ves, so
they were fully aware of what we were proposing to
do.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. 1In respect of,
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first of all, sharing the information -- and we
will come to a particular sharing. But | assume

t he sharing was done in respect of all the partner
agenci es, the sharing of this information?

MR. CABANA: |'m not sure
under stand the questi on.

MR. CAVALLUzZzZO:. Well, for
exanmple, if you had 26 hard drives, what did you
do with those 26 hard drives?

MR. CABANA: Well, the 26 hard
drives were mrror-imged as quickly as possible.
| suggest probably within a week, everything was
m rror-imged, and copies were avail able for
agencies if they wanted to pick them up.

The docunments thenselves were a
| onger process, to make sure that the scanning and
the digitizing of the docunments was done in a
proper fashion to make sure that it was
coordi nated properly. So that took a little
| onger.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And the docunments
t hemsel ves, were they upl oaded into the SUPERText
system subsequently?

MR. CABANA: Yes, they were.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: 1In respect of the
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assi stance, did you get the assistance you were
seeking fromthese partner agencies or stakehol der
groups in respect of analysing the material and so
on?

MR. CABANA: We received the
assi stance we were seeking fromthe majority of
t he stakehol der agencies, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now at this point
in time, once again in or about January the 22nd,
it was decided that there would be no warrant
executed in respect of M. Arar.

| s that correct?

MR. CABANA: Yes, that's correct.
M. Arar was not a target.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | al so understand
t hat around this tinme Project A-OCANADA was
interested in interview ng or speaking to
M. Arar. |Is that correct?

MR. CABANA: Yes, very much so.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And on January
22nd -- and maybe it may assi st counsel and the
witness if we refer now to Exhibit P-83, tab 2, at
page 3.

We have before us something called

a transit slip.
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Do you see that, M. Cabana?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: MWhat is a transit
slip, if you can just help us?

MR. CABANA: We refer to them as
A-5; that's the formnumber. It is just internal
communi cation within the RCMP.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And on the other
side of the page, if you turn it over, we see a
task detail report. 1Is this the kind of task
detail report or tasking that would go into the
E&R syst enf?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, that would
be an E&R report.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So this is an E&R
report.

What about the previous page, the
transit slip. |Is this an E&R report, or would
this go i nto SUPERText ?

MR. CABANA: This would normally
go i nto SUPERText .

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So that the clear
tasking with times and so on, and duties assigned,
go into E&R and the nore general reports go

i nt o SUPERText .
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We can follow this along, because
it says on Tuesday, January 22nd, at 7: 30,
sonmebody approached M. Arar's house.

Why don't you tell us, fromyour
knowl edge, what happened on that day?

MR. CABANA: Well, the day of the
searches, in preparation for searchers there was a
search plan that was devel oped with respect to the
different sites that we were planning on
searching, identifying resource requirements and
everyt hi ng.

In the planning process we al so
identified a nunber of individuals that we were
interested in speaking to as potential witnesses,
or to clarify some of the information that had
devel oped over the previous nmonths.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: M. Arar was one of
t hose individuals. So to that end, in the morning
at all of these |ocations we sent investigators to
meet these individuals and attenpt to have an
interview with them

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | understand that
sonmebody did approach, as it says at page 3 here;

that at 7:30, one of the investigators approached
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M. Arar's house?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO. And he was
not avail able at that time.

| s that correct?

MR. CABANA: The investigators
were advised that M. Arar was away.

MR. CAVALLUZZO. Who met the
i nvestigators at the door?

MR. CABANA: M. Arar's wife.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Did she indicate
where M. Arar was?

MR. CABANA: Yes, | believe she
did. She advised the investigators that M. Arar
was in Tunisia.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Later on that
day, did the investigators attenpt to contact
M. Arar while he was in Tunisia?

MR. CABANA: | believe that the
investigators received a page fromthe NSIS office
advi sing that M. Arar had apparently attenpted to
contact the investigator and |left a nunber in
Tuni sia where he could be reached. The
investigator at the time was on a search and coul d

not return the call imediately, but upon
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returning to the office he did attempt to get hold
of M. Arar, but there was no answer, probably
because of the time difference.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: That was Tuesday,
January the 22nd. | understand that on Wednesday,
January the 23rd, M. Edel son contacted A- OCANADA
investigators and tal ked about whether his client
woul d be speaking to the police?

Were you aware of that call?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, | am

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And woul d
M . Edel son have made that call to you directly or
to anyone el se?

MR. CABANA: No. M. Edel son
usual ly contacted Ann Al der, who was our senior
| egal counsel

MR. CAVALLUZZO. And did Ms Al der
indicate to you that M. Edel son had said that if
M. Arar was to be interviewed, there would be a
number of conditions inmposed?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Did you note that
M . Edel son represented others than M. Arar?

MR. CABANA: In fact, sir,

M . Edel son represented, | would say, all of the
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wi t nesses and the targets of Project A-OCANADA.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Do you know i f
and when any contact was made between the RCVP
investigators and M. Arar?
MR. CABANA: | believe it was on
t he 25th where the investigator contacted
M. Arar's residence, because there had been no
direct contact with him just to see when he would
be returning, and | believe M. Arar actually
answered the phone.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Could you recount
to us or relate to us what the conversation was?
MR. CABANA: Could I refer to
the task report?
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Yes, please do.
MR. CABANA: It says:
"Called the Arar residence
just to confirmif his wife
had been contacted by hi m and
when he was scheduled to
return from Tuni sia. When
nunmber was cal |l ed, Maher Arar
answered the phone. He was
t hen spoken to and st ated

t hat he had attenpted to
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contact us from Tuni sia and
was somewhat perturbed as to
why we had attended his
residence in his absence

wi t hout prior notice and

di sturbed his pregnant wife.
It was explained to M. Arar
t hat we did not know he was
away, and when we di scovered
this we only spoke briefly
with his wife, gave her a
busi ness card and request ed
to have hi m cont act

i nvestigators upon his

return."”

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Okay.
MR. CABANA: "Arar was then asked

if he would attend t he RCMP

office in Vanier this day to
be interviewed. He

i medi ately asked as to the

reason and circunstances as

to how we got his name. He

was advi sed that we do not

di scuss ongoi ng
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investigati ons over the phone
and that we would like to
meet with himin person to
simply clarify some issues
concerni ng himwhich have
surfaced as a result of our
inquiries. M. Arar said

t hat as he had been away for

t hree weeks and just returned
froma long trip, he was
fatigued and wi shed to sl eep
and spend time with his

famly."

Of course, this is the

is witing this. It is his

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .
MR. CABANA: "l continued to

negotiate with himto have
himattend the office on this
date but he was insistent

t hat he was too fatigued but
woul d be willing to attend
per haps on Monday. He was

told to sleep this date,
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catch up with his famly, and
to contact writer via pager
on Saturday, the 26th, for
proposed interview at three
o' clock. This time was
confirmed also with ..."

And it's redacted.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The investigator
di d not hear back from M. Arar but his | awyer.

s that correct?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Could you tell us
what message was |left by M. Arar's |awyer,

M. Edel son?

MR. CABANA: Well, if I remenber
correctly, the nmessage that was left by M. Arar's
counsel at the time was that no interview was to
take place without his presence at the interview,
and there was also some conditions that were
attached to any interviewwith M. Arar.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: And what happened
in respect of those conditions? Did you accept
the invitation from M. Edel son?

MR. CABANA: No, sir. | was of

t he belief that given the conditions that were
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attached to any interview, it would render the
interview pointless.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And what, in
particular, were the conditions that you were
concerned about in respect of --

MR. CABANA: One of the
conditions, if menmory serves me right, was that
the interview was to occur at M. Edelson's
office.

And t he ot her one, the one that
was most problematic in nmy view, was the fact that
any interview could not be -- or the information
flowing fromany interviewwi th M. Arar could not
be used agai nst himor against anybody else in any
proceedi ngs.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: You found that
condition intol erabl e?

MR. CABANA: In, like | say, 24
years in |l aw enforcement, it was the first tinme
t hat such conditions were put on any interview
that | was involved in. So, like |I said, it would
render the interview pointless.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: M. Edel son
testified in public, though, that those are the

normal ki nds of conditions that he usually seeks.
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Had you never seen anything |ike
t hat ?

MR. CABANA: | had never seen
anything li ke that, and neither had any of the
ot her investigators, including Ms Al der.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And as a result,
| understand that the RCMP never tried to contact
M. Arar again for an interview prior to his
detention in the United States.

| s that correct?

MR. CABANA: No, sir. Our focus
was on ot her areas.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: I would Iike to
move on a bit in time to February 26th of 2002.

|f we could | ook at your notes,
starting at page 34, beginning with the entry for
1425 February 26th and noving into the next page,
34A, we see that there is a discussion between you
and CID respecting, | guess, information that they
are getting.

| wonder if you m ght read the
first part there for us since your witing is a
little difficult at this point.

MR. CABANA: "Meeting with ... and

of CID. Discussed
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problems with info flow

bet ween project and CID. The
writer explained that the
project was submtting on a
daily basis SITREPs to keep
CID informed. Furthernore,
until CID changed priorities
for NSI'S they were
responsi ble to upload daily
our database to SCIS. SCIS
upl oads stopped when CI D
directed NSIS to review and
‘clean' all Shock SCIS dat a.
The writer advised that the
project team met all

requi rements and woul d
conduct a briefing today to
assist CID but in the future
t hey woul d have to first
review the info submtted..."

"Emanating from

MR. CABANA: Emanating. Thank

you, M. Comm ssioner.

"...emanating fromthe
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project on a daily basis."”

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Rather than going
on, we can | eave counsel to read that.

What was the problemthat was
bei ng di scussed on February 26th, 2002, between
Proj ect A- OCANADA and head office?

MR. CABANA: Actually the first
part of the neeting was spent trying to identify
what the problem was. CID had approached us
identifying issues that they perceived with the
flow of informati on emanating from our project and
were seeking daily briefings of the devel opments
in the project.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght. And was
this a constant problemin respect of CID, which
was responsi ble for national security operations,
dealing with you, trying to get nore information
or you trying to get information fromthent

Was there a probl en?

MR. CABANA: Well the problem and
it wasn't specific to CID, or | guess | should say
CID weren't the only ones experiencing this
problem is the influx of information post-9/11
was such that really nobody was equi pped to

properly coordinate and ensure the timely fl ow of
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this information.

Cl D, because they were trying to
coordi nate on a national |level, had quite a bit of
information comng in there, and there was del ays
being created in this informati on being
di ssem nated to the appropriate divisions.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: At the same tinme,

t hey were having difficulty keeping track of the
devel opments of the different investigative
efforts across the country, and there was a
perception that seemed to exist within CIDthat
they didn't have a good understanding on how t he
projects were being devel oped, "A" Division nore
specifically.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So there appeared
to be a need, at least fromCID s perspective, of
more either control or coordination in respect of
all of the activities which were taking place
across the country?

MR. CABANA: | believe at the tinme
it wasn't an issue of control; it was an issue of
coordi nation of information.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | am going to ask

you if you could identify a couple of docunents
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whi ch seemto signify this problemthat we are
tal ki ng about.

If you go to Exhibit P-85, Vol une
5 at tab 24 --

MR. CABANA: |I'msorry, which tab?

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Tab 24 of Vol une

This is a menorandum from Deputy
Comm ssi oner Loeppky, who as Deputy Conmm ssioner
of Operations would be responsible, as you know,
for CID and national security investigations and
so on. And it goes to M. Hovey, who is your
officer in charge, or the officer in charge of the
“A" Division in which your project is.
MR. CABANA: Yes.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: |'mjust going to
read part of it to you.
It says:
"This is further to our
t el ephone di scussion and
subsequent meeting of
02-05-02 which related to
investigators ... In your
coments at that time, you

poi nted out that Crim nal
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I ntelligence Directorate had
been | ess than forthcom ng
about providing information
which related to this file,
and were not providing the
assi stance required to
advance the file. At that
poi nt, there was sonme urgency
to address the ... issue,
given that ... and | did not
take the opportunity to
expl ore the concern that you
rai sed, although you w l
recall my ani mated response
that it was not acceptable
t hat there were gaps in
communi cati on between the
Di vi sion and the Policy
Center."
Were you aware of these kinds of
probl ems between your particular division and Cl D?
MR. CABANA: | would submt, sir,
t hat the inpetus for this correspondence was our
project and the issue of the coordination or

communi cation i ssues between CID and the division
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was raised. | raised it with M. Couture and
M. Hovey on a number of occasions and that is
probably where this document comes from
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: M. Loeppky goes
on to explain the mandate of CID
He says:
"As you are aware, | expect
that Crimnal Intelligence
Directorate will have a
conmprehensi ve overvi ew of the
current status and progress
in national security files."
Just stopping there, certainly
M. Loeppky at that point in time, if you caused
t his exchange of correspondence and meeting -- we
are tal king about Project A-OCANADA -- certainly
M. Loeppky at |east feels that you have a
national security file.
That is what he is saying here?
MR. CABANA: Yes.
MR. CAVALLUzzZO: Okay. He goes
on:
"This is the Directorate that
|, and ultimately the

Comm ssi oner, | ook to when
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determ ning the overall
intelligence profile on

nati onal security threats and
updates with respect to
ongoing files. They are the
primary contact point with
international |aw enforcement
and intelligence

organi zations as it rel ates
to national security, and are
clearly responsi ble for

corporate liaison with CSIS."

And t hen he goes on to tal k about

they play a critical

role in the:

"Coordination froma
corporate perspective as it
relates to seni or managenment
needs at Headquarters;
Provi si on of gui dance,

advi ce, and support to

Di vi sions. ..

Senior level liaison with

Cl SC and foreign agenci es

present in Canada."

| " massum ng that's CSIS there and
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not CISC. |Is that fair?

MR. CABANA: | assune it is.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: "This is not to
say that Division personnel
do not have wor ki ng
relationships with other
agenci es, but nmerely that the
policy center is tasked with
t he overall relationship,
management and coordi nation
of information."

Once again, these kinds of words,

"needi ng more coordination”, and so on, from your
perspective, did you have trouble getting
informati on out of headquarters which you needed
in order to fulfil your mandate in your view?

Was t hat one of the problems?

MR. CABANA: Yes, we did. On
several occasions there was delays and, in fact,
we woul d [ earn of the existence of this
informati on from partner agencies and had to go
back to our headquarters to |locate it.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. And this
reference in the memorandum about CI D having the

relationship with international organizations, was
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t hat anot her concern that CID had with Project
A- OCANADA: that they should be the interlocutor
with these foreign agenci es and not Project
A- OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: It was a concern that
was raised by CID periodically, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Also around that
time, | want to deal with another issue, and I'm
tal ki ng now about in April of 2002, at which time

there was a sharing of databases with American

agenci es.

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | understand that
on the 2nd of April, 2002, you provided Anmerican

agencies with three conpact disks.

|'s that correct?

MR. CABANA: Yes, we did.

MR. CAVALLUZZO. And what was
contained in the three conmpact disks? Don't tell
me the numbers, just what in fact was contained
t here.

MR. CABANA: The fruits of the
searches, for the most part, as well as other
correspondence and reports that were generated up

to that point.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: | understand that
t he entire SUPERText database was shared with the
Ameri can agencies on these three conpact di sks?

MR. CABANA: That is what was on
t he CDs.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: |If you could just
give us sonme idea again, in ternms of the SUPERText
system we woul d have situation reports that we
t al ked about earlier?

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZzZO: We woul d have --
wel |, why don't you tell us was normally found in
t he SUPERText dat abase?

MR. CABANA: Any correspondence,
pi ece of documentary evidence, that reached the
project is supposed to be scanned and upl oaded
i nto SUPERText .

So as of -- and |I'm not sure when
the CDs were actually burned or cut. But as of
t hat date, whatever was in SUPERText was included
on the CDs

| should nmention that the work
product of the investigators and the project would
not have been included. So the vast majority of

the informati on contained in there was the fruits
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of the search

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | understand the
CDs were burned on April 2nd of 20027

MR. CABANA: That's possible. |
know it was in April.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: In ternms of the
SUPERText file, apart fromthe fruits of the
search, | understand that there m ght be docunents
from ot her agenci es?

MR. CABANA: Yes, there was.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Or correspondence
from ot her agenci es?

MR. CABANA: Yes, there was.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And | understand
that these CDs were given to the American agencies
wi t hout any caveats attached?

MR. CABANA: The rel ease of the
CDs -- again, there was a process that took place
prior to the release of the CDs where the
managers, project managers, had neetings with
representatives of these agencies and reiterated
t he fact that the sharing was being done in the
context of the agreement that was in place.

The purpose for the sharing was

hi ghl i ghted and they were rem nded again of the
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procedure to follow should they wish or require to
use any of the information that was being shared.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Right.

MR. CABANA: | should al so point
out -- and | think it's inmportant to note -- that
the sharing was not in relation to M. Arar. It

was in the context of the investigation of the
targets that we were | ooking at at the time.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Wbuld there not
be any information relating to M. Arar in the
SUPERText that was scanned and given to the
Ameri cans?

MR. CABANA: There would be based
on the background investigations that were
conducted in relation to M. Arar, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And which could
be, for exanple, if M. Arar was referred to on a
situation report. Correct?

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: |If there was
anot her kind of inportant report relating to
M. Arar, it could have been --

MR. CABANA: Yes. But aside from
the fruits of the searches, the information that

was contained in any of the reports or SITREPs had
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al ready been shared prior to the sharing of the
CDs

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Would that
include all of the docunments and information that
Proj ect A- OCANADA received from other agencies,
Canadi an and donmestic?

MR. CABANA: | submt to you that,
yes, it would, because the mandate we were given
and the direction we received was to share
everything that we had with these agencies. So as
the informati on was reaching the project, there
was periodic neetings -- actually, regul ar
meetings, inter-agency nmeetings, where all of this
informati on was di scussed in these open meetings
with all of these agencies sitting around the
t abl e.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | assune that
since you felt it was part of the free-flow
arrangement that Project A- OCANADA, or you, did
not seek the consent of any of these agencies that
had gi ven Project A- OCANADA documents,
correspondence, reports, or whatever.

MR. CABANA: Well, like |I say, the
majority of these other docunments were discussed

in open nmeetings, and those agenci es had
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representation for the nmost part.

Some of them | agree with you,

t here was no representation at the table. But for
the majority of those docunents, agencies were
sitting at the table when the information was
bei ng di scussed and shar ed.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Right. But you
haven't answered the question.

The question was: You didn't seek
t he consent of these other agencies to rel ease the
documents.

MR. CABANA: We didn't go back to
t hese agenci es and advise themthis was the date
we woul d be sharing. It was discussed at the
January 31st. It was discussed in subsequent
meetings. We didn't go back and ask themfor
specific authority.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Even though this
was part of the free-flow arrangenment, to your
knowl edge, was the CID aware that the entire
SUPERText file had been sent to the Americans at
the time?

MR. CABANA: Yes, | believe they
wer e because one of the directions that we gave to

t hese agencies during our nmeeting |leading to this
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sharing, we requested that they make an offici al
request. I n other words, we wanted a request on
paper for us to disclose this information.

Those requests were channel | ed
t hrough CI D and the requests thenmsel ves were very
clear that they were seeking all information.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: I don't think,
Comm ssi oner, we can go any further because of NSC
concerns.

| f you go to Volume 1 of Exhibit
P-85, tab 25 -- excuse me, 24.

This is the C-085 docunment which
indicates -- it is redacted to a certain extent,
Comm ssioner. But this, once again, for counsel,
woul d i ndicate the kind of documentation that was

in the SUPERText file that was burned onto those

t hree CDs.

We cannot be any nore specific
t han t hat.

Al so, if you go to tab 25, the
next tab, | understand that these officers' notes

as well were part of the three CDs which were
exchanged.
THE COMM SSI ONER: In any event,

that is the maxi mum di scl osure that is permtted
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according to the Government's NSC cl ai ms.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That's correct.

Just a couple of final questions
before we get to M. Arar's detention in Septenber
of 2002.

The first is | understand that
Proj ect A- OCANADA woul d make Power Poi nt
presentations to different agencies, stakehol der
groups, in respect of your investigation?

MR. CABANA: Yes. Li ke I said,
periodically, we would have joint management team
meetings or multi-agency meetings, whatever you
want to call them where we would conduct these
presentations to update everybody as far as the
progress of the investigation and the direction of
t he investigation.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And these
Power Poi nt presentations would summari ze the
investigati on of Project A- OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: Yes, they woul d.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. The presentations
woul d review the targets of Project A-OCANADA with
t hese ot her agenci es and groups?

MR. CABANA: Yes, it woul d.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Wbould they all --
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and just wait for an objection, if there is one; I
don't think there will be.

Woul d they al so i nclude possible
wi t nesses of A- OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: Oh, nost definitely,
yes.

MR. CAVALLUzZO: Okay. So is it
fair to say that M. Arar would have been part of
t hese presentations given to these other agenci es?

MR. CABANA: Yes, and he would
have been identified as a potential wtness.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Would it also
identify why he was a potential w tness, because
of relationships with other people?

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And did you make
any of these presentations in Canada or the United
States?

MR. CABANA: The vast mpjority of
t he presentati ons were conducted in Canada. To ny
knowl edge, there was one presentation that was
conducted in the U. S.

MR. CAVALLUZZO. And when was
t hat ?

MR. CABANA: Par don nme?
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MR. CAVALLUzZZO: When was that?

MR. CABANA: | believe it was in
Mar ch.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: May 31st?

MR. CABANA: May ?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: May 31st of 20027

MR. CABANA: May 31st, 2002, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Just before

M. Arar's detention, we have heard evidence --
and per haps you could go to the RCMP heari ng
documents, which is Exhibit P-83, at tab 1.
At page 182 of tab 1, this says --
and |I'mnot going to mention the individual. It
i s dated August 15th, 2002. 1It's mnutes of a
meeting of Project A-OCANADA which started at 1:30
in the CO s boardroom and then about hal fway
down, it says:
"This was a proactive measure
to discuss nedia |lines to be
used when an individual's
al |l egati ons about torture in
Syrian authorities. The
medi a attention is expected
to be intense.™

And then it goes:
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"The ... will coordinate
medi a | i nes by attending
agencies. This will ensure
t hat the various depart ment
M nisters be briefed so they
are not anbushed by nmedi a
questions. The attending
agencies all are agreed that
m nimal information will be
put out due to the ongoing
police investigation."”

| understand at this time,

M. Cabana, that you were out of town on August
15t h, 2002.

MS JACKMAN: Could I just
interrupt for a mnute, M. Comm ssioner?

You know, the concern about the
identity of our clients is warranted, | think, but
when we are tal king about M. ElI Maati being
tortured in Syria, it's not hurting his
reputation. He is a victim

| don't think you need to carry it
to the extent that M. Cavalluzzo and the witness
are carrying it to. | need to know who they are

t al ki ng about because there is an overlap in terns
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of time. | certainly don't want ny client's
reputati on wecked, but if they are tal king about
hi m being tortured, say it.

THE COVM SSI ONER: I think that is
a reasonabl e point.

--- Laughter / Rires

MR. CAVALLUZZO: I will tell you
what. Throw sonme water on me when you want to
give me a sign. Just get ny attention.

So that was M. ElI Maati?

MR. CABANA: Yes, it was.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That we are
t al ki ng about on August the 15th?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: You were out of
town, | understand, on that particul ar day?

MR. CABANA: Yes, | was. | did
not attend this meeting.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But when you did
return, | understand you did become aware that in
t he summer of 2002 M. El Maati had made
al |l egations that he had been tortured while he was
in detention in Syria.

| s that correct?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, | was made
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awar e of that.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: I would like to
move on to September 26th of 2002, which was the
day that M. Arar was initially detained in the
United States.

| am wondering if you could
perhaps tell us how Project A- OCANADA became awar e
that M. Arar m ght be detained?

MR. CABANA: Proj ect A- OCANADA
became aware through a phone call froma
representative fromthe U S. Embassy, who
contacted one of our investigators advising that
M. Arar was expected to arrive, | believe it was
at JFK, within the hour, if I remember correctly,
and at which time he would be refused entry and
returned to his point of origin. And they were
seeki ng our assistance in providing themwth a
series of questions that they were aware had been
prepared for the interview that had been pl anned
t he day of the searches on January 22nd. They
were asking us to provide themwi th these
guestions to help them prepare for the interview.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: When you say
"point of origin", what do you mean by that?

MR. CABANA: My understandi ng was
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he was flying in from Zurich, and he woul d be
returned to Zurich.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: In respect of the
contact between this person at the U S. Enbassy
and sonmebody in Project A-OCANADA, | understand
that it was not you; it was soneone el se?

MR. CABANA: No, it was not ne.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And that person
woul d have reported or sonmeone woul d have reported
t hat particul ar tel ephone conversation to you?

MR. CABANA: Later that day, yes.
Exactly at what time, | have no recollection, and
it's not reflected in nmy notes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So you say that
this American official or representative requested
a list of interview questions for M. Arar.

Do you know how t he deci si on was
made that if interview questions were sent that
t hey woul d be sent to the Americans? Do you know
who made t he decision, howit was made, what
factors were taken into account?

MR. CABANA: | -- and this would
be speculation on nmy part. | would assune it
woul d be the project managers that made the

decision to send the questions.
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The questions were not in relation
to M. Arar per se. Again, the questions were in
relation to the target, the main target of our
i nvestigation and the relationship M. Arar had
wi th that person.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | am wondering --

MR. COPELAND: | rise,

M. Comm ssioner, again | would be interested in
knowi ng the identity of that particul ar person.
It seens to me relevant.

THE COWMM SSI ONER:  You want to
know t he nanme of that person?

MR. COPELAND: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Do you know t he
identity of that person that you just referred to,
the prime target?

MR. CABANA: Yes, M. Abdull ah
Al mal ki .

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Then let us go
then to Exhibit P-83, tab 1, page 187.

We have a fax which is dated
Sept ember 26t h.

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And it's sent

to -- maybe you can interpret this for us. It
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says, "Headquarters NOC".

What is that?

MR. CABANA: That's NOC, our
Nat i onal Operations Centre at headquarters, and
communi cations are channell ed through that centre.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And then it says:
"For the information of international |iaison
person headquarters CID".

Who woul d that be? Do you know

who that is?

MR. CABANA: Who it was sent to?
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Yes.
MR. CABANA: No, actually, | don't

remember.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: But in any event,
headquarters woul d have been aware, obviously,
t hat these questions were being sent to the
Ameri cans because it was being sent through
headquarters?
MR. CABANA: Very nuch so, yes.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: And what it says

"Re: Project A-OCANADA.
The attached pages are

suggested questi ons for Maher
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Arar as per your request.

The |ist was one prepared
earlier this year prior to
Arar's sudden departure from
Canada and as such sone
guestions are a little bit
dated. We appreciate your
assistance in interview ng
Arar."

And then it's signed by two
i ndividuals, and if you go -- well, there's a
signature for two individuals. And if we go to
Exhi bit P-84, we have a |l ess redacted volume or
fax.

One says "A" Division, the right
one, "A" Division I POC, Project A-OCANADA, and the
left side it's O C Project A-OCANADA/ A-1 POC.

This is in Exhibit P-84 at page
26.

MR. CABANA: | believe what you
are referring to is the signature bl ock.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: But | don't believe |
signed that correspondence.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That's what | was
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going to ask you. Did you sign this?

MR. CABANA: No.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So you didn't see
this fax with the |list of questions before it went
out ?

MR. CABANA: No, | don't believe
so.

MR. CAVALLUzZO: |If we | ook at the
guestions, the interview questions that were sent
down to New York, this is the next page, it says:

"The foll owi ng questions were
prepared for interviewthat
was sl ated to be conducted
with Arar in January of 2002.
Due to the urgent need to
transmt this to New York
this outline for questions to
be asked was not edited."

And then the first ten questions
woul d appear to relate to biographical
informati on?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: His background,
hi s passport, whether he has a Syrian passport,

and so on and so forth?
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MR. CABANA: Yes.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: The next six
guesti ons appear to relate to occupati on and
empl oyment .
"What's your occupation?
What conmpany do you work for
in Canada, the United
St at es?"
And so on. The next series of
gquestions relate to police.
"Do you have a cri m nal
record in Canada or abroad?
Have you had any previous
contact with police or
government agencies in Canada
or abroad?"
And then the next series of
gquestions seemto be personal Iike:
"Where were you on September
11t h?
Are you affiliated to any
political groups or
movement s?
Did you contribute to any

charitabl e organization?
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Do you know any i ndividual s
who are affiliated to
charities of this nature?
Have you, or anyone you know,
had any mlitary training or
training of this nature?"

And then there is a redacted
portion with, | assume, other questions as well as
a conclusion on the | ast page which is al so
redact ed.

I n any event, you feel that the
gquestions related to his association with --
because nmuch of it seens to be related to
M. Arar?

MR. CABANA: No, it goes to the
background inquiries that were conducted. |[If you
were to | ook at the packages that were prepared
for the searches of January 22nd, you woul d see
simlar interview questions in relation to other
potential targets -- or not targets, |'msorry,
wi t nesses that we were seeking to interview.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: But all of them
related to the main target, or the main focus of

our investigation and their association.
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So we were seeking to confirmsome
of the background biographical data that we had on
each of the individuals. But the focus of these
guestions, and | would submt to you that the
i mportant questions for us are the ones that have
been redacted in relation to the target of our
i nvesti gation.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. While we
are still on September the 26th, RCMP gets notice
t hat a Canadian is comng into New York City in an
hour or so. He is obviously going to be
guesti oned or whatever. And then, according to
t he source, he would be turned back to Zurich.

Did you notify DFAIT at all, or
did anyone in the RCMP notify DFAIT that we have
t his Canadi an com ng in and he may need consul ar
access or consul ar assistance while he is in New
York City?

MR. CABANA: No, because the
informati on that we were provided with was that he
woul d be refused entry and returned to his point
of entry. So it is not a situation where we were
made aware of the fact that the individual,

M. Arar, was going to be incarcerated for a

| engt hy period of time or anything |like that.
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It was a process by which, when he
appeared at Custons, the decision obviously had
al ready been made that he would be refused and
returned. So we did not advise DFAIT. W
provi ded the questions that were requested.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: If I was
M. Arar, what | would say to you is, "What are
you guys doing? | had a lawyer. The | awyer
tal ked to you on January the 25th, was very cl ear
with you that I will be interviewed, but | want ny
l awyer with me when I'mintervi ewed."

And here you are sendi ng questions
down to the Anmericans for themto ask M. Arar.

MR. CABANA: No, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The question
woul d have is: Aren't you doing an end-run on ny
right to counsel ?

MR. CABANA: No, sir. The
guestions were not sent down to the Americans for
us to ask. The Americans asked us the questions
because of the small period of time -- the small
wi ndow t hat they had to prepare for this
interview.

They knew we al ready had questions

prepared because they had al ready | ooked at the
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questions in the context of the searches. They
knew we had packages, and they asked us to provide
t hat as a basis for their interview.

Of course if we are going to be
provi ding them questions and if M. Arar is
inclined to answer those questions, well of course
we would I'i ke to know what he has to say.

At that point in time, what we
wer e advi sed was that he would be returned to
Zurich, and potentially we would never have an
opportunity to speak to him again.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But if that's
right, wouldn't the Americans already have these
questions? In other words, these surveillance
packages with these questions presumably woul d
have been part of the SUPERText database that you
had al ready sent down.

MR. CABANA: Maybe they were.

They m ght have been in possession of those
questions. But there is sonme indication that some
of the U.S. agencies never opened or never were
able to access the information. Maybe that's the
case.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: It is inportant

to -- 1 just want to be very, very clear, because
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obvi ously we are dealing with the right to
counsel, which is a Charter right here. | want to
be very, very clear.

Your view, when these questions
wer e sent down, although you didn't sign it -- and
presumably you thought about it.

But fromthe perspective of
A- OCANADA, did they not think that by sending
t hose questions that those questions may have been
asked of M. Arar, and that the information they
got fromM. Arar as a result of those questions
woul d have come back to Canada?

MR. CABANA: Well, | would submt
that that is probably what was hoped, was that if
t he questions -- the purpose of sending the
guestions, obviously the Americans wanted to ask
t hose questions of M. Arar.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: Like I said, if he
was inclined to answer the questions, we would
hope to get his responses back.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: Now, M. Arar at the
time was not a suspect; he was a witness. He was

considered to us as a witness. And being in the
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United States, which is a country that shares a
| ot of our values, M. Arar would be free to
answer or to refuse to answer.

So his right to counsel was still
there; it was still present. But maybe his
inclination had changed.

| would submt that this is not a
situation, sir, where we were aware that M. Arar
was com ng back and we advised the Americans he is
com ng through your country and we are going to be
sendi ng you a series of questions. Can you pl ease
ask then? Not at all.

It was the other way around. The
Ameri cans advi sed us he was com ng back and they
asked for the questions.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: They asked for
t he questions --

MR. CABANA: It was their
interview.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: But it would seem
to me that if the questions were posed -- if the
guestions were answered, the information would
come back to Canada.

| n other words, you would have got

informati on that you couldn't have gotten in
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Canada the previous January, for the nost part the
very same questions --

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: ~-- that he in
effect refused to answer through his |awyer. Yet
t hrough this, on Septenber the 26th, you sent down
the very same questions.

MR. CABANA: Yes, because we were
asked by our partners to send down the questions,
so we did.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But don't you
find there is something i nappropri ate about that
in the sense that when he is in Canada, he refused
to answer those very same questions without his
| awyer, yet if he is in New York you send the sanme
guestions down and hope to get the information.

You don't find that inappropriate?

MR. CABANA: | don't find that
i nappropriate. Not at all.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. And I
guess | conme back to that question: |Is that a
situation where the Charter of Rights would apply?

Remember we tal ked about if you go
down to interview, does the Charter apply? The

next question was: |If you send questions down,
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does the Charter apply?

MR. CABANA: Well, like | said
earlier, it would be a |l egal question to be
debated by the courts.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. Then |et
us move to September 27th, the next day in the
week.

MR. CABANA: Certainly.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: | think September
the 27th was a Fri day.

MR. CABANA: Yes, it was.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: |If we go to your

notes now at page 48, at 11:15, it says: "Briefed
M. Couture" -- who is the CROPS officer at the
time -- "on the events of yesterday involving
CID."

And then it goes on:
"Al'so informed himof contact
bet ween Ms Al der and M. M ke
Edel son with respect to
Al mal ki . Advi sed Couture
t hat we would be neeting with
M . Edel son next week to
bring ..."

MR. CABANA: To discuss his
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concern.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: To discuss his
concern.

In this conversation with Al der at
this time, do you know if M. Edel son al so raised
M. Arar's situation?

MR. CABANA: Yes, he did.
CAVALLUZZO: He di d?

CABANA: Yes.

> 3 3

CAVALLUZZO: And did Al der
tell Edelson, "Oh, by the way, we sent the
guestions down that you refused to have your
client answer six nmonths ago"?

MR. CABANA: | have no knowl edge
of the conversation, or the nature of the
conversation, between Ms Alder and M. Edel son.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now Septenmber --
just et me make sure of this.

This is a high-tech operation,
M . Cabana.

--- Laughter / Rires

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. You are correct,
September 27th was a Friday. So September 28th
and 29t h woul d have been the weekend.

Did anything in relation to
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M. Arar conme to your know edge during that
weekend peri od?

MR. CABANA: In relation to
A- OCANADA?

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Yes.

MR. CABANA: In relation to
A- OCANADA, no. But | am aware that there was
communi cati on between representatives of the U S.
Enmbassy and CI D

MR. CAVALLUZzZO:. And CID.

MR. CABANA: And one of our
menmbers at CI D, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: During that
weekend that we are tal ki ng about, September 27th
and 28t h?

MR. CABANA: Oh, 27th, 28th, 29th,
no.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. That is what |I'm
tal ki ng about.

MR. CABANA: No, no.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay, that's
fine.

The Monday then, presumably you
returned to work on Monday, October -- sorry.

MR. CABANA: September 30t h.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: On Septenmber 30th
you woul d have returned to work. Did anything in
respect of M. Arar occur, to your know edge, on
September 30t h?

MR. CABANA: On September 30th, we
were still of -- actually, we were of the belief
that M. Arar had been returned to Zurich on the
27th, which is the day following his arrival in
New York. We believed early on in the nmorning
t hat he had al ready been returned.

Our understandi ng was that it was
going to be a process that was going to be fairly
qui ck. In other words, next flight out, M. Arar
woul d be put on that flight and returned to his
poi nt of origin.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: What gave you the
i mpression that on the morning of the 27th, which
woul d have been the Friday, that he would have
left JFK for Zurich?

MR. CABANA: Because we didn't
have any other information reaching us in the
morni ng i ndicating that that had not occurred.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So you were
relying upon the previous day's information that

he was going to be turned around?
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MR. CABANA: Exactly.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

MR. CABANA: Now, |ater during the
day, actually I think it was early afternoon,
there was a phone call that was received fromU.S.
Enbassy representatives to one of the team
managers advising that M. Arar was still in
custody; that investigators were being flown in to
conduct an interview, and that he would be refused
entry.

So, again, it was the sanme story;
he woul d be sent back to his point of origin.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So by the time
you | eave work on the 27th, you know that he is
still in custody and there are going to be some
interviews done.

MR. CABANA: By early afternoon we
know that he is still in custody, but again we are
under the belief, the inpression, that it is a
matter of hours before he is put on the next
flight out.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And once again
assume as a result of that no one in the RCW
notified DFAIT that, "We have got this guy. It's

his second day now in New York. He may require
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consul ar assi stance"?

MR. CABANA: Nobody from
A- OCANADA. In relation to CID, | don't believe so
ei ther.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So nothing
happens on the weekend in relation to M. Arar.

September the 30th is the Monday.
At this point in time do you have any idea as to
M. Arar's whereabouts?

MR. CABANA: We were under the
i mpressi on he was back in Zurich.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: And when did you
di scover that M. Arar in fact was still in the
United States?

MR. CABANA: Well, the first
i ndi cati ons came to us actually on October 1st,
when one of the team managers of Project A- OCANADA
had a conversation with a representative fromthe
U.S. Embassy and the representative was
i ndi cating, or didn't seemto be sure, but he was
indicating that M. Arar m ght still be in the
u. S.

But our understandi ng, our belief
was that he had been returned the previous Friday.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Right.
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MR. CABANA: So this person, this
representative, was asked to verify and confirm
wi th us what the status was at the time.

On that date, on the 1st of
Oct ober, we didn't get any return fromthis
person.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And this was on
t he Tuesday?

MR. CABANA: That would be on the
Tuesday, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: On COctober the
1st ?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Was it clear to
you in ternms of this representative com ng, was he
saying that, yes, he was still in the States but
he was going to be sent back? Was it ambi guous
l'i ke that, or was he clear on that?

MR. CABANA: Well, he said that he
believed that M. Arar was still in the States and
was going to be sent back. Our belief was that he
had al ready been sent back.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So | assunme t hat
t he American representative basically di sabused

you of that notion. He is still in the States but
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he is going to be sent back.

MR. CABANA: He didn't -- no, |
woul dn't go that far, because he didn't seemto be
sure himself as to what M. Arar's status was.
That is why the team manager asked himto confirm
and get back to us.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. Was there
any involvenment at that point of headquarters, of

DFAIT, saying, "We have got to find out where this

guy is"?

MR. CABANA: No, sir, | don't
beli eve so, not as of October 1st, not that |I'm
awar e.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now, what happens
on Oct ober 2nd?

MR. CABANA: On October 2nd, we
had -- our liaison officer to DFAIT visited the
t eam managers.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: And inquired as to
whet her we knew the status of M. Arar. He was
advi sed that the | ast we had heard, he had been
det ai ned by Anmericans in New York City,
interviewed, refused entry and had been returned

to Zurich.
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That was in the morning of -- it
woul d have been the morning of October 2nd.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: Later that day, our
'iaison officer to DFAIT contacted the team - -

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That's the sane
person, obviously.

MR. CABANA: That's the sanme
person, obviously.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: Contacted the team
and advi sed the team manager that that wasn't the
case; that M. Arar was still in U S. custody.

MR. CAVALLUzzZO: Okay. MWhat did
you do as a result of finding out that M. Arar
was still in U S. custody as of October the 2nd,
whi ch woul d have been, | guess, the fifth day he
was in town?

MR. CABANA: Well, first of all,
we are trying to understand what the situation is,
what the status of M. Arar is, how come he is
still inthe U S. W are |ooking, again, at what
i nvestigative options are available to us, and
di scussi ons started.

And exactly at what stage during

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B PR R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »dM W N - O

7942

this 2nd or 3rd of October these discussions took
pl ace, | couldn't tell you. AIl | know is during
this period of time, we started considering the
possibility of travelling to New York to conduct
an interviewwith M. Arar.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So it woul d
appear from what you are saying that either on the
2nd or 3rd discussions start about investigative
steps, including the possibility of going down to
New Yor k.

MR. CABANA: Yes, the
investigators and the managers are | ooking at all
t he avail able options to us to try to nmake sure
t hat we select the best avail able options.

It also included, of course,
because we are | ooking at the possibility of
interviewi ng somebody abroad, it invol ved
extensive consultation with Justice.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Does anything
happen on October 3rd?

MR. CABANA: On October 3rd
believe there is a request fromU.S. agency that
is forwarded to us by CID, by our headquarters,
and Anmerican authorities are seeking further

information in relation to M. Arar and
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specifically any aliases that we would be aware
of .

MR. FOTHERGI LL: Excuse ne.
Before the witness continues, we can acknow edge
that there was a request for information, but the
specifics about the information sought is subject
to national security confidentiality.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: |In any event, you
did receive a request for sonething?

MR. CABANA: We received a request
for further information.

MS EDWARDH: Sorry,
M. Comm ssioner, | just want to draw to
M. Caval luzzo's attention that the subject matter
of his questions is clearly set out in our
documents. Otherwi se | wouldn't have expected the
guestion asked, including the use of aliases -- in
unredacted form

THE COMM SSI ONER: It is set out
in the docunents you received.

Does the Government still claim
nati onal security confidentiality?

MR. FOTHERGI LL: To the extent
that it's obviously disclosed already, no. But I

don't think we will find that the entire request
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is disclosed.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Do we handle it
this way: that it is open to bring out the
content of the request as disclosed in the
document M. Edwardh refers to.

MR. FOTHERGI LL: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUzZO: Well, let us find
t hat .

Whil e we are doing that, | want to
file as an exhibit a |l ess redacted response to
t hat request.

THE COMM SSI ONER: This is the
response that goes on October 4th?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Yes.

--- Pause

THE COMM SSI ONER: 172.

EXH BI T NO. P-172: Fax dat ed
10 October 2002 to HQ NOC
from O C Project A- OCANADA

MR. CAVALLUzZzZO: We will find the
request but let's move on with 172, which is the
response to the request.

It should be noted -- you can
clarify this, M. Cabana -- on the top right-hand

portion of the fax it states October 2nd. |
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hat's incorrect?
MR. CABANA: That's incorrect.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: The appropriate

MR. CABANA: The correspondence
d on Oct ober 4t h.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: That shoul d be

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.
What the fax states -- once again,

headquarters, NOC, and it is "Re:

Proj ect A- OCANADA, response to [somebody' s]

request for

request to i

informati on on Maher Arar and al so
ntervi ew Maher Arar".

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And it states:
"Project A-OCANADA received a
facsimle this date through
RCMP headquarters requesting
informati on on Maher Arar.

A- OCANADA' s i nvestigators
have responded to each of the
requests contained in the

facsim |l e. The i nformati on
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is being provided to the ..."
redact ed.

"... who are coordinating the
requests for information.
The supporting docunents wil
be forwarded on a | ater date.
Proj ect A- OCANADA was al so
made aware of the detention
of Maher Arar by U.S.
authorities on Septenber
26th. We were advised that
this individual was still in
t he custody of U.S.

aut horities as of October 4.
We are requesting that our
investigators from Project

A- OCANADA be al |l owed access
to Arar for the purposes of
conducting an interviewin
relation to our
investigation. It is

i mportant to note that the
informati on contained in the
attached report only

addresses the i ssues raised.
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Proj ect A- OCANADA has
significant documentation on
this individual that could be
of assistance to your

i nvestigation."

And this is signed by -- was this
signed by you, or signed by somebody el se?

MR. CABANA: No, | believe that's
signed by somebody el se.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: What this fax
does, before we get to the information, it does a
number of things.

One, it says, "We want to
interview Arar for our own investigation"?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So you are saying
for your investigation you want to go down there
to interview Arar?

MR. CABANA: OQur position at the
time was that M. Arar, although we were surprised
he was still in custody in the U S., was stil
being returned to Zurich and this basically, or
potentially, was going to be our |ast chance to
have a face-to-face.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. And we
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will come back to that.

It goes on to say, second, you are
supplying the informati on which addresses the
guestions that have been posed by this American
agency?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And then it goes
on to say, "And by the way, we have significant
documentation on this individual that could be of
assi stance in your investigation."

So that you are inviting the
Ameri cans, saying, "If you want to investigate
further, we have a |lot of information on this guy
that we are prepared to share with you"?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Are you sure this
guy is still only a witness?

MR. CABANA: Yes. He is a person
of interest.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: 1|Is that el evated?
Like, is it witness a person of interest, target?

MR. CABANA: Well, based on what
was happening in the U . S. at the time, and based
on sonme of the informati on we had received, he was

not a target but he was a person of interest.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: In terms of the
responses, as you can see, much of it is redacted.

There is one point of
clarification that I want to point out, and that
is in the | ast paragraph at page 5, where it says:

"A link analysis has yet to
be conmpl eted on Arar and
whi |l e he has contact with
many i ndi vi duals of interest
to this project, we are
unable to indicate links to
al - Qaeda. "

| think we have seen in Exhibit
20, which is the ruling, if we can call it that,
of the INS judge removing M. Arar on or about
Oct ober the 7th, that as of October 1st, the
Americans were alleging that M. Arar was a menber
of al - Qaeda.

s that correct?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir. And
basically our response to them was we cannot show
any |links right now.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Once again, just
to be clear, this further information that is

being sent in relation to M. Arar is going
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t hrough headquarters so that headquarters is quite
aware that Project A-OCANADA is sending this
further information down.

MR. CABANA: Very much so.

Actual ly, the request was forwarded to us by
headquarters and we were directed to respond to
t he request.

The reply was, of course,
channel l ed through headquarters. |In fact, if
remenber correctly, there was a problemwi th the
transm ssion, the original transm ssion of our
reply, and headquarters retransmtted it after.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: At this point in
time what | would Iike to do is deal with a
di screte part of the events, and that is the
request for an interview.

It woul d appear that as of October
2nd or 3rd, after you discover that M. Arar is
still in New York City, you start considering the
possibility of an interview. Certainly as of
Oct ober the 4th you put that in witing to the
Ameri cans, that you are interested, Project
A- OCANADA is interested in interviewing M. Arar
inrelation to your own investigation.

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir. W made an
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official request, if you want to call it that, to
American authorities for access to M. Arar. Like
| said, we viewed this as probably the I ast
opportunity to have a face-to-face.
MR. CAVALLUZZO:. We saw in the
policies, and | just want to be sure that | know
t he policies -- and once again, | can read it to
you. You don't have to refer back to the Book of
Documents of M. Loeppky.
It is tab 29 for counsel's
benefit.
THE COVM SSI ONER: P-127
MR. CAVALLUZZO. Yes, P-12, tab
29. And this is at page 7 of 14.
As far as interviews of Canadi ans
abroad, it says:
"Do not contact or interview
Canadi ans in custody in a
foreign country unl ess:
1. the interview was
requested through a Canadi an
governnent representative, or
consent to the interviewis
given in writing, and

2. the interview has been
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approved by the head of the
foreign post."”

Just dealing with the second
point, did you need the approval of the head of
the foreign post, or does this apply when --

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, it applies.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. So the
head of the foreign post would be who? The head
of the consulate in New York?

MR. CABANA: I n New York or
Washi ngt on.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So if the
interview was to take place, before it happened
you woul d have got the approval of the head of
post .

MR. CABANA: The proper process
woul d have been for us, once we received
confirmation that the interview was a possibility,
a formal request would be made t hrough channels to
our headquarters seeking perm ssion.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. And the
first point is that the interview was requested
t hrough a Canadi an government representative.

Is that the case here, or do you

have to go to the next line, which says, you need
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t he consent of M. Arar in witing for the
intervi ew?

MR. CABANA: We woul d have
required the consent of M. Arar for the interview
to occur, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So what you are
saying is before you would interview M. Arar that
you woul d have needed his approval or consent in
writing?

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Do you think that
woul d have been a fair consent? If | ama
Canadian in jail, the Americans have held me now
for five or six days, |I'mat some detention centre
and these guys are interviewing me left, right and
centre, and finally I see a wonderful Canadi an
bef ore me and saying, "W Il you consent to an
interview?" Do you think that is a fair consent
in those circunmstances?

MR. CABANA: That woul d not be up
to me to determ ne whether it is a fair consent or
not. |If a consent is given, then we would have
been prepared to meet with M. Arar.

| woul d say whether the consent is

fair or not would be a subject of argunent in
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court.

But again, at that point in time,
M. Arar was not being viewed as a suspect but as
a potential witness at that point in tinme.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And what about
Arar's right to counsel, once again going back to
January the 25th of 2002, where he said, "I'II
meet you. |I'Il be interviewed by you guys, but |
want to be with my | awyer"?

What woul d you have said if he
said that?

MR. CABANA: Well, | believe being
in the United States, M. Arar would have had
access to counsel in the U . S. Now, whether his
| awyer at the time would have been prepared to
travel to New York to attend the interview, that's
sonmet hi ng that woul d have been subject to
di scussi on and woul d have been up to him | guess.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | guess | can't
ask whet her you discussed this with Justice.

I n any event, were there
di scussi ons about the Charter inplications of
doing this, of going down to interview a Canadi an
in detention in the United States, know ng that

virtually within half a year of that time he had
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refused to be interviewed wi thout his | awyer?

Were there any discussions |like
that that were held in the project?

MR. CABANA: There were
di scussi ons ongoi ng, and | would submt | ong
before M. Arar was detained or incarcerated in
the U.S. These discussions started a long time
before in relation to other individuals in this
project, which involved i nput fromrepresentatives
fromJustice as well as DFAIT and ot her
organi zati ons.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: No, but was there
any particul ar discussion about M. Arar's Charter
rights?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, there was.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. W th whon?

MR. CABANA: W th the | egal
advi sors that were assigned to the investigative
t eam

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And this was at
this time?

MR. CABANA: This would have been
around that tinme, yes.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

Comm ssioner, it is 3:45. It may
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be an appropriate time to break.

If we resunme at 4 o' clock, | would
hope to be finished by about 5: 30.

THE COWM SSI ONER: Okay. We will
break for 15 m nutes and resune at 4:00.

THE REG STRAR: Pl ease stand.

--- Upon recessing at 3:46 p.m /
Suspension a 15 h 46

--- Upon resum ng at 4:05 p.m /
Reprise a 16 h 05

THE REG STRAR: Pl ease be seat ed.
Veui |l ez vous asseoir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Comm ssioner,
during the break, we did check. There is no
document for October 3rd which requests the
information. There are a couple of documents
whi ch indicate certain aspects of the information
fromthat document, but there is no document from
t he American agenci es requesting -- at |east that
we have in the public documents.

THE COMM SSI ONER: In the public
docunments.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That is correct.

We obviously thoroughly

reviewed it in camera, but we did not in public.
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That was a very sly way to have ny
partner here retrieve ny --

THE COMM SSI ONER: Sort of a
time-filler.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Absolutely.

--- Laughter / Rires

MR. CAVALLUZZO: As they say, we
are getting old.

But there is one other matter
before we proceed and | want to give nmy friend the
opportunity to object. That is, if we refer to
Exhi bit P-117 at tab 25 there is reference to the
document of October 3rd.

THE COWMM SSI ONER:  Your "friend"
being M. Fothergill.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Yes,

M. Fothergill. Tab 25.

What | would refer tois, there is
a public document here, it is a Briefing Note to
the Solicitor General. It is dated June 27, 2003,
but in the second paragraph it refers to the
agenci es that requested the RCMP' s assi stance.

You will note in the second
par agraph, second sentence, it says:

"On 2002.10.03, both the CIA
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and the FBI requested RCMP
assi stance in acquiring any
informati on to support
crimnal charges in the US
agai nst Arar. We confirmed
informati on that previously
had been provided relative to
Arar's activity in Canada and
| i nkages to suspected
terrorists in Canada and
abroad."
| guess the point that | would
make, it woul d appear, at |east as far as the
Oct ober 3rd request is out, that both agencies
are identified.
| don't know if my friend has any
position --
MR. FOTHERGI LL: 1" m grateful
to M. Cavalluzzo for giving me an opportunity to
comment .
My instructions are that this
par agraph was released in error, but it is nowin
t he public domain so obviously there can be no
objection to the identification of the agencies

involved in this particul ar exchange.
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We woul d continue to maintain
generally our objection to the identification of
either U S. officials or their agencies in all
ot her pl aces.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Ot her than
t he FBI.

MR. FOTHERGI LL: That is correct.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: You don't
object to reference to the FBI?

MR. FOTHERGI LL: It depends,
unfortunately, on the context. So in general, |
cannot say.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Okay.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

M. Cabana, | would like to
just | eave October 4th in a state of abeyance
and then just once again deal with the discrete
i ssue of the request for an interview. | think
t he best way, the nost expeditious way to deal
with the request for an interview -- because, as

you know, it evolves over time, and | think the

best way to deal with it is perhaps if we refer to

Exhi bit P-85, vol ume 5.
MR. CABANA: At what tab?
MR. CAVALLUZZO: |'mtrying to
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find it.
--- Pause
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Thank you. It is
behi nd tab 27.
It is alengthy time |ine, which
| understand was created by Project A-OCANADA

peopl e?
MR. CABANA: | believe it was,
yes, sir.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. If we go
then to page 8. If you |look in the bottom
ri ght-hand portion of the page, you will see there

i s pagi nati on, page 8 of 12, and October 4th we
see there are redactions. You will see just above
the 11:15 entry that somebody was cont act ed:
"...and advi sed himof our
interest in interview ng ARAR
in New York."
Which is consistent with what we
have just seen.
Then at 11: 15 somebody met with
sonebody:
"...and advi sed him of our
interest in interview ng

ARAR. ... agreed that the
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interview should take place.”
Now, apart fromthe writing that
we have seen in the docunment October 4th fax, it
woul d appear that there were meetings on October
t he 4th about interviewing M. Arar.
| s that correct?
MR. CABANA: That is correct, sir.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. And then
it goes on at 11:45:
"...that we would request an
interview with ARAR in New
York. ... indicated that he
did not see the interview
t aki ng place this weekend."
Then if you go on to the next
page, just before the entry of October the 7th,
you will see in the second paragraph above that
entry that somebody:
"... advised her of our
interest in interview ng
ARAR. "
So clearly on October the 4th it
is a clear and unanbi guous topic of debate that
you want to interview M. Arar.

Correct?

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B P R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

7962

MR. CABANA: As | have testified,
sir, as of October 4th the decision had been made
that if we had the opportunity -- considering the
cont ext under which we were operating, considering
t he mandate we were given, if we had the
opportunity to nmeet with M. Arar, we woul d.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. The next, |
guess, work day, would be October 7th, which would
be the Monday. We will see in the entry at 8:30
that there is still that interest.

The second entry at the
second-last |line says somebody:

"... asked hi mabout the
possibility of interview ng
ARAR. He stated that ... was
dealing with the interview
request.”

And t he next one, sonebody spoke
to sonebody and:

"... stated that he needed to
know if we could link ARAR to
al Qaida or any ot her
terrorist group. ... stated
t hat ARAR had a hearing this

date and a final one on
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Wednesday (02-10-09). He
added that if there were no
further information received
ARAR woul d most |ikely be
deported to CANADA on
02-10-09). ... was aware of
our interest in interview ng
ARAR and woul d pursue our
request...”

Presumably the person that is
being referred to is an American who i s going to
be pursuing your request for the interview of
M. Arar?

MR. CABANA: | believe so, yes.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. Then at
12 o'clock, it says:

"... discussed the interview
of ARARwith .... was advised
that it was extrenely
i mportant to find out the
results of the ... with Arar.
We needed to speak with
the ...

made numerous calls

to RCMP Air Services to fly

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »dM W N - O

7964

to New York. No flights were
avail abl e and inquiries were
made comrercially but no
tickets were booked.

(Somebody) contacted ...
and advi sed hi mof the need
to know the results of the
interview. .."

Now, the request or the decision
to interviewis evolving now. There appears to be
sonmet hi ng saying that we need the results of the
interview.

Now, was that tied into whether
you were going to go down and interview M. Arar?

MR. CABANA: Very much so.

Well, first of all, starting on
Oct ober 7th -- which October 7th is the first day
where we are being advised that Canada is a
possibility. So M. Arar, rather than being
returned to Zurich, now we are being told that
there is a possibility he is being returned to
Canada. So fromthat point on there are numerous
di scussi ons anongst the investigators and with
| egal counsel and stakehol ders as far as what is

t he best approach.
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Al so, at that point in time we
weren't confident that Canada -- we weren't sure
any nore. |s Canada really where M. Arar is
going to go or is Zurich still a possibility, but
one thing we were being told --

MR. CAVALLUZZO: What about Syria?

MR. CABANA: At that point in time
Syria had not surfaced, | don't believe.

MR. CAVALLUzZO: Okay. Go on.

MR. CABANA: | have lost nmy train
of thought here.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: We were talking
about October the 7th. You say that things had
changed now, we now knew that he was comng to
Canada?

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Therefore the
results of the interview --

MR. CABANA: And al so what we were
bei ng advised is that on, | believe it was the
Wednesday, on October 9th, there was supposed to
be a hearing.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: Our understandi ng

was, follow ng that hearing M. Arar woul d be
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goi ng somewhere and we needed to determ ne whet her
it was Canada or whether it was Zurich. So still
we weren't sure which | ocation he was going to go.

We had made an official request to
interview him Initially the reaction was, we
have to start making arrangenments. |[|If we are
going to be allowed to go down, we have to make
sure that everything is lined up so that
investigators can actually go down. Before we
actually make an official request for approval at
our headquarters, we have to make sure that
everything i s prepared.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Go on.

MR. CABANA: [I'msorry. Go ahead.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Well, what cones
tomy mndis that if he is going to be returned
to Canada, right --

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: -- | would say
t hat as an RCMP officer | could save the Canadi an
t axpayers a ton of nmoney because he is com ng back
t o Canada, and when he comes back to Canada |I wil
interview himthen. W don't have to go down to
New Yor k.

MR. CABANA: If you look at the

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

7967

evi dence that is been submtted so far, | think
t hat is what you are seeing, is right now we are
still looking at all options, we are not confi dent
he is com ng back to Canada, but in our m nd now
we are saying: Well, if he is comng back to
Canada, what we should be doing is waiting for him
to come to Canada.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: No, but you are
still talking about going to New York on the 7th?
MR. CABANA: Yes. Canada hasn't
been confirmed. We don't know where he is going.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Yes, but even
if he goes to Zurich -- you said he was going
to Zurich. |If he goes to Zurich, he is still
going to get back to Canada, presumably. Zurich
is not a --
MR. CABANA: You are presum ng.
For us right now, again, you have
to | ook at the context. We were of the belief
that M. Arar had information that could be of
assi stance to our investigation. The mandate we
were given is to do everything legally and humanly
possi bl e to prevent further attacks.
I|f we had an opportunity to meet

with M. Arar, we were going to take that

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B PR R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

7968

opportunity. That is why we were pursuing this.
But, of course, when the prospect of Canada
surfaced, then discussion started occurring within
t he investigative teamand wi thin the managers

| ooki ng at the possibility: |If he is com ng back
to Canada, well, then we are going to wait for him
to come to Canada.

But there was still no
confirmation as of the 7th where M. Arar
IS going.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: From what you are
saying it would appear to me that what you were
| ooking for, as a result of your mandate, is any
i nformati on which you could get about M. Arar,
whi ch woul d be of assistance to you in your
i nvestigation?

MR. CABANA: The information we
wer e | ooki ng was not about M. Arar. The
informati on we were | ooking was in relation to the
mai n target of the project.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So are you saying
at this point in time that the RCMP was not
interested in getting informati on about M. Arar
so that it may ultimately charge hin?

MR. CABANA: No. We were very
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much interested in speaking to M. Arar to see if
he had any information that would allow us to
prosecute the main subject of our investigation,
whi ch was not M. Arar.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Well, let nme just
show you an e-mail in Exhibit P-84.

--- Pause

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: |If you go to
Exhi bit P-84, page 32 -- just wait for the
Comm ssioner to get his volume. It is on the
right part of your desk. That's it.

THE COVM SSI ONER: No, that is
not -- oh, okay, great. Sorry.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Page 32.

This is an e-mail, and the
evidence will establish that this e-mail was on or
about the same date, October 7th. This is an
internal e-mail and you will see that the subject
matter is "Arar".

It says:

"Apparently your report was
recei ved on Friday. However,
it was received in a

non-1 egible state. Can you

resend a copy of your report

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N RBP B PR R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

7970

too?"

Remember you said that about half

an hour ago?

MR.

emanating from CI D.

MR.
MR.
MR.

this is CID s view.

MR.
MR.

par agr aph.

> 3

CABANA: This is a message

CAVALLUZZO: Okay, from CI D.
CABANA: Yes.
CAVALLUZZO:. In any event,

CABANA: Yes.
CAVALLUZZO: Look at the next

CABANA: Yes, sir.

CAVALLUZZO: It says:

"Where Arar is a Canadian
citizen we cannot refuse him
entry into the country. W
woul d most certainly want to
know where he is com ng and
any informati on obtai ned by
U.S. authorities that would
assist in building a case

agai nst Arar."

This seens to clearly

i ndicate that the RCMP, on this date, October 7th,
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is interested in building a case agai nst Arar,
that he is a witness or he is related to
sonmebody el se.

O is that CID s view and not
your view?

MR. CABANA: | would submt to
you, sir, that that is CID s interpretation.

Of course, like | said earlier,
M. Arar, by that point in time, especially
consi dering what was happening in the U S., was

now a person of interest for us. W are still

viewing himas a witness. Our main focus -- and |

believe in previous conversations that we have
had | have explained that in conducting major
investigations one of the biggest dangers is
that you start investigating in 50 different

di rections --

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Yes.

MR. CABANA: -- which, in
effect, prevents you fromfocusing on what you
shoul d be doi ng.

In this project here, although
there was information, interesting information
t hat surfaced in relation to a | ot of different

i ndi vi dual s, we maintained our focus, at | east
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until the time that | left the project.

So as of this date here, CID s
perception -- and | would submt to you it m ght
be based on conversations with U S. authorities
that CID had. | was not privy to those
conversations. This is CID s interpretation.

For us, at that point in time he
was clearly a person of interest, but our focus
was still M. Al mal ki and other targets, other
mai n targets of our project, and we vi ewed
M. Arar as potentially having possession of
informati on that m ght assist us in our
i nvesti gation.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. Then
continuing on with the time line for, once again,
the request for the interview.

We are at October 7th, in
particul ar at page 10 of 12, at 4:25 in the
afternoon. This is at the bottom of the page.

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: It says --
unfortunately these names are redacted, but
somebody and somebody:

"... discussed with ... the

time element involved in
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driving to New York to do the
interview in the nmorning of
02-10-08 (as no RCWMP fli ght
was avail able and a
comercial flight was cost
prohi bitive). W were
concerned that by
interviewi ng Arar in the USA,
t here could be a perception
that we were trying to
circumvent ARAR' s
constitutional rights. W
al so di scussed the fact that
had not concl uded their
di scussi ons on our travel to
New York. As such, we
deci ded that we woul d cancel
our plans to travel to New
York and await ARAR' s
deportation to Canada and
approach himat that time for

an interview."

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir. This time
line was of course prepared subsequent to the

calling of this inquiry, but | believe, with the

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

7974

evi dence that has been submtted through the
in-camera hearing, supports the comments that are
found at 16: 25.

So as of that day at 16:25, we
deci ded to cancel our request to go to New York
and to wait for M. Arar's return to Canada.

Now, | submt to you that if
M. Arar was so inportant to us as a target, the
cost aspect of travel to New York woul d not be a
maj or consi derati on.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

At 4:30, if you go to the
next page, somebody contacted sonebody:

"... and advised himthat we
woul d not be travelling to
New York to conduct the
interview. ... was asked to
provide the projected travel
itinerary for ARAR,
specifically his arrival time
and | ocation in Canada."

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now, the next
day, 9:45, because somehow the -- you see, this is

the confusion to nme, because it |ooks |like you
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have cancell ed the idea of an interview on Monday
at 4:30 and then it revives itself.
Il n any event, at 9:45, what
happens, Inspector Roy, who is your Liaison
O ficer --
MR. CABANA: Yes.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: He:
"... arrived at the
A- O Canada office and was
advi sed of ARAR' s situation
concerning the interviews and
ARAR' s potential deportation
t o Canada on Wednesday.
| nsp. ROY indicated that he
was not aware of this
potential deportation to
Canada. |Insp. ROY stated
t hat he only knew t hat ARAR
was still in custody and
there was a possibility that
he woul d be sent to Syria."
MR. CABANA: | believe what
M. Roy -- and | can probably address al so why on
the 8th there are still discussions about the

prospect of going to New York.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO. We will come
to that.

MR. CABANA: Okay.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: |If you could just
confirmthat evidence?

MR. CABANA: In relation to the
evi dence, or in relation to the conversation with
M. Roy, what was related to us was in the context
of a consular visit that M. Arar had raised the
i ssue of Syria being a possibility for his
deportation and M. Roy related that to us.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Was that the
first occasion upon which Roy told you that Arar
was concerned that he may be deported to Syria?

MR. CABANA: | believe that was
the first occasion where Syria was raised, the
prospect of Syria was raised. | believe so.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Did you not think
of it, in light of the fact that you knew t hat
M. Arar was a dual national, that Syria was a
possibility?

MR. CABANA: No, sir. | have been
dealing with U S. authorities for the best part of
t he past 25 -- 24 years, and in ny experience if a

deportation was to occur M. Arar should have been
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deported to either his point of origin, Zurich, or
to his country, Canada.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Yes.

MR. CABANA: Syria for me was
not an option, had never been. When M. Roy
rai sed the prospect of Syria, personally I
understood M. Arar's concerns that he related to
t he consul ar officer, but I didn't put any wei ght
to it.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But, once
again, what | don't understand is that if your
bel i ef before October the 8th was that Arar was
either going to be deported to Canada or deported
to Zurich --

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: -- it would seem
to me that he was going to end up in Canada.

MR. CABANA: Well, sir, | am
actually surprised because there is evidence that
| am not allowed to refer to which led us to
believe that that m ght not be the case.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So you felt that
if he went to Zurich, the point of origin, that he
may not conme back to Canada?

MR. CABANA: Our --
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MR. CAVALLUZZO:. You can't go into
it but I just want to know if that is your --

MR. CABANA: OQur belief at the
time was that if he went to Zurich he would not be
com ng back to Canada.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

I n any event, on the norning of
the 7th you are advised Syria is a possibility.
You know he is a dual national.

Ri ght ?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: The norni ng of
the 8th I think.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Excuse nme, the
morni ng of the 8th.

You know he is a dual national?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Roy tells you
Syria is a possibility --

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: -- at 9:45.
At 12 o'clock -- once again
staying at page 11 -- at 12 o' clock somebody and

somebody met with somebody:

" .. and di scussed the
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interview"

Now, why woul d you be discussing
the interviewif you had, 12 hours before,
cancelled it?

MR. CABANA: \Which page are you
at, sir?

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: This is page 11
of 127

MR. CABANA: Page 11 of 12.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The 12 o' clock
entry for October 8th. You see in the 12 o'clock

entry it says somebody and sonebody met with

sonmebody:
"... and discussed the
interview "
MR. CABANA: Yes. Li ke I said,
sir, by the 8h in the morning it still wasn't

clear to us where M. Arar was going to end up.
We were getting conflicting information from
American authorities whether it was going to be
Zurich or Canada, and now we had DFAIT, or our
l'iai son officer to DFAIT who was advi sing us that
Syria m ght be a possibility now.

Granted, at that point in time

Syria for me -- and |' m speaking on ny behalf
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here, because | didn't retain the possibility of
Syria. Based on nmy experience, it wasn't
reasonabl e.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But what |'m
aski ng you, what |'m suggesting to you, it would
appear that the appearance of Syria as a
possibility revived your interest in an interview
with Arar?

MR. CABANA: No. On the 7th we
are making arrangements initially for an interview
of M. Arar in New York. On the 7th we find out
t hat Canada is a possibility.

Then we have di scussions on the
prospect if he is comng back to Canada the
interview should occur in Canada and the
perception that us going to New York would have,
but we still do not have clear confirmation from
anybody as far as where he is going.

So on the 8th this is still in the
m nd of investigators.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght . But on
the 7th at 4:30, it specifically states somebody
contacted somebody:

"... and advised himthat we

woul d not be travelling to
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New York to conduct the
interview "

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So it was
cancel | ed?

MR. CABANA: That was based on our
di scussi on wi th Canada.

| would have to actually go back
to the actual notes of all the investigators, but
| would submt to you, sir, that the information
we were getting fromU.S. agencies at that point
in time was confusing, because we were getting
conflicting information.

When Canada was raised as a
prospect, the perception attached to us going to
New York, the reaction we had to that is: W are
going to cancel the trip to New York. That,
coupled with the fact that on the 9th there was
supposed to be a hearing and we understood that
foll owing that hearing M. Arar would be deported
wherever, and the inpossibilities of travelling
down t here.

This is why on the 7th, at the end
of the day, the decision was made, we are not

goi ng. But on the 8th we are still not sure he is
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com ng back to Canada and the question is: |If he
is not comng to Canada and he is going to Zurich,
we m ght be m ssing the opportunity. So according
to this there was still conversati ons ongoi ng
amongst the investigators as far as the prospect
of going to New York.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But | am putting
it to you, M. Cabana, the only intervening event
bet ween the cancellation of the trip at 4:30 in
t he afternoon on October 7th and the revival of
t he di scussi on about an interview at 12 o' clock on
October 8th is the information that he may be
deported to Syri a.

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | amputting it
to you that when you got that information, you
said, "You know what, if he is going to be
deported to Syria, then perhaps we should
interview hinm?

MR. CABANA: No, sir, | don't
believe that is the case, because if that would
have been our belief we would have been |iaising
with CID on that issue.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | n any event,

|l et's see what happens at 12 o'clock. W can
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Somebody and sonebody met with

sonmebody:

"... and discussed the
interview. W discussed a
concern that if the US was
only hol ding ARAR so that we
could interview himand that
if there was any suggesti ons
t hat he did not cooperate
wi t h Canadi an i nvestigators
and woul d be sent to Syria,

t hen the perception woul d be
very damaging to the RCMP.
We agreed to speak with ...
and advi sed hi mof our
concerns up front and await a

response.”

MR. CABANA: I n reading that text

here, sir, | would suggest that that is not a

request or consideration for still going down.

This is a request,

consi deration, that if they are

hol ding M. Arar based on a request that we have

previously made, then that could be problematic,

and if there were any innuendos to M. Arar that
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if he doesn't neet with us he will be deported to
Syria, that would be very problematic.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: That's what you
are saying, and the evidence is clear, that if
somehow t he RCMP was involved in any way publicly
to M. Arar's renmoval to the United States, it
woul d be, as the person drafting this time |ine
says, would be very damaging to the RCMP?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

At 1415 in the afternoon, or
2:15 in the afternoon somebody.

"... attended the A-O Canada
office and met with ... and
of HQ CID. W discussed
i ssues concerning the
interview of ARAR. We
i ndi cated that we need to
know why ARAR i s being held,
where woul d he be sent once
we had interviewed hi mand

what he has already said to

the ... and ... was not aware
of where ... was hol di ng
Arar . "
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So what seens to be taking
pl ace here is that you are saying -- or
Proj ect A- OCANADA is saying that we will not go
down to interview M. Arar unless we find out
three things: Wiy is he being held? What
informati on has he given? And where is he going
to be sent to?

MR. CABANA: Exactly.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Why did those
t hree conditions come to the fore at this
particular point in time?

MR. CABANA: Because of the
conflicting informati on we were getting and we
needed to obtain clear confirmation as to the
status of M. Arar. We needed to be able to
establi sh whet her he was cooperative, whether he
was com ng back to Canada, so that we can make
pl ans and consequence.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. The final
entry that | would refer you to is for 1800 hours.
Sonmebody:

"... made a return call to
advised ... that we
needed to know why ARAR was

bei ng hel d, what has he
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al ready been said in
interviews and where is he
goi ng after the process is
conmpleted. ... was advised
of the concern of any
perception that the RCMP
caused ARAR to be deported to
Syria. ... indicated that he
woul d | ook into the matter
and call back on 02-10-09."

So that it is quite clear that as
of this date the RCMP was very concerned about
havi ng any kind of identification or relationship
to M. Arar's renoval to Syria, if that is where
he ended up.

MR. CABANA: Well, at that point
intime we were still of the belief that he would
be having a hearing on the 9th, the foll ow ng day.
We didn't have any clear idea of where he was
going to be sent follow ng that. Unbeknownst to
us, he had already left.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: When did you find
out that he had already left?

MR. CABANA: | found out the

foll owi ng day, on the 9th.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: October the 9th,
right.

MR. CABANA: October the 9th.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: How di d you
find out?

MR. CABANA: On October 9th |
found out actually fromone of the team | eaders
who came to nmy office and advised me that he had
received a call froma representative fromthe
U.S. Embassy advising himthat M. Arar was no
| onger in New York and woul d not be avail able for
any interview, and | believe there was no further
i nformation.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

MR. CABANA: Fol |l owi ng that
meeting, | immediately called anot her
representative of the U S. Enbassy to try to

determ ne what was going on and the status of

M. Arar.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Yes.

MR. CABANA: That person advi sed
me they would be getting back to me. | did

receive a call fromsonebody else fromthe U. S.
Enbassy | ater on that afternoon, | believe it

was -- | believe it was about 2 o'clock in the
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afternoon, where | received a call and | was
advised that M. Arar had arrived in Syria earlier
t hat day.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: What time would
t his have been on October the 9th when you were
advi sed that M. Arar had arrived in Syria?

MR. CABANA: | believe it was
approximately 2 o'clock in the afternoon.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. Was that
confirmed by any other American representatives,
or any other people in your office, that he was in
Syria on that day? 1In other words, from other
sources that M. Arar --

MR. CABANA: On that day? No, not
t hat |1'm aware of.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So that the only
informati on you had was that source in the
Ameri can Enbassy who told you --

MR. CABANA: Well, we had the
source fromthe American Embassy in the nmorning
t hat advised us that M. Arar was no |onger in New
York, and then in the afternoon |I had contact from
anot her representative fromthe U. S. Enmbassy
advising me of the location of M. Arar, | believe

confirmng that M. Arar was in custody.
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That i s about the extent of it,
| believe.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

MR. CABANA: | couldn't get any
ot her information.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: What did you do
as a result of getting the information that
M. Arar was in Syria on October 9th?

MR. CABANA: | inmmediately briefed
my supervisors, crimnal operations officers, of
t he situation.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | assune that
t hey woul d have or you notified CID headquarters
that M. Arar was in Syria?

MR. CABANA: Well, CID obviously
was -- well, actually, you know, | don't know
whet her we directly advised CID of this or not.

| assume during the course of the
9th there would have been communi cati on between
the team and CI D, but the reporting |line was
i mmedi ately advi sed.

Now, what took place after that
from CROPS' perspective, | don't know.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The evidence from
Exhi bit P-20, which is the renmoval order, is that
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M. Arar was served with the removal order, left
New York sometime around 3 or 4 o' clock on the
mor ni ng of Oct ober 8th.

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.
CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght ?
CABANA: Yes.

> 3 3

CAVALLUZZO: So it woul d
appear that for a whole day and a bit the RCW
were scurrying around, right, trying to decide
whet her you were going to interview M. Arar in
New Yor k, and then you find out on October 9th at
2 o'clock that the guy is in Syria.

MR. BAYNE: Can | just intervene,
M. Conmm ssi oner.

| don't know if by inadvertence
my friend in focusing on this has forgotten the
part of the will-say that he intended to canvas
about the RCMP attenmpting to set up surveillance
on the 8th in Montreal, so suggesting the focus
was to pursue an interviewin New York is not
quite fair.

| don't know if he just
i nadvertently forgot that or --

MR. CAVALLUZZO: He didn't

i nadvertently forget that. He is comng to that,
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because he was only focusing on the interview and
now i s going to go back to October the 5th and
take himthrough that time.

THE COMM SSI ONER: In any event,

M. Bayne, you will have an opportunity to ask
questions. If anything is overlooked that you
t hi nk shoul d be brought out you will have the

opportunity at the end.
MR. BAYNE: Fair enough, sir. I

just thought it m ght be out of context a day

| ater.
THE COMM SSI ONER: Ri ght .
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Com ng back to
t he question -- and | don't know if you want me to

repeat it for you.

MR. CABANA: Pl ease do.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. It is a
situation that concerns me as a Canadi an and this
is the question:

Here we have our national Canadi an
police force for a whole day in contact with the
Ameri cans throughout that day -- this is October
the 8th -- asking about whether we should
interview, "Can you guys facilitate the interview

of M. Arar in New York", and so on and so forth,
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spent the whole day doing that, according to the
time Iine here, right?

MR. CABANA: Well, | would
submt to you, sir, that this is a very -- this is
a small part of what we did during those days,
but, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: In any
event, there seemed to be sonme tinme spent by a
number of people.

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Okay. Then you
find out in the norning of the next day, which is
Oct ober the 9th -- finalized in ternms of where he
was at 2 o' clock in the afternoon of October 9th.

Did anybody in the RCMP say
to these American representatives, "What are
you peopl e doing? We have a close sharing of
information rel ationship. W are partners.

We are all stakeholders in this. Wiy didn't

you |l evel with us, because we have wasted a | ot
of time? Why did you tell us, more than 24 hours
after the fact, that a Canadian citizen has been
removed and sent to Syria? Wy did it take

t hat | ong?"

Did anyone in the RCMP ask the
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Ameri cans that?

MR. CABANA: At a higher |evel
t han nyself, | don't know what ki nd of
conversations or discussions took place with
American agencies. | would suspect that there was
sonme phone calls that were made.

Myself, in the afternoon of the
9th, when | spoke to the representative fromthe
U.S. Embassy, that was basically the gist of the
conversation, wanting to know what was goi ng on,
why this had happened, and identifying to them
t hat what they had done was very significant and
had some very serious DFAIT i ssues attached to it.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Very serious...?

MR. CABANA: DFAI T i ssues.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Oh, Departnment of
Foreign Affairs issues?

MR. CABANA: Yes, the way that
t hey handl ed a Canadi an citizen.

So those types of discussions from
my perspective took place with a counterpart at
the U. S. Enbassy.

How much wei ght that woul d have. ..

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Did that make you

feel like a full partner with the Americans, when
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they did this to you?

MR. CABANA: No, no. Clearly not.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: As | say, we were
suspending in time October the 4th. Let us get
back to the chronol ogy.

Oct ober the 5th. There was a
tel ephone call on Saturday, October the 5th.

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. You were not
party to the tel ephone call?

MR. CABANA: No, | was not.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: But you do have
knowl edge that the tel ephone call was made with a
person from Cl D?

MR. CABANA: Bet ween a
representative fromU. S. Enbassy and a person from
ClD, yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The person from
CiDis M. Flewelling, who will be testifying
| ater?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Can you give us
t he essence of the conversation between this
American representative and M. Flewelling on

Sat urday, October 5th?
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MR. CABANA: Certainly. Fromny
under st andi ng the conversation that took place
bet ween the two individuals, the American
authorities were seeking confirmation from
Canadi an authorities on what options were
avai l abl e to Canadi an aut horities and whet her,
should M. Arar return to Canada, any charges
woul d be | aid against M. Arar or if Canadi an
authorities were in a position to refuse
M. Arar's entry to Canada.

That was, in a nutshell, the gist
of the conversation.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. W th that
knowl edge -- | assune that this was shared with
you on or about -- in fact, if we go back to the
chronol ogy, this book, Exhibit P-84, at page 30 --
or, excuse me, it is not page 30, it is page 32.

This is an e-mail relating to that
particul ar conversation. Some of it is redacted.

But when you heard about that
conversation, when the Anericans are asking sonme
guestions, three questions in fact, of:

What is your interest in Arar?
guess your response would be: He is a person of

interest in an ongoing investigation.
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Second: Do you have sufficient
evidence to charge Arar with a crim nal offence?

Third, can you refuse himentry?

Did that raise in your mnd the
possibility, the real possibility, that the
Americans may not be sending Arar back to Canada,
because if the response is: |If we send himup
t here can you refuse his entry"” and the answer is
"No, we can't refuse his entry. He is a Canadi an
citizen." Did an idea conme to m nd saying, "You
know what ? These guys may be thinking of not
sending himto Canada, but sending himel sewhere"?

MR. CABANA: No, sir. No, sir.

For me the only options in a
deportation process was still either Canada or
Zurich. |If they were | ooking at whet her Canada
could refuse him the only other avail abl e option,
as far as | was concerned, was Zurich.

So no, that was not a concern
for me.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: On October 7th,
whi ch was the Monday -- and that e-mail indicates
t hat al though M. Flewelling was going to be on
hol i days that he was going to be at work on that

day, on the Monday, October 7th.
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Did you neet with M. Flewelling
on Monday, October 7th?

MR. CABANA: | don't believe I
did, no, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: October 7th as
well -- or October the 8th, we have dealt with the
di scussi ons of the interview. W have also dealt
with the information from M. Roy. But there is
also information that there was a surveill ance put
on M. -- or a decision to put a surveillance on
M. Arar and a number of the members of his famly
were interviewed on October the 8th?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: That decision to
do that was made when?

MR. CABANA: The decision to...?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: To surveil him
To put surveillance on and to interview his famly
menmbers on Oct ober the 8th?

MR. CABANA: | would submt it was
made sonmetime on the 8th, either late on the 7th
or early on the 8th where in discussions anongst
investigators, |ooking at all the avail able
options again, and at that point in time, on the

7t h, Canada had been identified as a potenti al
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destination for M. Arar. Then investigators | ook
at the possibility of if he is com ng back to
Canada |l et's put surveillance and see what

M. Arar does.

So arrangenments -- and these
arrangenments are quite intricate in the sense that
you are dealing with a | arge nunber of resources
t hat you have to redirect and renove from ot her
priorities, so we were | ooking at putting
surveillance should he be com ng back to Montreal
or should he be going to "O' Division, because we
still didn't have a final destination.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now, a nunber
of the members of his famly were interviewed on
Oct ober 8th to your know edge?

MR. CABANA: That is correct, sir.
That is my understandi ng, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Assum ng that

M. Arar would be com ng back to Canada on October

9th, if you can help me, | just don't understand
if you are going to be surveilling M. Arar when
he comes back on October 9th, surely he will have

spoken to his famly who were interviewed by the
RCMP on October 8th, what kind of a surveill ance

woul d that be? He would know you were --
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MR. CABANA: |t would be an oral
ki nd of surveillance. The purpose of meeting with
famly members, very sinmply, to our know edge,
M. -- we didn't know the reason for M. Arar's
return to Canada.

To our knowl edge at the time,
M. Arar -- we didn't have a residence for himin
Canada and it was an idea of sitting down with the
famly and trying to find out the reason for his
return, what his plans were, where was he going.
There had to be a reason why he was com ng back to
Canada. That is what we were trying to determ ne.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So you -- sorry.

MR. CABANA: The fact that we were
meeting with famly members does not mean that
necessarily we were going to be having
surveillance on a certain individual. 1t is just
normal investigative steps that are being taken.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So that obviously
if M. Arar returned to Canada on Oct ober the 9th,
you woul dn't be concerned that he woul d becone
aware that the RCMP were interviewing his famly
about himself --

MR. CABANA: No.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. -- the day
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bef ore?

MR. CABANA: No.

MR. CAVALLUzZO: Okay. You did
receive a surveillance report, including all of

the interviews with M. Arar's famly --

MR. CABANA: \What we received
wasn't a surveillance report because, as we know
now, surveillance never did take place.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Or a report of
some ki nd.

MR. CABANA: We received an
investigator's report fromour investigators in
Mont r eal .

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. The next
day, October the 9th, is when you discover once
again that M. Arar has been deported or removed
to Syri a.

Did anyt hi ng happen on the 9th,
after you found out that M. Arar had been
found -- or was in Syria? Did anything else
happen in relation to M. Arar on the 9th, which
woul d be the Wednesday of that week?

MR. CABANA: | can't remember.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

Now t he next thing, according to
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t he records that we have, relating to M. Arar is
a fax which is sent to the LOin Rome. | would
like to file a newly redacted package which is
presently Exhibit P-85, volume 4, tab 117, but
t his has been newl y redacted.
THE COVM SSI ONER: Exhi bit P-1737
EXH BI T NO. P-173: Newl y
redact ed Exhi bit P-85,
Vol ume 4, tab 117
--- Pause

MR. CAVALLUZZO: M. Cabana, if
you go to the | ast two pages of this package --

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: -- you will see a
fax which is dated October 17, 2002. So this
woul d have been the week after.

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The fax is sent
to the LOin Rone and it is about M. Arar.

What it is, it seenms to be a
summary of the information. You will see it says:

"Further to our tel ephone
conversation of this date,
the followi ng are the

circunstances relating to
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Proj ect A-OCanada's interest
in subject Maher ARAR."

So it would seemthat this fax
with this information was instigated by a call
fromthe LOin Rome?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir. |
received a call earlier that day from M. Fiorido,
our LOin Rome.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: M. Fiorido
requested sone i nformati on about M. Arar?

MR. CABANA: M. Fiorido advised
he was aware that a Canadi an was now i ncarcer at ed
in Syria and he was seeking information on the
circunstances.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now, | just

want to ask you a question so that you can clarify

this.

At the second page, in the second
par agraph -- or the paragraph under the redaction,
it says -- this is the way |I read it:

"On October 8, 2002, Project
A- OCanada managers were

advi sed by U. S. authorities
t hat ARAR had been deported

to Syria."
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MR.
MR.

Now,

| ast sentence says:

i nformati on

in Syria?

of October?

Oct ober the

is in Syria.

informati on

8003

CABANA: Yes, sir. That i s an

CAVALLUZZO: So that is an

CABANA: | believe it is, yes.
CAVALLUZZO: Okay.

in terms of his |location, the

"Project A-OCanada has not
been i nformed of ARAR' s exact
wher eabouts or his custodi al

status in Syria."

So that as of October 17th the

whi ch Proj ect A- OCANADA had was he is

MR.

MR.
MR.
MR.

CABANA: As of the 17th

CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght.
CABANA:  Yes.
CAVALLUZZO: Right. So as of

9th you are told by the Americans he

Oct ober the 17th, for whatever nore

you had,
MR.
MR.

he is still in Syria?
CABANA:  Yes.
CAVALLUZZO: Okay.
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Just for clarification of counsel,
there is some confusion in this document and |
would like to clarify it wi thout having the
wi tness speak to it.

But on the third page, you wil
see, thisis M. Fiorido -- who is the LOin Ronme
at this point intime -- M. Fiorido' s statenent
to the Public Conplaints Comm ssion.

You will see on the first page,
page 1 of 3, he states, October 22nd, 2002 -- you
will see he says:

"l observe a media article in
the top story section of the
daily DFAIT Internet News..."

And so on. Then, just before the
redacti on he says:

"l then contacted Division
menmber of ... to obtain any
background i nformati on
avail able."

Then in the next entry on the
second page, October 23rd, you will see he says:

"Upon arriving to work this
morning | note that we had

received a secure fax and the
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fax is dated October 17."

So the October 22nd date nust be
incorrect, of M. Fiorido must be incorrect. |If
anyone is reading this there will be confusion
rai sed and | thought I would clarify that.

Now I would Iike to move on to
Oct ober 21st, which is a Monday, and | would |ike
to refer to your notes.

Just in terms of the correct date,
do you recall the date that M. Fiorido called you
for the information? Was it October the 17th, the
same date as you sent the fax out?

MR. CABANA: Yes. Yes, it
woul d be.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: | wonder if you
m ght refer to page 54 of your notes. In
particular |I'm|ooking at the entry for -- |
guess, is that 3:30 in the afternoon or 3:50 in
the afternoon? It is 15507?

MR. CABANA: 1550, | believe, yes.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: | wonder if
you m ght read that entry and on to the next page
as wel | .

MR. CABANA: Certainly.

"Received a call fromM. Jim
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Goul d of DFAIT advi sing that
Syrian authorities had
acknow edged the fact they
had Maher Arar in custody.
M. Gould advised the writer
t hat the Canadi an Anbassador
to Syria was scheduled to
meet with Syrian authorities
tomorrow and wanted to
confirm whet her we were
interested in Arar as well as
Al Mal ki, and whet her charges
wer e pendi ng.

The writer advised that
inrelation to..."
is redacted:
“"In relation to Maher Arar,
the witer explained that we
were interested sinply
because of his association
to..."
is redacted:
“...and would like to speak
to himbut at this time, no

charges were being
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cont enpl at ed.

M. Gould asked whet her
t here was any ot her nessage
we woul d Ii ke conveyed. The
writer advised that we

have. . ."

is redact ed.

"...that we woul d be prepared

to share with..."

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Just a m nut e.

It says:

"The writer advised that we

have intelligence/evidence."

MR. CABANA: Not on m ne.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: You have the

It was newly redacted so that

what the words should be -- let me just read this

page then.

"...messages we would |ike
conveyed. The writer advised
t hat we have
intelligence/evidence ...

t hat we woul d be prepared to

share with Syrian authorities
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if they felt it could be of
assi stance to their
investigation. This is in
l'ight of the sharing info

I f you could read that |ast point.

MR. CABANA: Certainly.

"...i1f they felt it could be
of assistance to their
investigation. This in |ight
of their sharing info with us
in past."”

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Jim Gould is the
| SI person from DFAI T?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, he is.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now, what | woul d
ask you is: If M. Arar is only a person of
interest, a witness or a person of interest, why
woul d you offer information to the Syrians, Syrian
aut horities, which would be of assistance to their
i nvestigation?

Why woul d you do that?

MR. CABANA: This offer was not
strictly inrelation to M. Arar. The offer was

inrelation to two i ndividual s.
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THE COMM SSI ONER: You said the
offer was in relation to two individual s?

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. But certainly
part of the offer related to M. Arar?

MR. CABANA: Yes. And this offer
was made in the context of a | engthy consultation
process that we went through earlier today
invol ving different agencies, including Justice,
including CSI'S, including DFAIT, over the prospect
of sharing information with Syrians. During those
di scussions it had been supported.

This offer is not made to Syri an
authorities. This is discussions between DFAIT
and nysel f.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But were you
aware of the human rights record of Syria at
this time?

MR. CABANA: Personally aware?

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Yes.

MR. CABANA: No. | knew probably
|'i ke every other Canadian citizen that watches the
news that Syria m ght not necessarily share the
same human rights concerns as Canada does, but as
far as what the specifics of their practices were,

no, | had no know edge of that.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: Did it not
concern you that M. Arar was clearly brought to
Syria against his will, and here we have a
Canadi an institution or agency offering
informati on or evidence, intelligence or
evi dence - -

MR. CABANA: Sir, first of all,

t he circunstances surrounding M. Arar's arrival
in Syria was as much a concern to us as probably
every ot her Canadi an that heard about this.

The circunstances at the time were
that there was | engthy discussions that took place
amongst agencies, and like | said earlier, |
relied on the experts.

I|f my supervisors and if the
people from DFAI T and CSI'S and Justice are in
agreement with this, nmy mandate was an
investigative mandate and to do everything |I could
to prevent any further attack.

So that was one of the
i nvestigative options that was avail able to us.

This particular conversation here
did not make any offer to Syrian authorities.

This is discussions with DFAIT.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But the offer
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t hrough DFAI T would be, "We're prepared to share
with Syrian authorities if they felt it would be
of assistance to their investigation"?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So in effect you
were throwi ng the offer out through DFAIT?

MR. CABANA: Based on the previous
conversations we had had with DFAI T where this
very issue was di scussed.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: We will come to a
subsequent neeting where you are going to be
relying on experts as to the human rights record
of Syria, and | assume one of the experts woul d be
M. Pillarella?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But once again
come back to the situation, the way the Americans
removed t his Canadian - -

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Unbeknownst to us
for 24 hours, bring himto this country agai nst
his will, where he's detained in detention.

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO. The Ameri cans

don't didn't have enough information to charge
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him The Canadi ans don't have enough to charge
him right? He is just a person of interest.

MR. CABANA: Ri ght .

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And here we have,
whet her it's the RCMP itself or through DFAIT,
offering information to the Syrians.

Don't you find that inappropriate
in retrospect?

MR. CABANA: Sir, personally, |
don't think it makes any difference whether | find
it i nappropriate or not.

My personal opinion at the time,
no, I didn't find it inappropriate, and personally
| still don't today.

The directives that | had received
was to conduct a crim nal investigation and do
everything | could to prevent attacks. |If the
i ndividuals, if the persons that are responsible
for this type of sharing are in agreement with it,
|'"mcertainly not going to raise my arms and say,
"No, this is wong." |f people are saying it's
appropriate, fine.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. We will
come to this, but I understand that M. Gould

never canme back to you to say, "I've made the
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deal. G ve nme the information"? That was never
done?

MR. CABANA: No.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So that to your
knowl edge the RCMP did not offer any information
to the Syrian authorities about M. Arar?

MR. CABANA: Well, the offer
woul dn't come fromthe RCMP. The offer would be
channell ed through DFAIT. So to my know edge, no.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And to your
knowl edge did the RCMP ever in fact give
information to the Syrian authorities through
DFAI T about M. Arar?

MR. CABANA: | don't believe so.
Not at the time that | left the project, | don't
bel i eve so.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: That's fair. As
of February 2003, you are not aware of any
informati on that the RCMP gave Syrian authorities?

MR. CABANA: In relation to
M. Arar?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: In relation to
M. Arar.

MR. CABANA: No.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: The only other
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question | have in respect of this date is the
last line in the entry says -- just to give it
cont ext:
"The writer advised that we
have intelligence/evidence
t hat we woul d be prepared
to share with Syrian
authorities if they felt it
woul d be of assistance to
their investigation."

Then it says:

"This in |light of the sharing
of information in the past."”

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: What are you
t al ki ng about here? MWhat sharing of information
in the past?

MR. FOTHERGI LL: |'m not sure what
answer the witness may give, but | think that
there is a substantial risk that the answer he
gives may be subject to a claimof national
security confidentiality.

MR. CAVALLUZZO. That's fair. We
will -- if that is being asserted.

Woul d your answer to the question
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rely upon NSC evi dence?
MR. CABANA: Yes, | believe it
woul d.
THE COWMM SSI ONER: And t he
Government is asserting a claimthen?
MR. FOTHERGI LL: Yes, sir.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: All right.
If we move on then, M. Cabana, to
Oct ober 30th, could you show the witness Exhibit
P-97, please?
--- Pause
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Just for your
benefit, M. Cabana, this is an e-mail that was
sent to the Syrian enbassy from M. Pardy, and the
second paragraph, at the bottomthere, | would
refer you to.
It says:
"Wth respect to paragraph 6
of referenced nmessage woul d
appreci ate i f Anbassador
could report if there has
been any contact wi th RCMP
and CSIS |liaison officials
indicating interest in

visiting Syria or contact
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with Syrian officials with
respect to the case.™

And of course the case relates to
M. Arar.

"There have been indications
of this fromthe RCMP and
letter is being prepared..."

Now, are you aware of anything
relating to this, any RCMP contacts which were
attenpted regarding M. Arar --

MR. CABANA: W th Syrian
aut horities?

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Yes.

MR. CABANA: No.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. You are not aware
of this at this tinme?

MR. CABANA: No.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: As far as the
status of M. Arar is concerned, | would like to
refer now to Exhibit P-85, Volunme 5, at tab 27.

We | ooked at the tinmeline before,
but this is a facsimle message dated Oct ober
22nd, 2002, to Deputy Comm ssi oner Loeppky from
t he CROPS officer Antoine Couture.

It says:

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B P R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

8017

"Re: Maher Arar

Proj ect A- OCANADA Overvi ew
As per our conversation of
this date, please find
attached the investigative
time line inrelation to
Maher ARAR. This is a brief
overview from an
investigative perspective and
it also includes specific
tracki ng of our

communi cations with American
authorities upon his
detention in New York City.
Our investigative efforts on
this individual continue and
whi |l e we have no evidence to
pursue a prosecution, we are
of the opinion that he has
significant involvement with
targets of this project and
his activities are of
concern.

Hi s detention and subsequent

deportation to Syria by
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American authorities was done
solely at their discretion
and wi t hout any input or

invol vement fromthis office.
We have made every effort to
share information with the
American authorities just as
we have with our Canadi an
counterparts.”

This reference that "the
investigative efforts continue, we don't have any
evi dence to pursue a prosecution, however, in our
opi ni on, he has significant involvement with
targets of this project and activities of concern”
woul d seemto indicate that the investigation in
respect of M. Arar will continue, and that any
further information about M. Arar will be used in
respect of these investigative efforts.

That was M. Couture's view on
Oct ober 22nd of 2002, and | assunme you shared that
view, since he was your supervisor?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, very much
so.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Once again we see

M. Edel son surfacing around this time, and |
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would like to bring you to Exhibit P-83, at tab 1,
page 228.

This is a letter dated October
31st, 2002, from M. Edel son, and we have heard a
great deal of evidence about this.

This is through his discussions
with M. Pardy. |t was suggested to himthat in
terms of DFAIT's efforts to have M. Arar returned
to Canada that if he could get the RCMP to make
four statenments that that would be of great
assistance in getting M. Arar's return.

This letter is directed to Ann
Al der, who is the DOJ person assisting Project
A- OCANADA. Did it subsequently come to your
attention?

MR. CABANA: Yes, it did.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: |If we go to the
next page, at page 230, we see that you write a
memo to the O C of the "A" Division crimnal
operations. That would be M. Couture?

MR. CABANA: That's correct.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And you state in
respect of M. Edelson's letter:

"It woul d appear that

M. Pardy suggested than an
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official letter fromthe RCWVP
|etter attesting to the
points listed in

M . Edel son's correspondence
woul d greatly assist DFAIT in
returning M. Arar to Canada.
While at this juncture our
project is aloof to

M. Arar's status, the
suggesti ons and coments of
M. Pardy are highly
problematic in that they seek
to shift the responsibility
of Arar's future status
squarely on the RCWVP. |
believe DFAIT has to be
sensitized on the possible

i mpact these types of

di scussi ons can have on

ongoi ng investigations."

Before | ask any questions, what
did you mean by the word "al oof"?

MR. CABANA: Unawar e. Unawar e of

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Your concern
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presumably was with paragraph nunber 4 of this
letter, and it states that M. Arar is not a
suspect with respect to any terrorist-rel ated
crime?

MR. CABANA: Well, the concern
went further than that.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

MR. CABANA: First of all it
was -- and this is ny personal view-- it was
hi ghly i nappropriate for a request like this, for
DFAI T to suggest that a request |like this be
channel |l ed through counsel to the RCMP.

First of all, the request should
have been made by DFAIT to the RCMP, not through
counsel .

Secondly, as a matter of policy,
the RCMP is not in the habit or even in a position
to be able to confirmthe majority of these points
here.

Under st andi ng the circunstances,
there was a response that was prepared.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But did you not
feel some bit of responsibility for M. Arar's
plight in the sense that perhaps some of the

informati on that the Americans got fromthe RCMP
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was relied upon in -- listen to the question.
MR. CABANA: Yes.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: -- in their
removal proceedi ngs which rendered himto Syria?
Didn't that make the RCMP at | east

somewhat responsible for M. Arar's plight in

Syria?

MR. CABANA: No, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: No ?

MR. CABANA: | would submt to you
that, first of all, the informati on that was

shared with American authorities in relation to
M. Arar was insufficient for us to obtain any
type of | egal authorization in Canada, |et alone
lead to this type of action by American
aut horities.

| would also submt to you that
there is a significant body of evidence that is
avai |l abl e that has been introduced in camera that
clearly indicates that the decision of the
Americans was just that, an American deci sion.

So, no, | didn't feel any
responsibility.

MR. CAVALLUzZzZO: Well, if we | ook
at Exhibit P-20, which is the document that we
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have, which is the removal order --

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. -- it makes
specific reference to matters that must have come
to the knowl edge of the Americans by the RCMP.

It tal ked about the Mango's wal k,
tal ked about his relationship with certain people.

| am not saying all of the
informati on the Americans relied upon in respect
of removing Arar came from Canada. What |I'm
suggesting to you, sir, is that at |east sonme of
the information that they relied upon, on the face
of the document itself, Exhibit P-20, the renoval
order --

MR. BAYNE: M. Conmm ssioner, on
t he basis of fairness, | object. This was a
matt er canvassed thoroughly with you about
suggestions that this caused M. Arar's fate.
There is a very lengthy and conmpl ete body of
evi dence that deals with this.

Canadi ans coul d make up their
m nds if he could answer this question fully, and
he can't. He can't possibly fairly answer this so
Canadi ans can make up their m nds.

It is M. Cavalluzzo's proposition
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that surely some part of this must have pl ayed
some role. And he has tried as best he can with
the confines of what he is allowed to say to
explain, no, there is a body of evidence.

That was canvassed distinctly with
you and you agreed there would not, on this issue
of causation, be any innuendo about this, given
t hat body of evidence.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Well, just to
respond to nmy friend, the question relates to the
Americans relying upon sonme information com ng
from Canadians. And | amreferring now to Exhibit
P-20, which is the removal order, which
specifically makes reference to informati on which
must have come from Canada.

And t he question was: 1In |ight of
t hat, do you not feel sonme responsibility?

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Why don't you
put the question in light of the reference in the
removal order, which is public, does he feel
responsibility?

| think the point is that we ought
not to canvass -- we can't canvass the issue of
the causation in this hearing because, as

M. Bayne points out, there is a considerable
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vol ume of evidence. W have heard all of that
evidence, and I will draw my conclusions and they
will be in the report.

So |l think if the question is
confined to just referring to what is in Exhibit
P-20 and asking himif he felt any responsibility,
and | eave it at that.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Yes, and it's a
very sinmple question. The fact that there are
pi eces of information in Exhibit P-20, which is
t he removal order --

MR. CABANA: May | see P-207?

MR. CAVALLUzZZO:. Absolutely. This
is the removal order fromthe INS in respect of
M. Arar.

--- Pause

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZO: Okay. So what |
woul d be referring to is the unclassified portion
of the decision wherein information relating to
M. Arar?

MR. CABANA: \Which would be at
what page?

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Page 5.

MR. CABANA: Page 5.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: For exanple, it

"The FBI interviewed Arar on
September 27, 2000, at JFK

| nternational Airport.

During the interview, Arar
adm tted his association with
Abdul I ah Al mal ki and Abdul | ah
Al mal ki *s brother, Nazih

Al mal ki . Arar advised the
FBI that he was friendly

with..."

It says Nazi h.

"... [that person] in Syria
whil e they were in school

t oget her and he [Arar] worked
with [that person] at Nex

Li nk Communi cations. Arar

al so advi sed..."

Et cetera, et cetera, about

someone who exports radios and so on and so forth.

MR. CABANA: Yes.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: | am putting it

to you that this information that came out of his

guestioning with the FBI was likely related to
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informati on that the FBI got from Canada.

MR. CABANA: No, | believe that
the information that is referred to here m ght be
the result of M. Arar's answer to the question
fromthe FBI.

Some of those questions likely
originated from Project A-OCANADA, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But assum ng
that -- that's the only point |I'm making.

Assum ng that the Americans relied
upon -- or it's not relied upon, but assum ng that
there is reference in this document, which is the
removal order, to information that may have come
from Canada, and knowi ng how t he Americans renmoved
and rendered M. Arar, did that not make you feel
responsible in some way for M. Arar?

MR. CABANA: No, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay. In any
event, com ng back to the letter, M. Couture
writes M. Proulx -- this is at page 232, and
basically making the same points that you do about
t he i nappropriateness of DFAIT working through
counsel and overstepping their bounds and so on.

You saw a copy of that?

MR. CABANA: Yes, | did, sir.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: And then finally
at page 233, you wrote a letter to M. Edel son,
whi ch is dated November 16th of 20027

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. And this is
Exhi bit P-150, which has been recently redacted
with M. Cabana's signature as well as the
reference nunber.

Was that the |l ast involvenment you
had with M. Edel son concerning his request that
the RCMP write this letter?

MR. CABANA: No, | don't believe
so.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: You were involved
again |ater than that?

MR. CABANA: | believe | was,
towards the end of November; November 28, |
bel i eve.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And that was a
meeting that we will conme to.

MR. CABANA: Exactly.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: We are in
Novenmber now of 2002, and on or about November the
4t h of 2002, |ISI/DFAIT sends a fax to A- OCANADA,
and I"'mreferring to Exhibit P-42, tabs 164 and
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165.
--- Pause
MR. CABANA: Which tab, sir?
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Start at 164.
This is a fax once again from
Scott Heatherington of ISl to RCMP headquarters
“A" Division, and enclosing this e-mail which has
been newl y redact ed.
And then 165 -- 165 has been newy
redacted. This is an entry for Novenber 3rd.
Just let me read you what the
redactions are. | amreferring nowto
M. Pillarella s book, which is Exhibit P-134 at
tab 6, and what it states is:
"On November 3rd, 2002, the
Canadi an Ambassador to Syria
received a docunment (written
in Arabic) from Syrian
Mlitary Intelligence. The
Ambassador brought the
document to Canada personally
and gave it to ISl on
Novenmber 6. ISl sent it to
CSIS for translation. The

document, an undated
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t hr ee- paragraph bout de

papi er, was translated on
Novenmber 7. The document

al |l eges that Arar had spent
time in Afghanistan in

Muj aheddi n canps and that he
knew ... The docunment was
sent to CSIS for translation
by the CSIS LO officer in

I SI. The transl ated docunent
was returned to ISl and the
informati on was shared with
JPD, the RCMP and CSIS."

In terms of this information that
is comng fromDFAIT, | understand that on or
about November the 6th there was a meeting?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, there was,
at DFAIT.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And you attended
t he meeting?

MR. CABANA: Yes, | did.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And who el se
attended the neeting?

MR. CABANA: On Novenber 6th, |

beli eve Chi ef Superintendent Couture was there; I
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beli eve Wayne Pilgrimwas there. |I'mtrying to
remenmber who el se was there.

There were representatives from
CSIS that were there as well, and ISl
representatives as well as M. Pillarella.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: What was the
pur pose of the meeting?

MR. CABANA: The purpose of the
meeting was, first of all, for M. Pillarella to
provide us with a briefing of the results of his
meetings with Syrian authorities; general
di scussion with respect to the informati on that
flowed fromthat nmeeting, and focus basically on
t he need to obtain more detailed information,
because the information that was provided,
al t hough interesting, could not really be
verified.

So there was a determ nation that
more i nformation was required.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Was there any
ot her di scussion?

This was about M. Arar, | assune,
t hat this discussion is going on?

MR. CABANA: Yes, it was about

M. Arar. |I'mtrying to remenber whether there
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was any di scussi ons about ot her Canadi ans, but

M. Arar was the focus of the conversation, yes.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: | am putting it

to you that you were still -- and this is Novenber

the 6th, which is a week or so after the Couture

memo. You are still in your investigative node as

far as M. Arar is concerned, as of Novenber the

6th?

MR. CABANA: Well, it depends on
your definition of "investigative mode". M. Arar
was definitely -- especially given the actions

t aken by the Americans, it was clear that there
was i nformati on that we were not privy to, so that
was of interest to us. Our focus remained the
mai n target of our investigation.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But as far as
M. Arar is concerned, the more information that
you coul d get about him as M. Flewelling would
say, the stronger your case was going to be
agai nst M. Arar.

I sn't that correct?

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. So when
M. Pillarella, or anybody from DFAIT, is giving

you i nformati on about M. Arar, you are going to
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use that information to pursue your mandate?

MR. CABANA: First of all, the
information that is provided to us by
M. Pillarella is not being provided in an
adm ssible format. |If what you mean is that we
are going to be relying on this information, we
are definitely going to be analysing the
informati on and we are going to be trying to
verify as many points as we can to see if the
information i s accurate or not.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: |'mputting it to
you, very sinmply, that the information that you
get fromDFAIT is not going to be used to assi st
M. Arar but is going to be used against M. Arar.
I sn't that correct?

That is your mandat e.

MR. CABANA: It is going to be
used in the context of our investigation, yes.

Specifically against M. Arar? At
the time M. Arar was not in Canada.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: But if you got in
touch --

MR. CABANA: | understand what you
are saying, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So certainly when
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DFAIT is giving you this information, whether it
be M. Pillarella or anybody, should be under no
illusions that they are giving you this
information to assist M. Arar?

MR. CABANA: | don't think they
were under any illusion, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now, at this
meeting that M. Pillarella, CSIS and the others
attended, was there any di scussi on whatever about
the possibility of torture in respect of the

statement that M. Arar allegedly gave the

Syrians?
MR. CABANA: On Novenber 6th?
MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Yes.
MR. CABANA: No, sir, not that |
can recall.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Was there any
di scussi on about the reliability of the statement
because of the tactics which may be used by the
Syrians?

MR. CABANA: Well, the reliability
of any statements -- and | would subm t not
strictly statements obtained in the existing
context in Syria; any statement is always tested,

and the same process woul d be inmplenmented in
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relation to statements originating frominterviews
conducted in Syria.

Like | said, the practice for
investigators, for our team was to | ook at the
statement, analyze it, and try to corroborate as
many of the points as possible, specifically for
t hat purpose, to try to establish whether there
was any credibility to the statenment.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: But was there any
suggestion that the reliability of the statenment
was in question as a result of the tactics or

met hods of interrogation which may be used by the

Syrians?

MR. CABANA: No, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Comm ssioner,
it's 5:30. | was hoping to finish the testinmony

t oday, but |1'm going to be about another probably
45 m nut es.
It is a long day for the witness.
MR. CABANA: "' m fine.
THE COWMM SSI ONER: What is your
wi sh? Let me just canvass and see what we are
| ooki ng at because we have to finish by tonorrow
eveni ng.

Ms Edwar dh, what do you antici pate
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at this point?

MS EDWARDH: M. Cavalluzzo
prom sed nme that he would be finished, he hoped,
no | ater than m d-afternoon, M. Comm ssioner.

| find it hard to predict. | wl
of course review ny notes carefully and try and
make sure that | don't cover areas that
M. Caval luzzo has covered, except to bring a
di fferent perspective to them But |I'mgoing to

be some hours with this wi tness.

THE COVM SSI ONER: I would like to
actually have estimates, and | will hold people to
them | really would like to finish this w tness

t onorrow.

| f necessary, we can keep going
toni ght and we can start at eight o'clock tonmorrow
morning so that there is that opportunity. But I
don't hold that out in any way to try to be unfair
to peopl e.

MS EDWARDH: | was going to ask to
proceed with my cross-exam nation after Government
counsel, which is what we did with Ms. Girvan
because she was i ndependently represented as well,
whi ch woul d | eave M. Bayne to go | ast.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Ri ght.
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MS EDWARDH: And | know there are
now t hen at | east five cross-exam ners tonorrow.

THE COVM SSI ONER: Ri ght .

MS EDWARDH: | can't see doing
this under four to four-and-a-half hours,

M. Conmm ssi oner.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Okay.

Ms Mcl saac, how | ong do you think
you will be -- or M. Fothergill, sorry.

MR. FOTHERGI LL: M. Comm ssioner,
it depends a bit on the order of
cross-exam nation, which I think you still have to
provi de direction on.

Our preference would be that we
adopt what we once referred to as the modified
procedure, which is to say that if there are new
areas not canvassed by Comm ssion counsel, we
bring that to the attention of Comm ssion counsel,
but that we occupy the normal position, which
woul d be after counsel for M. Arar, for the
sinpl e reason that Superintendent Cabana, although
separately represented, is also a representative
of an institution that we represent, namely the
RCMP.

If I amto ask questions after
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M. Caval luzzo, | expect | can conplete in 20

m nutes to half an hour. But | suspect that,
dependi ng on how effective Ms Edwardh is, | may
have nmore questions after her cross-exam nation
t han before.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Thank you.

Ms Mclsaac, |'mgoing to be going
to others. Do you have subm ssions about
standi ng, the standing ruling, provisional
standi ng ruling?

MS Mcl SAAC: | do, thank you sir.

| took the opportunity since this
morning to quickly review your original ruling on
standi ng, and contrary to recollections this
morni ng, we did in fact make subm ssi ons.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: | recall that,
yes.

MS Mcl SAAC. And we did object to
standing for M. El Maati and M. Al mal ki .

That having been said, your ruling
clearly contenpl ated that as events unfol ded it
may be necessary to give them some | evel of
standi ng, and we are not objecting to sone |evel
of standing.

| simply do not understand at this
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st age what questions they would ask because this
is not an inquiry, as we have said on a nunber of
ot her occasions, and particularly in my original
subm ssi ons, about the actions of Canadi an
officials with respect to either M. El Mati or
M. Almalki. It is the actions of Canadi ans
officials with respect to M. Arar.

It is inevitable, given the public
nature of this aspect of the inquiry, the decision
that M. Cabana would testify publicly, the
insistence of M. Arar's counsel and the
Comm ssi on counsel, that after the inadvertent
rel ease of docunments, we allow those docunments to
be made publi c.

And | think, sir, you will recal
my reluctance to do that, once again because of
the unfairness to M. ElI Maati and M. Al mal ki and
t he Government position that it is not usually the
position of the Government or the RCMP that the
subjects of investigations will be identified.

Having said all of that, | wll
put ourselves in your hands, sir, on the
assumption that you will only allow questioning if
absolutely necessary to protect the interests of

t hose gentl emen, not to allow either of their

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B PR R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »dM W N - O

8040

counsel -- and | say this with respect, because |
woul d do the sanme thing -- to take the opportunity
to conduct a discovery with respect to the

i nvestigati on against their clients.

THE COWM SSI ONER:  Wel |, the
i ndication that | gave this norning was that the
grant of standing that | indicated this morning,
and in view of what you have now said wil
confirm is for the purposes of dealing with
reputational interests of the two that may be
affected by the evidence.

So with that in mnd, do either
Ms Jackman or M. Copel and anti ci pate
cross-examning this witness; and if so, for how
| ong?

MR. COPELAND: | anticipate
cross-examning but it's very difficult for me to
say how long. | would really have to do some work
over the evening to try to figure out where | can
go with the parameters that you have presented.

My very great preference would be
to do it on sonme other day so that | can actually
analyze and collate the material that | am
becom ng aware of as this proceedi ng goes ahead.

So it is very difficult for me to
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give you a time frane.

THE COWM SSI ONER: M. Copel and,
"' m sure you appreciate, as you say, the limt of
the grant is with respect to the reputational
interest, and it is not to pursue or exam ne
events other than as they affect M. Almalki's
reputation.

MR. COPELAND: Yes. But the
mat eri al that went to the Syrian officials, if it
went fromthe RCMP -- and ny very strong belief
is, based on the information from M. Almal ki, is
it arrives in a very timely fashion after the RCMP
do various things.

| want to ask questions in
relation to that because it relates very much to
t he damage to his reputation, | think. Now, you
may di sagree with me.

THE COWMM SSIONER: | will hear you
when we get to the questioning. | can see this is
going to take a while.

But the reputational interests
that | amreferring to is the reputati onal
interests that may be damaged as a result of the
evidence that is given fromthe box in this

inquiry. It is not a general interest to pursue
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the public record other references to M. Al mal ki
where his reputation may have been injured. It is
to protect, to the extent possible, further
damage, if | can put it that way, not being caused
by the evidence being given in this inquiry.

MR. COPELAND: Okay. But |'m
really unable to give you an estimate. | will be
in a better position tomorrow norning.

THE COWM SSI ONER: Ms Jackman?

MS JACKMAN: |'msort of in the
same position as M. Copeland. | feel somewhat,
interms of my client's interests, conpletely
short-changed.

We haven't | ooked at any of the
documents, and to be in a position now where we
are expected to exam ne, there may be sonme
document that he has referenced today that
haven't even gone through that may refer to ny
client I don't even know about.

| don't think it's fair to put us
in a position where we were notified just a very
short period of time ago that we could come in, in
respect of this witness.

THE COWM SSI ONER:  And, again, |

make the same comment to you that | didto

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B PR R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »dM W N - O

8043

M. Copeland: that the limts on your
cross-examnation will relate solely to damage
t hat has been caused to your client's reputation
as a result of evidence heard --

MS JACKMAN: Today, fromthis
wi t ness.

THE CHAI RPERSON: -- fromthis
wi t ness today.

MS JACKMAN: And | don't know how
you can divorce it fromthe documents he has
t al ked about.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Okay.

MS JACKMAN: | just have a concern
about it.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Let me think
about that. | nmust say -- and |I'mnot doing this
to preclude your cross-exam nation -- nyself
sitting here, | have a hard time envisioning that

t here would be a ot of cross-exam nation on that
issue. |If there is, that's fine.

| am synpat hetic to your coment
about not an opportunity to prepare, and |let ne
just think about that and I will deal with it in
t he nmorni ng.

Are there any other counsel in the
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room who are going to want to ask this w tness
guestions?

MR. BRYANT: M. Conm ssioner,
with respect to the client that | represent, |
don't antici pate asking any questions based on the
evi dence | have heard, but | don't want to
conpletely waive nmy right dependi ng on what may
come out in cross-exam nation.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: At this stage.
All I"mtrying to do is plan our schedul e.

So at this stage, M. Bryant, you
don't have any questions.

The other two are the sanme?

MR. WALLACE: Sane position.

MR. BELL: Sanme position.

THE COMM SSI ONER: M. Bayne, how
| ong do you expect to be at this stage?

MR. BAYNE: Seven to ten m nutes.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Can you keep it
to the bottomend of that range?

--- Laughter / Rires

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Maybe | shoul d
proceed and conpl ete the witness.

THE COWM SSI ONER: Okay. Do you

want to take a five- or ten-m nute break?
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: No, | can go
ahead.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: |s everybody
okay? We have been going for a while.

| have one hand for five m nutes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Do we have the
facility after six o'clock?

THE COWMM SSI ONER: We will arrange
t hat too.

Why don't we take a five-m nute
break?

THE REG STRAR: Pl ease stand.
--- Upon recessing at 5:40 p.m /

Suspension a 17 h 40
--- Upon resumng at 5:45 p.m /
Reprise a 17 h 45

THE COWMM SSI ONER: | guess we had
better wait before we start.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Are we waiting
for any one?

THE COMM SSI ONER: There is other
counsel outside.

MS EDWARDH: Ms Davis will conduct
a search.

THE COMM SSI ONER: Thank you.
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--- Pause

Just a couple of things before we
start that m ght help out.

Wth respect to M. Copel and and
Ms Jackman's request to put their
cross-exam nation over, | think it is fair they
have had insufficient notice. W will conmplete
all the other cross-exam nations, including
re-exam nation tonorrow. We will pick up a day
that is convenient to the witness and to both
counsel in August.

There is a half day,

M. Cavalluzzo, in --

MR. CAVALLUZZO: There is a half
day in the morning of August 10.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: We will get a
time. Again | don't want this to be taken the
wrong way. | do not anticipate it should take
along time, but that is something counsel can worKk
out with the witness. We will not try to work out
peopl e's schedul es here. What | envision is those
two counsel com ng back, if they deem necessary,
to cross-exam nation with respect to the issue.
And we will get a time that is suitable.

MR. COPELAND: Let nme warn you,
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sir, that right now | am schedul ed to appear and
sit on discipline hearings at the Law Society. |
presume | amrecruited -- somebody else to do

t hat, but --

THE COWMM SSI ONER: You can use ne
as an excuse, now, M. Copeland. You owe ne one.
--- Laughter / Rires

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Second t hing,
with respect to the order of cross-exam nation as
bet ween t he government and M. Arar, the way we
will do it, Ms Edwardh, we will have you
cross-examne first -- you are nore likely to
rai se new matters than the government woul d be.
Then, if after M. Fothergill has exam ned, if
there are any matters he raised fromthat had not
been rai sed before you would be given a further
chance to address those specific matters.

But | think the |l ogic of the
situation is that you are likely to raise new
matters than he is, so we will handle it that way,
t hen followed by M. Bayne for tonorrow.

MS EDWARDH: Thank you.

THE COWMM SSIONER: W th the tim ng
| think we can probably start at 9:00 tomorrow on

the estimates, and nmy guess is we will make it --
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We will make it, it is not a guess.

M. Caval luzzo.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Thank you. My
wi fe thanks you.

--- Laughter / Rires

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: M. Cabana -- |
wonder if you m ght show M. Cabana Exhibit P-134
which is the book of documents of Ambassador
Pillarella.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Sorry, there is
one other comment | would Iike to make: [t gets
hot in here. | do not have any objection if
people wish to take off their jackets. Under
these lights it does get warm

MR. CAVALLUZZO: | am just showi ng
you, M. Cabana, at tab 9, it is a note dated
November 25, which we have reviewed with other
wi tnesses. It relates to that meeting on
Novenmber 6. It is from Scott Heatherington.

This is an internal DFAIT
document. But there is a reference there | would
ask your comments on, very |ast reference states:

"...CSIS made no comments
about the credibility of the

docunment, but said that even
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if true, it was not
necessarily damm ng evi dence
against him™"

Do you recall CSI'S making those
comrent s?

MR. CABANA: No, sir, | don't
recall CSI'S making the comments, but | agree with
t he comment.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: You agree with
t he comment but you don't recall CSI'S making it?

MR. CABANA: No, sir, | don't.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now, the next
event that you would testify to would be your
knowl edge of a CSIS visit to Syria in or about
| at e Novenber, November 18 of 2002?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And what you can
testify tois that the visit occurred. You are
aware that it occurred?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. That CSI'S did not
interview M. Arar. You are not aware of that?

MR. CABANA: Not to my know edge,
no.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And that you

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B PR R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »dM W N - O

8050

can't tell us, but you are aware of the purpose of
the trip. You cannot tell us what it was?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir | am

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

Was t he RCMP consul ted about the
trip?

MR. CABANA: Prior to the type
occurring?

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Yes?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir we were.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Was there
di scussi on about the trip at the nmeeting on
Novenmber 67

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, there was.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: I would Iike to
move to this nmeeting you had with M. Edel son on
or about November 28, you made reference to that
earlier.

MR. CABANA: Yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: I would Iike to
just read to you a certain portion of
M. Edel son's testimny and ask whet her you agree
with it or not. This is it evidence he gave on
June 16 before this comm ssion. And | am

referring in particular to the transcript at
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page 7344, at line 4, and this is M. Edelson's
evi dence recounting the meeting that he had at
"“A" Division.

And he starts:
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18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

"We woul d have had a
di scussi on as well during
t hat period of time about the
detention of M. Arar,
whet her or not, | believe,
t he RCMP had had access to
him In other words, they had
i ndicated an interest in
interviewi ng himon a nunber
of occasions. "Did you go and
actually have access to hint?’
And t hey indicated no, that
they would like to interview
hi m but were not able to
obtain access to himfor an
interviewin Syria.

| can't recall whether it
was at this meeting or a
| ater meeting, | believe in
Decenmber, where there was

al so di scussi on about CSI S
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havi ng gone to Syria and
havi ng obt ai ned sone form of
statement -- | don't know
whet her it was the
interrogation statenment or
some transcript of M. Arar's
interviewin Syria."

Now, we have heard that, to your
knowl edge, there was no interview of M. Arar in
Syria, but do you recall that discussion in a
M . Edelson testified to on June 16?

MR. CABANA: | recall the meeting,
and | recall discussions with respect to the
situation of M. Arar. But specifics, no, sir, |
woul d have to refer to my notes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: He goes on, |
wi Il ask you this:

"My best recollection of it
is that the RCMP, at that
stage at | east, had not been
gi ven access to that
interrogation, and that part
was di scussed at that point."

Do you recall discussing the fact

that CSI'S was going with M. Edel son or had gone
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by that tinme?

MR. CABANA: Looking at the

| would assume that, yes, it would have

been di scussed at that meeting.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: And it goes on,

t he question is at line one of page 7345:

"I ndicating they were

interested obtaining the

fruits?"

Answer :
"Well, indicating that they
wanted to see it. | remember

sayi ng, "What use woul d the
statement be anyway if he was
tortured? How credible,
reliable, would that
statement be if this man was
tortured in order to get a
statement fromhimin Syria?"
| was generally fairly

di sm ssi ve about anything

t hat they had obtained from
himin Syria as being
reliable at that point."

Do you recall M. Edel son making
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statements to that effect?
MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, | actually
do.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Finally, the next
question at line 12 of page 7345:
"MR. DAVID: They
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i ndicated to you that they
wi shed to go to Syria, the
RCWMP di d?

MR. EDELSON: | think they

i ndi cated that they had a
desire to speak to him and

if they could be given to
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access, they were, | think,
prepared to go. | knew that
they -- | don't know if | can

mention this or not --

And then there is a discussion of
a certain issue.

The question didn't would have for
you, to your know edge, did the RCMP ever send
anyone to Syria?

MR. CABANA: Not to my knowl edge.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: To interview
M. Arar?
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MR. CABANA: Not to my know edge.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Now, there is a
clarification in your notes that | think you
should comment on. | amreferring to page 61.
This is December 11. Perhaps you can read it, the
entry for 11:307
MR. CABANA: Certainly.
"Contacted ... LO Rome, who
advised the witer that he
will be travelling to Syria
very shortly. He advises
that fromhis discussion with
he feels that our best
approach at this stage would
be to share our |ist of
questions with Syrian
authorities.™
Then there is a redaction:
"...also suggested that our
document shoul d be transl ated
in Arab if possible.”
Do you want me to continue?
--- Pause
MR. CAVALLUZZO: No. The next

point is something else.

StenoTran



© o0 N o o -~ wWw N P

N N N N N N P B P R R R R R R R
ag A W N P O O 00 N oo 0o »d W N -, O

8056

I n respect of that particular
entry, did it relate to M. Arar?
MR. CABANA: No sir, it didn't.
--- Pause
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: |If you go to the
next page of your notes, page 62, we move now to
January 10, 2003.
MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Could you just
read us the entry that |ooks |ike 12:05?
MS EDWARDH: What page?
MR. CAVALLUZZO: Page 627
MR. CABANA: Okay.
"12: 05 Received copy of
further correspondence
emanating from Cl D and
addressed to I nsp. Jagoe and
project O Canada in Toronto
outlining A/ Comm Proul x's
position relative to ..."
It is redacted:
"... and fact that...."
It is redacted agai n:
"I n this correspondence there

is also reference to fact
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that CIDwill dictate
conmposition of interview
teams and that same will be
conposed or have RCWMP

representatives.”

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Then there is a

day?

MR. CABANA: There is a nmeeting at

20 after 3:00 in the afternoon, 1510:

t hat time:

"Meeting with C/ Supt. Watson

VWho was the CROPS officer at

"...and advi sed himof above
and reason for wthdrawal .
The writer requested that in
['ight of the fact
investigation is in relation
to National Security issues,
file should be transferred to
| NSET. This shoul d address
CID' s concerns and hopefully
m nim ze their involvement in
t he devel opnent of the

investigation. M. Watson
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advi sed we woul d di scuss
further on Monday."

MR. CAVALLUZZO: At this point in
time you are deciding that you are going to be
| eavi ng Project A- OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir. It is tine
for me to move on.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: At this point in
time, when you do | eave on February 4th, a few
weeks later, is the project than assigned to the
| NSET at the "A" Division?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, but I would
suggest the discussion started actually in
Decenber .

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Ri ght .

MR. CABANA: Of the potenti al
m gration of the file back to INSET. The |INSET
unit by that time was | believe pretty well fully
staffed. They had the necessary expertise within
the teamat that time to take over management of
the file.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And so by the
time you | eave, Project A-OCANADA comes under the
umbrell a of I NSET, A-1NSET, and you nmove back to

your position as the project manager of |POC?
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MR. CABANA: | had never left that

function.

3

CAVALLUZZO: You conti nued on?

3

CABANA: Exactly.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: You continued on
in that position.

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: What woul d appear
to be one of the problens at | east you seemed to
be discussing on this date is the intervention of
head office in respect of the investigations that
were carried on by Project A-OCANADA.

s that a fair assessnment?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, it would
be.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: And head office
by this point intime felt that nore coordination
or control was needed over Project A-OCANADA. |Is
t hat correct?

MR. CABANA: Well, by that point
in time, Project OCanada had resumed its focus in
the fall of 2002, and there was a need to
coordi nate between the two teans that were
operating. So headquarters inplemented certain

steps to make sure coordination would occur.
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MR. CAVALLUZZO: As | say, you
| eft on February. There is a discussion in your
notes, if we nove on in your notes, in respect of
t he nove, at page 67.
There is a discussion with
M. Killam Do you see that page 677
MR. CABANA: Yes, | do.
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Can you read that
just to close this issue out.
MR. CABANA: It says:
"During conversation with
C/ Supt. Killamthe issue of
accountability was raised by
the wwiter in support of need
to ensure the timely
di ssem nati on of information.
M. Killaminformed the
writer that since the file is
a National Security matter,
t he accountability in fact
did not rest with the
Di vi sion but with A/ Comm
Proul x. "
MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Did anything

happen in December or January of 2003 which
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suddenly turned the file into a national security
file, or was it a |ong evol ution?

How di d t hat happen that it became
a national security file in January?

MR. CABANA: The file was al ways a
national security file but it was primarily a
crimnal investigation. |If you look at it the
focus of the I NSET units, which were created in
spring, April of 2002, the INSET units now, these
new units, are responsible to conduct crim nal
i nvestigati ons of national security issues.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Maybe at this
point it m ght be useful if you could share with
us what is the difference between a crim nal
investigation in relation to national security
matters and a national security investigation.

Ils there a difference?

MR. CABANA: Not really. | nmean,
the difference between a crim nal investigation
and a national security type of investigation, |
woul d say the first and foremost is the reporting
structure of the investigation, of the team A
crimnal investigation reports to the Division
| evel , whereas national security investigations

report or are being coordinated at the
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Headquarters | evel.

| NSETs now, | must state that the
| NSET units in relation to crimnal investigations
are reporting to the crim nal operations officer
in each division.

The other difference | would
submt is in the use of the information in
nati onal security types of investigations. Pre
| NSET days the national security types of
investigations were nore intelligence types of
investigations. The flow of information, or the
fluidity of the flow of information was not as
crucial as with crimnal investigations where the
informati on has to be shared right away.

As wel |, the methodol ogy in
securing this information, in the context of an
intelligence probe you don't have to source the
informati on the same way, where in the context of
a crimnal investigation you have to make sure the
informati on you are getting is properly sourced
and is obtained in an adm ssi ble format.

Those | guess woul d be the main
di fferences.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Just a coupl e of

final things.
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| would ask you to refer to
Exhi bit 173, which should be in front of you. |
don't know if it has been filed already.
|f you go five page in, you wil
see a fax. This fax is dated January 10, 2003.
It is to NOC Headquarters. |t appears to be from
Project A-OCANADA. It is being sent to the LOin
Rome, who is M. Fiorido at this tinme?
MR. CABANA: Yes.
MR. CAVALLUZZO: It says:
"Hello ... Please find
attached a copy of the
Synopsis Tinme Line that we
prepared for HQ on Maher ARAR
on Oct ober 21, 2002. It is
more than you asked for but
provi des a greater picture on
this individual. 1f you
requi re anything el se, please
call me. Thanks again and
good luck in your travels."”
And then appended to that fax is a
time line, much of which is redacted, but several
pages of tinme |ine.

On January 10, 2003, M. Arar is
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in detention in Syria for three or four nonths by
that time. | am wondering why is Project

A- OCANADA sending the LOin Rome this synopsis
time line?

Are you aware of this? Did you do

MR. CABANA: Well, | signed the
fax transm ssion. So obviously | was aware of it.

As far today to tell you what this
isinrelation to, I would submt to you that the
LO Rome was probably planning on attending Syri a.
He was |likely travelling to Syria and wanted to
obtain nmore information.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. You don't recal
exactly why you woul d have sent this information
to him other than that specul ation.

MR. CABANA: No, sir, | don't.

--- Pause

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

Finally, M. Cabana, | just want
to return to the training aspects what | asked you
earlier regarding the training that the members of
A- OCANADA had. You told us they had if any, very
[imted training in Muslimval ues, cultures

traditions.
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Did they have any training on the
rel evant sharing of information policies of the
RCMP, the ones that we reviewed this norning with
you. Did the nmenmbers of A- OCANADA have any
training on that?

MR. CABANA: The members that we
selected to participate in this project were all
experienced investigators and woul d have received
training during the course of their career in the
cont ext of other courses.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: What about the
non- RCMP member s of A- OCANADA, including the two
co- managers? Were they trained on RCMP policies?

MR. CABANA: The members of
muni ci pal or provincial agencies that were
attached to our group that were working with the
investigative team | have no know edge whet her
t hey were provided, prior to becom ng members of
this team with any formof training on RCMP
policies.

The two team | eaders, one of them
had been with the RCMP at that time for probably
| onger than | would suggest the majority of the
menmbers on the teamso he is fully aware of RCWMP

policies. He had received RCMP training over the
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course of many, many years.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: As you say, apart
fromthe two co-managers there were a nunber of
ot her non- RCMP peopl e that were --

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO. -- fromthe
Sareté, fromthe OPP, from municipal police
forces, and so on and so forth.

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. You are not aware
of any training they specifically got on RCWP
policies?

MR. CABANA: After joining
our group?

MR. CAVALLUZZO:. Yes?

MR. CABANA: No, sir.

Our focus -- | guess the only way
| can describe it, this teamwas a task force that
was put in place. It wasn't a permanent unit. M
responsibility toward these menmbers was not to
ensure their devel opnent for their future career.
Our sol e purpose was to conduct this
i nvesti gation.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: Okay.

MR. CABANA: For us to take
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members and provide themw th extended training,
it clearly was not appropriate at that time.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: You also told us
that in respect of training on human rights
i ssues, such is the human rights records of
countries they may deal with, there just was no
such training?

MR. CABANA: Not to my
knowl edge, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: You also told us
that in respect of the National Security Program
t hat the RCMP did have avail able, that very few
peopl e took that progranf?

MR. CABANA: That is correct.

What we were faced with was -- and
again, we |ook at it type of investigation we were
conducting, which was a international financial
type of investigation, and the training in
relation to national security would be of very
little use actually.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: That is it final
guestion. The final question is: [If the menbers
of this teamhad the kind of training that | have
just referred to you, do you think that it would

have been of any benefit to themin carrying out
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t he mandate of Project A- OCANADA?

MR. CABANA: W th respect to the
devel opment of the investigation, and the
i nvestigation of specific financial offenses, no.
It m ght have been a benefit to themsinply
because of the context of the national security
context of this investigation, yes.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: So that there
woul d have been sonme benefit?

MR. CABANA: There could have been
some benefit. But we addressed these requirenments
t hrough the actual conposition of the team by
ensuring that we had people with the right
expertise that were there so if there was need for
consultation to take place we had people we could
consult with.

MR. CAVALLUzZZO: What you seemto
be saying is that because of the people you
choose, you choose themon the basis that they
woul dn't need any training --

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: -- to carry out
t he mandate?

MR. CABANA: We are tal king here

in a perfect world. 1In a perfect world it would
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have been great to be able to take all the
investigators on the team and say we are going for
extended training for the next three weeks and
then we are going to | ook at this emergency. But
really, the situation that we were under at the
time, it was a crisis situation, basically it was
a race against the clock and we couldn't take a
two or three week break to train everybody.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Do you think the
emergency |l asted until you left in February of --

MR. CABANA: Sir, although for the
Canadi an public post-9/11 -- immediately post-9/11
it was very traumatic for everybody and | would
submt to you that it is still the case for a | ot
of the |l aw enforcement officers that were attached
to this project. The energency, the urgency still
exists and in my functions | still deal with it on
a daily basis.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Right. Although
you are not part of the A-1NSET Project A-OCANADA,
it still continues | understand?

MR. CABANA: Yes, sir, it does.

MR. CAVALLUZZO: Thank you,

M. Cabana. | have no further questions?

MR. CABANA: Thank you very
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much, sir.

THE COWMM SSI ONER: Thank you,
M. Caval luzzo.

That conmpletes it for today. W
will start tomorrow norning 9 o' clock and we wil
rise until then.

THE REG STRAR: Pl ease stand.

--- Whereupon the hearing adjourned at 6:16 p. m,
to resume on Thursday, June 30, 2005,
at 9:00 a.m / L'audience est ajournée a
18 h 16, pour reprendre le jeudi 30 juin 2005
a9 h 00

i;{i}ybaéﬂ) 524P£JL¢MmQ&LLV
Lynda Johansson,

C.S R, RPR
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